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Investment manager’s report
Year ended 31 December 2023

Market Commentary - January 2023 to December 2023

Throughout the year, investors witnessed notable developments across various asset classes, culminating in a
particularly robust final quarter. The year commenced with cautious optimism as economic recovery efforts
persisted, albeit amid lingering uncertainties. Equity markets experienced moderate gains, sustained by positive

earnings reports. However, concerns over inflationary pressures and geopolitical tensions weighed on market
sentiment, feading to sporadic volatility,

In the second quarter, market dynamics shifted as inflationary concerns intensified, prompting increased scrutiny
of central bank policies. Despite these challenges, equities continued to advance, supported by robust corporate
earnings and accommodative monetary policies. Fixed income markets faced headwinds amid rising yields, while
commodities experienced mixed performance amid supply chain disruptions and fluctuating demand.

The final quarter of 2023 was characterized by impressive gains across most major asset classes, wrapping up the
financial market year on a high note for investors. There was a prevailing sentiment of growmg optimism as
speculation mounted that central banks might implement interest rate reductions earlier in 2024 than initially
projected, sparking what was termed as an "almost everything rally.” Developed marlket equities, in particular,
einerged as strong performers, achieving a notable total return of 11.5%. Similarly, global aggrepate bonds also
delivered positive returns, recording an 8.1% increase. However, commodities faced a decline, vielding -4.6%,
marking a subdued conclusion to the year for this asset class following the excitement of 2022.

Across fixed income markets, overall positive outcomes were observed. The anticipation of earlier central bank
rate cuts, coupled with narrowing spreads and a weakened doliar, contributed to these gains. The anticipated more
lenient trajectory for interest rates resulted in robust returns in government bonds. Notably, European markets
stood out over the year: UK Gilts recorded an 8.6% return, possibly influenced by longer durations in the index,
while tightening spreads relative to German Bunds propelled Italian returns to 7.5%.

In terms of the main US and European indexes, the performance varied throughout the year, The S&P 500,
representing US equities, displayed remarkable resilience amid market fluctuations, ending the year with an
impressive gain of 24.2%. Similarly, the BEURO STOXX 50 index, representing European equities, demonstrated

strong performance, reflecting the region's economic recovery efforts and accommodative monetary policies, with
a notable increase of 19.18%.

Remuneration disclosures

AQA UCITS Funds SICAV plc is licensed by the Malta Financial Services Authority to act as a UCITS
Management Company (amongst others) pursuant to the transposition of Directive 2009/65/EC (as amended).
Directive 2014/91/EU of European Parliament on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative
provisions relating to Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) as regards

depositary functions, remuneration policies and sanctions came into force in March 2016 hereinafter referred to
as “UCITS V” or the “Directive”.

ESMA Guidelines on sound remuneration policies under the UCITS Directive requires that the management
company considers the additional disclosures, in accordance with the principle of proportionality and at least on
an annual basis, certain information regarding its remuneration policy and practices for ‘identified staff. The
Board of Directors has adopted and implements a remuneration policy which is available at:
www.aqa-capital.com

Following due consideration of the Company’s size, internal organisation as well as the nature, scope and
complexity of'its activities, the Board of Directors have determined that the Company is not required to appoint a
remuneration committee on the basis of the principle of proportionality and neither to apply the pay-out process
rules. The Board of Directors will review the appropriateness of the remuneration policy annually and will ensure
that it is in accordance with the appticable laws and regulations. All identified staff (including delegated services)
are involved in the activities related to the Company and receive fixed and variable remuneration as follows:
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Investment manager’s report (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

Remuneration disclosures (continued)

Staff Remuneration FY 2023 Fixed Variable
Number of Remuneration Remuneration
beneficiaries EUR LEUR
Senior management 3 245,000 -
Risk takers 5 225,000 -
Control functions 3 145,000 -
Other identified staff 2 40,000 -
13 655,000 -
Staff Remuneration FY 2022 Fixed Variable
Number of Remuneration Remuneration
beneficiaries EUR EUR
Senior management 3 235,000 -
Risk takers 6 225,000 -
Control functions 3 95,000 -
Other identified staff 2 22,000 -
14 577,000 -

The quantitative information disclosed above pertains to the full financial year ended 31 December 2023 and
pertains to the total aggregate remuneration paid by the UCITS Management Company to identified staff. There
have been no material changes to the remuneration policy in the year under review.

Disclosures required by the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR)

The investments underlying the Company and its sub-funds do not talke into account the EU criteria for
environmentally sustainable economic activities.
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Directors’ report
For thie year ending 31 December 2023

The Directors present their annual report, together with the audited financial statements of AQA UCITS Funds
SICAV p.i.c. (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2023,

Principal activities

The Company is an open-ended collective investment scheme organised as & multi-fund public limited liability
company with variable share capital registered under the laws of Malia and licensed by the Malta Financial
Services Authority (“MFSA”) in terms of the Investment Services Act (Chapter 370, laws of Malta). The company
qualifies as a ‘Maltese UCITS’ in terms of the Investment Services Act Regulations. Marketing in Switzerland is
only allowed to quatified investors, The country of domicile of the collective investment scheme is Malta. For all
the sub-funds within the Company, except for AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund, Castlestone Low Volatility
Income Fund, Castlestone Next Generation Fund and Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund, the Swiss paying agent
is Swissquote Bank Ltd,, CH — 1196 Gland, Switzerland. The latter sub-funds are not distributed in Switzerland.
The Swiss representative is 1741 Fund Solutions AG, Burggraben 16, 9000 St. Gallen. The prospectus, the articles
of association, the relevant information for investors and the annual reports as well as semi-annual reports may be
obtained free of charge from the Swiss representative or the Company’s offices. For the marketing of shares in or

into Switzerland the place of performance and the place of jurisdiction is the place of domicile of the Swiss
representative.

The AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund’s investment objective is to achieve medium to long-term capital growth
by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of listed securities including corporate and government bonds,
equities and units of other eligible UCITS and non-UCITS collective investment schemes (including ETFs).

The Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund’s investment objective is to generate capital growth mainky through

benefitting from exposure to the development, advancement and use of technology. The sub-fund will mainly
invest in listed equities and/or eligible Exchange Traded Funds.

The AQA Colombo Exira Return Fund’s investment objective is to seek an absolute return, while placing
emphasis on the preservation of capital in the medium term period. The sub-fund will mainly invest in traditional
listed or unlisted equities and/or options with the aim of obtaining returns comparable, in the medium term, to

stock markets, but with lower volatility. Share Class D of this sub-fund is listed on the ATFund Market operated
by the Borsa Italiana,

The investment objective of the AQA High Yield Bond Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth for investors
through investment, primarily, in a diversified portfolio of listed corporate and government bonds.

The AQA Hybrid Bond Fund’s investment objective is to achieve long-term capital growth, with simulitaneous
risk diversification, by investing predominantly in hybrid bonds.

The investment objective of the AQA Unconstrained Fund is to deliver a stable level of return (estimated to be in
the region of 3% to 5% net per annum) whilst still maintaining the capital value, via strategic exposures to a wide
range of global asset classes.

The Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund’s investment objective is to generate capital growth from the equity
market whilst maintaining in aggregate lower volatility relative to the broader US equity market.

The AQA Flexible Allocation Fund’s investment objective is to generate current income and achieve long-term

capital growth, with simultaneous risk diversification, by investing in a diversified portfolio of stocks and debt
securities.

The AQA Selective Opportunities Fund's investment objective is to generate absolute returns,-by investing in
bonds, index futures, options, deposits, ETFs and CFDs.
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Directors’ report
For the year ending 31 December 2023

Principal activities {(continued)

The investment objective of the AQA Selective Income Fund is to maximise capital growth and generate an
aftractive total return by investing in corporate and sovereign bonds.

The AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund’s investment objective is to achieve long-term capital growth, with
simultaneous risk diversification, by investing primarily in a global diversified portfolio of corporate and
government bonds and in equity securities of large-to-mid cap companies, particularly in developed markets,

The AQA Small-Cap Fund’s investment objective is to achieve capital growth through investment in the equity
and equity-related securities (namely, common and preferred stock, convertible securities, warrants and rights) of
Buropean and US small-cap companies. The securities in which the Sub-Fund will invest will primarily be quoted
or traded on Regulated Markets in Europe and US.

Castlestone Next Generation UCTIS Fund’s investment objective is to o generate capital appreciation through
ownership of companies that demonstrate innovative solutions to current issues, develop disruptive technologies
or create new markets through innovation in the areas of Technology, Biotechnology, Social Media, Artificial
Intelligence and other technological advancements.

Significant events during the reporting period

During the reporting period, the Company issued new Offering Supplements for its sub-funds to communicate
various changes as stipulated in note 12 to the financial statements.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are shown in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 24
to 27.

In the year ended 31 December 2023, no dividend was proposed out of the profits of the Company. No subsequent
to year-end dividends were proposed.

Business review

At 31 December 2023, the net asset value of the Company stood at EUR 254,530,831 (2022; EUR 240,123,590).

A review of the business of the Company during the current year and an indication of likely future developments
are given in the investment manager’s report on page 3-4.

Financial risk management

Note 10 to the financial statements provides details in connection with the Company’s use of financial instruments,
its financial risk management objectives and policies and the financial risks to which it is exposed.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The successful management of risk is essential to enable the Company to achieve its objectives. The ultimate
responsibility for risk management rests with the Company’s directors, who evaluate the Company’s risk appetite
and formulate pelicies for identifying and managing such risks. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company are included below:
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ending 31 December 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties {(continued)

{a) Market and competition

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment and faces competition from various other entities.
The Company continues to focus on service quality and performance in managing this risk.

(b} Legisiative risks

The Company is subject to numerous laws and regulations covering a wide range of matters. Failure to comply
could have financial or reputational implications and could materially affect the Company’s ability to operate.
The Company has embedded operating policies and procedures to ensure compliance with existing legislation.

(c) Service providers
Failure to retain the Company’s existing service providers, and/or to engage service providers as required on an
ad hoc basis, would hamper the Company’s ability to function effectively and/or within regulatory requirements.

Regular meetings are undertaken with the Company’s core service providers to ensure an effective and mutually
satisfactory relationship.

(d) Reputation risk

Damage to the Company’s reputation could ultimately impede the Company’s ability to service its investors, To

mitigate this risk, the Company strives continually to build its reputation through a commitment to best corporate
governance practices.

(e) Technology and business interruption

The Company’s service providers rely on information technology in most aspects of their business. A failure in
the operation thereof could cause a failure of service to the Company’ investors, thus negatively impacting the
Company’s reputation, and also possibly resulting in increased costs. The Company has a.robust selection and
menitoring process of third-party providers. Regular reviews are undertaken of the Company’s core service
providers in relation to their business continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of key systems and sites.

(f) Customer service
The Company’s revenues are at risk if it does not continue to provide the level of service expected by its investors.
Regular reviews are undertaken of the Company’s core service providers in relation to the latter’s relative

employee training programme to ensure that they are aware of, and abide by, the levels of service that are required
by the Company’s investors,

Directors

The Directors who served in office during the reporting period were:
Alexander Vella

Nicholas Calamatta
Alberto Conca

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all the directors are due to retire at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, intend offering themselves for re-election.

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte Audit Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting,
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ending 31 December 2023

Standard licence conditions and regulatory sanctions

During the year under review there were no breaches of Standard License Conditions (‘SLC’) or other regulatory
requirements or administrative penalty which were subject to regulatory sanctions.

For further details on the above refer to the report of the custodian report on pages 199-200,

Going concern

There are no going concern issues as at the date of these financial statements.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the sub-funds have processed EUR 3,746,857 in net subscription requests.
Mainly arising from AQA Selective [ncome Fund in net subscriptions has processed circa EUR 6,607,664 and the
Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund in net redemptions has processed circa EUR 1,765,070. There were no other
significant subscriptions or redemptions recorded by the sub-funds that warrant disclosures in these financial
statements.

Furthermore, subsequent to 31 December 2023, the NAV of the AQA Unconstrained Fund decreased by 8% to
USD 1,109,235 (from USD 1,347,456 at 31 December 2023). The NAV of the Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS
Fund decreased by 9% to USD 8,916,099 (from USD 9,876,778 at 31 December 2023).

Approved by the board of directors, authorised for issue on 18 April 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Alberto olas Calamatta
Director Director
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are required by the Companies Act (Cap. 386) to prepare financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of each financial year and of the profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of the Company for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors should:

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable; and

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and which enable the directors
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act (Cap. 386). This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Company, and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Additionally, the directors of a multi-fund Company are responsible for ensuring that such separate
records, accounts, statements and other records are kept as may be necessary to evidence the assets and

liabilities of each sub-fund as distinct and separate from the assets and liabilities of other sub-funds in
the same company.
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Comparative table
For the year ending 31 December 2023

This table represents the net asset values calculated on 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021 in accordance with EU International Financial Reporting Standards.

Sub-Fund
currency
AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund
Class A LUR
Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund
Class A USD
Class AA EUR
Class AAA GBr
Class B UsD
Class BB LUR
Class BBB GBP
Class C UsD
Class CCC GBI
Class D UsH
Class DDD GEP
Class E USD
Class EEE GBI’
Class FEF GBP
Class I UsSD
AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund
Class B EUR
Class C EUR
Class D EUR
AQA High Yield Bond Fund
Class A EUR
Class B EUR
AQA Hybrid Bond Fund
Class A EUR
AQA Unconstrained Fund
Class A USD
Class B USD
Class C EUR
Class D LUR
Class F GBP

Net Asset Value per unit
(expressed in EUR)

31-Dec-23

93.8977

1,580.0979
1,554,1788
1,802.6778
1,568.2286

946.0195
1,639.2221
1,542.0544

1,643.8058
1,500.9147

1,645.6893
1,559,459
1,751.5194
1,639.5828

105.8548
99.4127
147.4333

1121397
118.5257

118.3159

51.0846
57.2565
56.7631
81.0779

31-Dec-22

89.3173

1,105.9363
1,076.9855
1,210.9387
1,108.5786
666.6324

1,111.4586
1,090.0662

1,109.5846
1,061.0151

1,109.4285
1,102.3817
1,183.4523
1,091.4200
655.8830

91.0699

92.1575

100.2191
105.1937

107.1675

63.83462
62.5267
69,9231
69.4883

31-Dec-21

94.8790

1,648.3634
1,775.6733
2,081.6867
1,687.0064
1,128.2275
1,958.0259
1,640.9972

1,928.6534
1,614.4546

1,948.6423
1,655.5373
2,066.4507
1,885.0473

107.0178
107.8782

108.7774
113.0891

1148972

58.3700

Net Asset Value

(expressed in EUR)

31-Dec-23

6,827,295

1,036,813
165,686
58,977

8,446,755
295,911

1,201,596
954,241
679,429

1,833,091
870,747

1,967,950

1,090,705

1,457,455

8,344,567
149,004
1,382,749

17,399,844
458,051

14,848,846

504,740
77,267
496,388
45,567

31-Dec-22

6,494,256

590,586
148,184
88,793
6,267,221
309,175
1,197.854
623,897

435,676
1,985,813

852,448
1,896,316
1,019,600
1,245,545

9,214

7,591,762
1,126,893

17,653,831
1,102,567

14,027,441

190,039
488,322
23,774
217,152

3i-Dec-21

6,898,645

799,529
247,363
138,895

10,812,457
389,862

2,463,398

1,025,625
745,665

4,070,359

2,077,632

3,068,905

1,980,306

2,379,898

8,943,849

1,205,215

22,887,820
1,327,535

17,516,570

175,119

10
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Comparative table (continued)
For the year ending 31 December 2023

Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund

Class A Usp
Class AAA GBP
Class B Usp
Class BB EUR
Class BBB GBP
Clags C UsD
Class CCC GBP
Class D UsD
Class DDD GBP
Class E USD
Class EEE GBP
Class FFF GBP
AQA Small-Cap Fund
Class A EUR
AQA Tlexible Allocation Fund
Class A ~EUR
AQA Selective Opportunities Fund
Class A EUR
Class B EUR
AQA Selective Income Fund
Class C USD
Class E UsDh
Class G Ush
Class J usD
AQA Global Bynamic Strategies Fund
Class A EUR
Class B EUR
Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund
Class A UsD
Class B USD
Class BB EUR
Class BBB GBP
Class C USD
Class CCC GBP
Class D USD
Class DDD GBP
Class E USD
Class EE EUR
Class EEE GBr
_ Clags FEF GBP

Net Asset Value per unit
{expressed in EUR)

31-Dee-23

1,075.6984
1,244.6319
1,051.2890

945.6144
1,088.9584

998.6351
1,177.0457
1,007.6613
1,086.498%
1,041.1236
1,219.1862
1,463.1155

113.9754

128.1976

106.6659
98,6863
89.5183

1139154

103.5147
102.5423

31-Dec-22

907.3402
1,002.7316
8956136
802.1715
887.8723
850.7763
9577129
858.4438
883.9792
886.9503
992,7246
1,177.1881

112.8777
113.5632

72.3092
83.4500

102.3918

86,7661

96.9657

353.9659
309.3393
313.4079
3963661

309.0349
316.4645
352.3767
409.1848
377.0343

31-Dec-21

1,122.6050
1,427.7047
1,130.7677
1,116.0332
£,285.2028
1,063.1754
1,378.7537
1,083,8280
1,286.5254
1,108.3786
1,418.4977
1,679.2397

132.6136

1201863

119.4106
130.6367

110.4834

94,1847

107.8731

770.57354
690.5929
782.8856
1,033.5770
750.2532
1,010.0084
690.5731
9599431
695.2635
855.4652
1,040, 3504
952.2296

Net Asset Value

(expressed in EURO)

31-Dec-23

1,495,224
300,420
3,065,207
191,401
614,255
113,637
280,729
1,650,962
295,554
516,175
756,416
190,134

4,123,554

24,233,198

127,203,432

520,682
2,278,656
858,192

9,723,474
6,122,734

31-Dec-22

1,376,680
253,878
3,518,333
226,643
848,410
166,536
222,242
1,158,053
240,935
561,310
746,372
183,300

4,514,909

21,844,451

61,029
4,874,755

31-Dee-21

1,577.671
395,247
4,563,146
243,543
1,199,940
314,799
613,144
1,582,295
502,807
1,199.253
108,814

6,082,677

23,535,488

189,025
8,215,131

117,935,780 134,582,786
27238227 2,609,117
10,538,438 13,320,333

13,525 22,030
1935781 4,526,541
103,586 322,227
146,908 348,205

. 27,515

- 37,145
410,383 1,i34,081
- 28,774
95,990 210,887
8,843 12,634
77,955 168,208
203,966 189,259
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

1 Company information and basis of preparation

AQA UCITS Funds SICAVY p.le. (the “Company”) incorporated in terms of the Companies Act
(Cap 386, Laws of Malta) on 20 April 2015 with a registration number SV35% and have registered office
at Ewropa Business Centre, Triq Dun Karm, Birkirkara, BKR9034, Malta. The Company is an open-
ended collective investment scheme organised as a multi-fund public liability company with variable
share capital registered under laws of Malta and licensed by the Malta Financial Services Authority
(“MFSA”) in terms of Investment Services Act (Chapter 370, laws of Malta). The Company qualifies as

a ‘Maltese UCITS’ in terms of the Investment Services Act (Marketing of UCITS) Regulations (S.L.
370.18, Laws of Malta).

These financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company which include the following
licensed sub-funds collectively called “sub-funds” at 31 December 2023:

. AQA Flexible Allocation Fund;

. AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund,

. AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund;

. AQA High Yield Bond Fund;

. AQA Hybrid Bond Fund,

. AQA Selective Income Fund;

. AQA Selective Opportunities Fund, (fully redeemed on 19 June 2023)

. AQA Small-Cap Fund;

* AQA Unconstrained Fund;

. AQA Colombo Extra Retum Fund (share class D of this sub-fund is listed on the ATFund
Market operated by the Borsa Italiana);

. Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund;

] Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund; and

. Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund (fully redeemed on 01 November 2023)

During the year, the SICAV acquired a new licence for a new sub-fund called AQA Sure on 21 December
2023. The sub-fund was still in its infant stage and did not seed any investor as at 31 December 2023.

The Company had no employees during the year ended 2023 and 2022,

Reference to the term “combined” in these financial staterments represents the aggregated figures for
AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.lc., the Company. Therefore, the combined financial statements do not
represent consolidated figures but merely an aggregation of the financial performance, cash flows and
financial position for each of the constituted sub-funds.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“the applicable framework™). All references in these financial
statements to IAS, IFRS or SIC/IFRIC interpretations refer to those adopted by the EU. These financial

statements have also been prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act (Cap 386, Laws of Malta),

The statement of financial position is organised in increasing order of liquidity with additional disclosures

on the current or non-current nature of the Company s assets and liabilities provided within the notes to
- the financial statements. -




AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key estimation uncertain

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the applicable framework requires the
directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect both the application of accounting

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates ate recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of preparing
these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would warrant their:
descriptions as material and critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1 (revised).

The key judgments made by the Directors during the reporting period are the following:

e As disclosed in note 8, at 31 December 2023, one of the investments held by the AQA Global
Dynamic Strategies Fund amounting to £UR 29,882 and representing 0.19% of the net asset value
of the sub-fund is held in a side pocket of an underlying fund. Such side pocket was created at the
level of the underlying fund during October 2020 to segregate any illiquid and hard to value
investments. The fair value of this investment at the reporting date is based primarily on the net asset
value made available from third party sources and the directors are of the opinion that such value is
representative of the fair value of the sub-fund’s investment at 31 December 2023.

o As disclosed in note 8, at 31 December 2023, one of the investments held by the AQA Selective
Income Fund amounting to EUR 1,225,102 and representing 0.94% of the net asset value of the sub-
fund is held in a structured product linked to an unlisted security. At the reporting date no third party
sources prices were available at 31 December 2023. Given the illiquid nature of the product and the
proximity to the year end when the asset was purchased, the directors are of the opinion that using

the cost value would represent the best available fair value of the sub-fund’s investment at 31
December 2023.

3 Material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently during the year.

3.1 Foreign currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at that date. The foreign
currency gain or loss on monctary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and
the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

The functional currency and share capital of the AQA Selective Income Fund, Castlestone FAANG +
UCITS Fund, Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund, Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund and
AQA Unconstrained Fund is the USD whilst the functional currency and the share capital of the rest of
the sub-funds is the EUR. As allowed by sub-legislation 386.02 of the Companies Act (Investment
Companies with Variable Share Capital) Regulations, a Company with sub-funds whose capital is

denominated in different currencies may elect to present its financial statements in any one of these
currencies. »

143
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

3.
31

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translations (continued)

Consequently, the financial statements of the Company are presented in Euro being the currency in which
the majority of the sub-funds” share capital is denominated. For the purpose of presenting these financial
staternents, income and expenses (including comparatives) are translated from the functional currency to
Euro at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction. Assets and labilities {including
comparatives) are translated from the functional currency to Euro at the exchange rate ruling at the date

of the statement of financial position. Exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial assets and firancial liabilities
Recognition

The Company recognises financial assets on the date it commits to purchase the assets, using trade date

accounting. From this date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair vatue of the financial assets
are recorded in the period in which they arise.

Where applicable, interest income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed
within the line item *interest income’, while dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within dividend income. Fair value

gains or losses are recognised within net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured at
FVTPL on the basis of both;

s  The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

s  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The Company does not have any debt instruments that are subsequently measured at FVTOCI and it has
not designated any equity investments at FVTOCI,

Financial assets af amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets measured at amortised cost include other receivables (representing amounts

receivable for transactions contracted for but not yet delivered by the end of the period) and cash and
cash equivalents.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a
financial asset. The Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.

For financial assets at amortised cost, appropriate allowances for expected credit losses (‘ECLs’) are
recognised in profit ot loss in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy on ECLs.

34



AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

3.
3.2
322

3.23

Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Classification (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL if it is not held within a business model whose objective is either
to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell or its contractual terms

do not give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

At initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL
when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

The Company includes in this category, detivative contracts in an asset position, financial assets
classified as held for trading, financial assets managed, evaluated and reported on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Funds® documented investment strategy, and those financial investments whose

contractual cash flows do not solely represent payments of principal and interest, which are mandatorily
measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the effect

of discounting is immaterial or they meet the definition of derivative financial liabilities, which are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

These financial liabilities comprise derivative contracts in a liability position, The Company has not
designated any of its financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Fairvalue measurement principles

The fair value of quoted financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
priced at current mid-market or the last traded price where this falls within the bid-ask yield.

Unquoted investments are valued at initial value restated at fair value as determined by the Directors,
acting on the advice of the Investment Manager or such othet person commissioned and appointed from
time to time for that purpose by the Directors. The fair value is estimated using valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any

other valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual marlet
transactions.

The fair value of investments that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Company
would receive, or pay, to sell the asset at the reporting date, taking into account current market conditions,
volatility, appropriate yield curve and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties.

Securities sold short are those positions where the Company has sold a security that it does not own.
Short sales are used predominantly for hedging purposes, To enter a short sale, the Company may need
to botrow the security for delivery to the buyer. On each day the short sale transaction is open, the liability
to replace the borrowed security is marked to market and an unrealised gain or loss is recorded in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. While the transaction is open, the Company
will incur an expense for any interest that will be paid to the lender of the securities.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

32

3.2.3

Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
Fuair value measurement principles (continued)

e Valuation of private investment funds

Investments in collective investment schemes (private investment funds) are valued at fair value, as
determined by the administrator of the private investment fund and/or based on the independently audited
net asset values of the private investment funds.

For those private investment funds for which independently audited financial statements are not available
or their year-end is not co-terminous with that of the Company, the board of directors bases its valuation
on the private investments funds’ net asset values as calculated by the administrator of such private
investment funds at the reporting date. It is possible that the underlying private investment funds’ results
may subsequently be adjusted when such results are subjected to an audit, and the adjustments may be
material. In determining fair value, the administrator utilises the valuations of the underlying private
investment funds to determine the fair value of its interest. The underlying private investment funds value
securities and other financial instruments on a mark-to-market of fair value basis of accounting.

s  Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities are classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. During the year, the Searegated Portfolic did not
designate any of its derivative financial instruments in a hedging relationship for accounting purposes.
After initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured at their fair value. Gains and
losses arising from a change in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Futures are contractual agreements to either buy or sell specified number of exchange contracts of
specific size at a specific price of quoted securities on the exchange which can be settled any time during
a specified year. The future contracts are collateralized by cash held by brokers in margin accounts and
changes in the value of the contracts are settled net, on a daily basis. The fair value of the futures is
classified as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Contracts for difference (“CFDs”) are instruments that offer the benefits of trading shares without having
to physically own them and offer exposurs to the markets at a small percentage of the cost of owning the
actual share. CFDs are traded on margin and the Company pays a nominal fee to maintain the position.
CFDs mitror the performance of a share or an index and the gains or losses are determined by the
difference between the buy and the sell price which are recorded by the Company in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. CFDs also mirror any corporate actions that take place

and the Company records dividends paid or received in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,

An option is a derivative financial instriment. A long option gives the right, but not the obligation to buy
{for a call option} or to sell (for a put option), while a short option gives rise to the obligation to buy (for
a put option} ot to sell (for a call option} a specific amount of a given stock, currency, index or debt
during a specified period (American option) or on a specitied date (European option). The fair values of
listed options are included in derivatives held for trading and classified as financial assets or liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss as disclased in note 8 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

3.
3.2

3.24

Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ldentification and measurement of impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the following -- financial assets at amortised cost.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:

¢ [2-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the }2 months
after the reporting date; and

« Lifetime ECLs; these are ECLSs that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured as 12-month ECLs:

» Financial assets that are determined to have a low credit risk at the reporting date; and
¢ Other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk
of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iil) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Company
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions, To the extent applicable, the Company has
applied the low credit risk assumption for the following classes of financial assets — cash at bank.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. In this regard, the Company has an internal
credit scoring system in place that analyses the credit quality of the counterparties accordingly. Such
credit scoring system takes into consideration both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,

based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, and also considers the
counterparties’ macroeconomic context.

The Company has elected the rebuttable presumption from 1IFRS 9 by assuming that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if the financial asset is more than 30 days past due,

Moreover, unless the low credit risk assumption is applied, if the counterparty becomes downgraded by
two notches (or more) based on the credit score assessment, the Company deems the financial asset’s
credit risk to have increased significantly.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

3 Material accounting policies {continued)

3.2

3.2.4

325

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Identification and measurement of impairment (continued)
Moreover, the Company considers a financjal asset to be in default when:

+  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
¢ The financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximuam period considered when estimated ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit risk.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events: significant financial difficulty; a breach of
coatract, such as a default or past due event; the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

For financial assets, the credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. ECLs represent the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights,

Under IFRS 9, the Company has incorporated forward-looking information, where applicable. A third
party provider has been engaged to provide forward-looking PDs and LGDs.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when it transfars the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers not retains substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of
the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created
or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability in the statement of financial
position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(and the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration

received (including any new asset obtained, less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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3.2

3235

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.0

3.7

Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a
portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are
not derecognised. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards would
include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions. The Company derecognises a
financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Redeemable shares

The Company classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of instruments.

The redeemable shares provide investors with the right to require redemption for cash at a value

proportionate to the investor’s share in the sub-funds’ net assets at the redemption date and also in the
event of the sub-funds’ liquidation.

The redeemable shares are classified as financial liabilities form the perspective of the Company and are
measured at the present value of the redemption amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks with original maturities of less than three months and margin
accounts. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares

The liability by the Company to holders of redeemable shares is presented in the statement of financial
position as “Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares” and is determined based on the
residual assets of the Company after deducting all other liabilities,

Interest income and dividend income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as it
accrues using the effective interest method and, where applicable, gross of withholding tax. Dividend
income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted
securities is the ex-dividend date and to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Company and these can be measured reliably.

Net changes in fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Net gains/losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all realised and
unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange differences but .excludes interest and dividend

income. Net realised gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method.
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3.8

3.9

310

3.1

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foresecable
future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant

doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Expenses

All expenses, including management fees, administration fees and custodian fees, are recognised in the
statsment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on an accrual basis and are accordingly
expensed as incurred. Formation expenses are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs,
when incurred, are immediately recognised in profit or loss as an expense.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in Malta, the Company is exempt from paying taxes on income,
profits or capital gains. Dividend and interest income received by the Company may be subject to
withholding tax imposed in the country of origin.

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective

Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

The amendments to 1AS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current
or non-current in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any
assef, liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
with early application permitted. The [ASB has aligned the effective date with the 2022 amendments to

IAS 1. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period, it is also required to apply the 2022
amendments early.

The directors of the parent company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an
impact on the group's consolidated financial statements in future periods.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of other Interational Financial Reporting Standards that were
in issue at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, but not yet eftective, will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.
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3.2

Adoption of new and revised Standards

Amendments to IAS I and IFRS Practice Statements — Disclosure of Accounting Policles

The amendments are intended to help preparers in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in their
financial statements.

The amendments amend IAS 1 in the following ways:

- An entity is now required to disclose its material accounting policy information instead of
its significant accounting policies;

- several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy information
and to give examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be material,

- the amendments clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the
related amounts are immaterial;

- the amendments clarify that accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial
statements would need it to understand other material information in the financial statements; and

- the amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information, such information
shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

In addition, TFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and examples to explain and

demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process® to aceounting policy information in order to
support the amendments to IAS 1.

Amendments to [AS 8 — Disclosure of Accounting Estimates

The amendments are intended to help entities distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates,

The changes to IAS 8§ focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

- The definition of a change in aceounting estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting estimates,
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty”.

- Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be
measured in & way that involves measurement uncertainty.

- The Board clarifies that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or a measurement

technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result
from the cotrection of prior period errors.

- A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the profit or loss
of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the current period is

recognised as income or expensse in the current period. The effect, if any, on future periods is recognised as
income or expense in those future periods.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of other International Financial Reporting Standards that were in
issue at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, but not yet effective, will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.




AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.lLec.

Notes {o the annual financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

3.13

Material accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of new and revised Standards

Amendments to IAS § — Disclosure of Accounting Estimates (continued)

- The Board clarifies that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or a measurement
technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result

from the correction of prior period errors.

- A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the profit or loss
of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the current period is
recognised as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any, on future periods is recognised as

income or expense in those future periods.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of other International Financial Reporting Standards that were in
issue at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, but not yet effective, will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.

Share capital

The Company’s capital is represented by the redeemable shares outstanding. The number of shares at the end of the

year is analysed below:

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

31 December 2023 Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

1 January units during the units during the  Units in issue at 31
2023 year year December 2023
Class A - EUR 72.705.9333 - - 72,709.9333
72,709.9333 - - 72,709.9333

31 December 2022 Units in issue at
1 January Subseriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at 31
2022 units during the year  units during the year December 2022
Class A—EUR 72,749.9333 - - 72,709.9333
72,709.9333 - - 72,709.9333
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Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

31 Pecember 2023 Units in issue at Subseriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at 31
1 January units during the units during the December

2023 year year 2023

Class A - USD 533.9051 147.4089 {(25.1437) 656.1703
Class AA-EUR 137.3635 7.7239 {38.6809) 106.6065
Class AAA - GBT 733111 - {42.2588) 31,0523
Class B - USD 5,679.2845 1,455.0027 (1,748.1374) 5,386.1498
Class BB — EUR 463.6770 44,4640 (195.3446) 312.7964
Class BBB - GBP 1,077.5115 200.3329 (544.8160) 733.0284
Class C-USD 572.2310 410.4132 (363.8325) 618.8117
Class CCC - GBP 392.5671 170.1481 (149.3883) 413.3269
Class D - USD 1,871.2330 168.6951 (818.6123) 1,221.3158
Class DDD - GBP 768,2095 - (239.1019) 529.1076
Class E - USD 1,719.8474 298.8139 (756.7068) 1,261.9545
Class EEE - GBP 861.3713 417.6656 {(656.3177) 622.7192
Class FFF - GBP 1,140.9813 1342818 (386.3447) 888.9184
Class 1- USD 14,0448 - (14.0448) -
15,305.7381 3,454.9301 (3,978.7304) 12,781.9578

31 December 2022 Units in issug at 1 Subscriptions of units ~ Redemptions of units Units in issue at 31
January 2022 during the year during the year December 2022

Class A - USD - 485.0442 134.5108 (85.6499) '533.9051
Class AA -EUR 139.3067 - {1.7432) 137.5635
Class AAA —GBP 66,7221 6.5890 - 733111
Class B - USD 6,409.2571 1,977.0025 (2,706.9751) 5,679.2845
Class BB - EUR 345.5526 178.7942 (60.6058) 463.6770
Class BBB — GBP £,258.1030 164.3379 (344.9294) 1,077.5115
Class C - USD 625.0012 601.6971 (654.4673) 572.2310
Class CCC - GBP 386.6245 168.6619 (162,7193) 3625671
Class D - USD 2,521.1977 81.8484 (731.8131) 1,871.2330
Class DDD - GBP 1,066.1947 58.681% {356.6668) 768.2095
Class E~USD 1,849.2536 350.5307 (479.9369) 1,719.8474
Class EEE - GBP 958.3128 111.7573 (208.6988) 8613713
Class FFF - GBP 1,262.5135 6423106 (763.8429) T 4,140.9813
Class | - USD - 14.0448 - 14.0448
17,373.0838 4,490.766% (6,558.1125) 15305.7381

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

31 December 2023 Units in issue at Subscriptions of Redemptions of
1 January units during the units during the Units in issuc at 31
2023 year year December 2023
Class B-EUR 83,301.8893 5,538.6726 (19,070.2770) 78,830.284%
Class C - EUR - 1,49%,7500 - 1,469.7500
Class D - TUR 12,227.9108 1,050.0000 (407.1448) 12,870.7650
95,589.8001 8,088.4226 (10,477.4188) 93,200.803%
31 December 2022 Units in issue at Subscriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at

| January 2022 units during the year  units during the year 31 December 2022

Class B~EUR 83,573.4926 3,291.6557 (3,503.2590} 83,361.8893
Class b - EUR 11,172.0000 2,368.1200 {1,312.2092) 12,227.9108
94,745.4926 5,659,7757 {4,815.4682) 95,585.8001
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AQA High Yield Bond Fund

31 December 2023

Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

i January units during the units during the Units in issue at 3%
2023 year year December 2023
Class A-EUR 176,152.2911 6,714.0591 (27,704.1310} 155,162,2192
Class B~ EUR 10,481.2981 - (6,616.7303) 3,864.5678
186,633.5892 6,714.0591 (34,320,8613) 159,026.7870
31 December 2022 Units in issue at Subscriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at 31
| Janvary 2022 units during the vear  units during the year December 2022
Class A-EUR 210,409.7184 1,060.04C0 (35,317.4273) 176,152.2911
Class B -EUR 11,738.8371 - (1,257.5390) 10,481,2981
222 148.5555 1,060.0000 (36,574.9663) 186,633.5892

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

31 December 2023

Class A - EUR

31 December 2022

Class A - EUR

AQA Unconstrained Fund

31 December 2023

Class A —USD
Class B - USD
Class C - EUR
Class D - EUR
Class F - GBP

31 December 2022

Class A — USD
Class B~ USD
Class C - EUR
Class D-EUR

Units in issue at Subseriptions of Redemptions of
1 January units'during the units during the Units in issuec at 31
2023 year year December 2023
136,856.0436 2,195.0000 {7,549.3030) 125,501.7406
130,856.0436 2,195.0000 (7,549.3030) 125,501.7406

Units in issue at

1 January Subscriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at 31
2022 units during the year  units during the year December 2022
152,480.3662 3,837.5040 {27.481.8266) 130,856.0436
152,480.3662 5,857.5040 {27,481.8266) 130,856.0436

Units in issue at Subseriptions of Redemptions of
1 January units during the units during the  Units in issue at 31
2023 year year December 2023
3,000.0000 - {3,000.0000) -
7.809.8141 8,257.9001 {6,187.2355) 9,880.4787
340.0000 1,009.4851 - 1,349.4851%
3,119.6026 8,375.8240 (2,750.5164} 8,744.9102
- 1,262.1416 (700.1317) 562,0099
14,269.4167 18,905.3508 {12,637.8836) 20,536.8839

Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

Units in issue at 31

| January 2022 units during the year  units during the year December 2022
3,000.00060 - - 3,000.0000

- 7,879.8784 (70.0643) 7,805.8141

340.0000 - 340.0000

- 3,147.2757 (27.6731) 3,119.6026

3,000.0000 11,367.1541 (97.7374) 14,269.4167
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Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

31 December 2023

Class I - USD
Class A -USD
Class AAA — GBI
Class B— USD
Class BB - EUR
Class BBB - GBP
Class C~USD
Class CCC - GBP
Class D - USD
Class DDD - GEBP
Class E — USD
Class EEE — GBP
Class FFF - GBP

31 December 2022

Class I-USD
Class A— USD
Class AAA —GBP
Class B~ USD
Class BB — EUR
Class BBB —GBP
Class C-USD
Class CCC - GBP
Class D - USD
Class DDD - GBP
Class E - USD
Class EEE ~ GBP
(lass FEFF — GBP

Units in issue at
1 January
2023

Subscriptions of
units during the

Redemptions of
units during the

Units in issuc at 31

year year December 2023

1,517.2698 85762 (135.8430) 1,390.0030
253,1863 - (11.8136) 241.3727
3,928,4048 1548419 (1,767.5810) 2,915.6057
282.5363 - (80.1268) 202.4095
955.5537 20.9399 (412.4183) 5640753
195.7462 234496 (105.4035) 113.7923
232.0546 254201 (18.9718) 238,5029
1,349.0151 21.7882 (327.8323) 1,642.9710
27253577 - (0.5339) 272.0238
632.8540 - (137.0678) 495.7862
751.8420 - {131.4149) 6204271
155.71G0 - (25.9353) 129.7747
10,526.7305 855.0159 (3,154.9422) 8,226.8042

Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

Units in issue at 31

| January 2022 units during the year  units during the year December 2022
1,405.3659 1119039 - 1,517.2698
276.8406 - (23.6543) 253.1863
4,035.4406 1,566.2915 (1,673,3273) 3,928.4048
2182222 167.6925 (43.3784) 282.5363
933.6580 3747318 (352.8361) 955.5537
296.0934 2223661 (322.7133) 195.7462
444 7087 37.6158 (250.2699) 232.0546
1,459.9130 267.4956 (378.3935) 1,349.0151
390.8746 21.3604 - (139.6773) 272.5577
8166719 347.7739 {331.5918) 632.8540
8454386 164.5569 (258.1535) 751.8420
64,7996 119.7102 {28.7998) 155.7100
11,188.0271 3,341.4986 (4,002.7952) 10,526.7303
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Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

31 December 2023

Class A -~ USD
Class AAA - GBP
Class B -USD
Class BB - EUR
Class BBB — GBP
Class C-USD
Class CCC - GBP
Class D - USD
Class DDD - GBY
Class E - USD
Class EE - EUR 28
Class EEE - GBP
Class FI'F - GBP

31 December 2022

Class A—USD
Class AAA - GBP
Class B-USD
Class BB - EUR
Class BBB —~ GBP
Class C~USD
Class CCC-GBP
Class D - USD
Class DDD - GBP
Class E—USD
Class EE -~ EUR 28
Class EEE - GBP
Class FFF - GBP

AQA Small-Cap Fund

31 December 2023

Class A -EUR

31 December 2022

Class A - EUR

Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

Units in issue at 31

1 January units during the units during the December
2023 year year 2023
382099 - (38.2099) -
6,257.7912 99.9641 (6,357.7553) -
330.5150 - © (330.5150) -
370.6371 - (370.6371) -
1,327.9505 (1,327.9503) -
303.3200 - (303.3200) -
25.0953 - (25.0953) -
190.5374 - {190.5374} -
540.9826 - (540.9826) -
9,385.0390 99.9641 (9,485.0031) -

Units in issue at

1 January Subseriptions of Redemptions of Units in issue at 31
2022 units during the year  units during the year Deacember 2022
28.5888 96211 - 38,2099
6,554.5726 £,569.9017 (1,866.6831) 6,257.7912
411.5890 26.8221 (107.8961) 3305150
336.8928 §2.2326 (48.4883) 370.6371
36.6740 - (36.6740) -
36.7774 - {30.7774) -
1,6422313 (314.2808) 1,327.9505
29.9750 (29.9750) -
303.3200 - - 303.3200
14.7000 10.3653 - 25.0053
161.6840 68.3678 (39.5144) 190.5374
1987536 342.2290 - 540.9826
9,755.7585 2,109.5696 {2,480.2851) 9,385.0390

Units inn issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

Units in issue at 31

1 January units during the units during the December
2023 year year 2023
39,998.2416 1,000.0060 (4,818.6580% 36,179.583¢6
39,998.2416 1,000.0000 {4,818.6380) 36,179.5836

Units in issue at

Subscriptions of

Redemptions of

Unilts in issue at 30

i January units during the units during the June
2022 year year 2022
45,866.5808 79398 (5.876.6790) 39.998.2416
435,866.9808 7.9398 (5.876.6790} 39,998.2416
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AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

31 December 2023

Class A - EUR

31 December 2022

Class A—-EUR

Units in issue a
1 January

2023

192,355.1036

Subscriptions of
units during the
year

5,120.0000

Redemptions of units
during the year

(8.445.0000}

Units in issue at
31 December 2023

189,030.1036

192,355.1036

3,120.0000

(8,445.0000}

189,030.1036

Units in issue at

1 January
2022

195,825.1036

Subscriptions of
units during the
year

3,650.0000

Redemptions of units
during the year

(7,120.0000)

Unifs in issue at 31
December 2022

192,355.1036

195,825.1036

3,650,0000

(7,120.0000)

192,335.1036

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

31 December 2023

Class A-EUR
Class B—EUR

31 December 2022

Class A—EUR
Class B~ EUR

AQA Selective Income Fund

31 December 2023

Class C -USD
Class C - USD
Class G- USD
Class C - USD

31 December 2022

Class C-USD
Class G- USD

27,702,1232

(1,906.0000)

Units in issue at Subseriptions of Redemptions of
1 January units during the units during the Elnits in issuc at 31
2023 year year December 2023
843.9940 - (843.9940) -
58,415.3440 - (58,415.5440) -
59,259.3380 - (59,259.3380) -
Units in issue at Units in issue at
1 January Subscriptions of  Redemptions of units 31 December
2022 wnits duriag the year during the year 2022
1,582.9810 - (738.9870) 843.9940
62,885.3440 - (4,470.0000) 58,413.3440
64,468.3250 - (5,208.9870) 59,259.3380
Units in issuc at Subscriptions of Redemptions of
1 January units during the units during the  Units in issue at 31
2023 year year December 2023
1,£51,808.7399 472,139.8677 (431,407.5200) 1,192,541.0876
- 5,343.8485 (6.9163) 5,336.9320
25,796.1232 128.4996 (470.0060) 25,454.6228
- 7,539.7327 (6.1472) 7,533.5835
1,177,604.8631 485,151.9485 (431,890.5837) 1,230,866.2279
Units in issue at Redemptions of
i January Subseriptions of units during the Units in issue at 31
2022 units during the vear year December 2022
1,218,126.4621 173,5030,0000 {239,817.7222) 1,151,808,7399

25,796.1232

1,245,828.5853

173,500.0000

(241,723.7222)

1,177,604.8631
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(@)

Share capital (continued)

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

31 December 2023 Units in issue at Redemptions of
1 January Subscriptions of units during the Units in issue at 31
2023 units during the year year December 2023
Class A-EUR 108,682.1855 4,501.0240 (19,259.9189) 93,933.2906
Class A - EUR - 59,709.2532 - 59,709,2532
108,682.1855 64,220,2772 (19,259.9189) 153,642.5438
31 December 2022 Units in issue at Units in issue at
! January  Subscriptions of units  Redemptions of units 31 December
2022 during the year during the year 2022

Class A -EUR 123.481.5468

6,054.1802

(20,853.5415)

108,682.1855

§23,481,5468

6,054.1802

(20,853.5415)

108,682.1853

The authorised share capital of the Company amounting to 10,000,001,000 shares has not been assigned
any nominal value, The paid-up share capital of the Company shall at all times be equal to the net asset

value of the sub-funds.

The Company was incorporated by the issue of 1,000 Founder Shares with nominal value of EUR 1 each,
which shares constitute a separate class of shares, being the Founder Shares, but which shall not constitute
a distinct sub-fund. The effect of the proceeds from the issue of the Founder Shares is reflected in the
combined amounts in these annual financial statements. The Founder Shares do not carry a right to
participate in any dividends or other distributions of the Company in respect of the sub-funds or in the

assets of the Company on a winding up.

The Investor Shares of each sub-fund participate solely in the assets of the respective sub-fund and in
any dividends, and, upon liquidation, in any distributions of the Company relating to the respective sub-
fund. The Investor Shares may be repurchased at the option of the holders thereof according to the
Articles and in accordance with any terms and conditions pursuant to which the Investor Shares are issued

and as stated in the Prospectus.

Management fees and other expenses

Management fees

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.5% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect
of Class A and 0.8% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class B as well as

reimbursement of cut-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 09,464 (2022: EUR 100,116), of which EUR 24,973 (2022: EUR 24,754) was due as at year-end.

48



AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements {continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

(b)

Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Management fees (continued)

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of up to 1.73% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of
Class A, AA, AAA, B, BB, BBB, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE shares as well as reimbursement of out-of-pociet
expenses. In respect of Class FFF, the investment manager receives a fee of up to 1,.23% per annum of the net asset
valug of the sub-fund as well as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 346,079 (20622: EUR 395,981), of which EUR 27,523 (2022; EUR 25,819) was due as at 31 December.

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of up to 1.8% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of

Class B and up to 1.4% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class D as well as
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 173,125 (2022: EUR 164,735), of which EUR 40,776 (2022: EUR 38,788) was due as at 31 December.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.5% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class

A and 0.8% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class B as well as reimbursement of out-
of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 Decembsar 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to

EUR 261,885 (2022: EUR 298,083), of which EUR 64,483 (2022: EUR 70,271) was due as af
year-end.

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 2% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund as well as
reimbursement of oui-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 285,882 (2022; EUR 308,412) of which EUR 71,875 (2022: EUR 72,327) was due as at year-end.

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The investivient manager receives a fee of 1.25% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of the
class A USD and 1.5% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of the Class B USD shares as well
as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 18,800(2022: £UR 6,974) of which EUR 1,322 (2022: EUR 3,473) was due as at year-end. As disclosed in the
directors’ report, the sub-fund re-launched on 24 November 2020 and the management fees
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Management fees (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund (continued)

incutred after such date will be waived until such time the nei asset value of the sub-fund exceeds
EUR Imillion or until further notice.

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.75% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in
respect of the class A, AA, AAA, B, BB, BBB, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE shares and 1% per annum
of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of the class [ shares as well as reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses. In respect of Class FFF, the investment manager receives a fee of up to 1.25% per
annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund as well as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 164,639 (2022: EUR 206,674y of which EUR 12,392 (2022; EUR 14,808) was due as at year-end.

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.75% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in
respect of the class A, AA, AAA, B, BB, BBB, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE shares as well as
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. In respect of Class FFF, the investment manager receives a fee

of up to 1.25% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund as well as reimbursement of out-of-pocket
expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 42,411 (2022: EUR 85,967) of which EUR Nil (2022: EUR 35,049) was due as at year-end.

AQA Smali-Cap Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 0.10% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in

respect of Class A and 1.0% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class B as well
as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 4,486 (2022: EUR 3, 798) of which FUR 1,148 (2022 EUR [,268) was due as at year-end.

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 0.18% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund as well
as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 40,943 (2022: EUR 38,943) of which EUR 10,645 (2022: ELUR 9,581) was due as at year-end.

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.8% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect
of the Class A EUR shares and 1.0% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of the
Class B EUR shares as well as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 24,317 (2022: EUR 61,582) of which EUR Nil (2022: EUR [2,705) was due as at year-end.
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5 Management fees and other expenses (continued)
(a)  Management fees (continued)

AQA Selective Income Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 0.6% per annum of'the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect
of C and of 1.2% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund in respect of Class G as well as
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. '

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to

EUR 780,989 (2022; EUR 752,103 of which EUR 195227 (2022: EUR 100,206y was due as at
year-end.

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The investment manager receives a fee of 1.5% per annum of the net asset value of the sub-fund as well
as reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, invesiment manager fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 157,733 (2022: EUR 171,243) of which EUR 46,373 (2022: EUR 40,056) was due as at year-end.

(b)  Administration fees

The administrator receives fees for each sub-fund based on the net asset value subject to a minimum fee.
The administrator is also entitled to receive agreed upon fixed fees for the preparation of unaudited
financial statements for the sub-fund, investor transactions and maintenance of investor accounts. The
administrator is also entitled to recover out-of-poclet expenses,

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.08% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 22,500 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 23,048
(2022: EUR 22,500) of which EUR 5,548 (2022: EUR 5,672) was due as at year-end.

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.05% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 20,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 38,074
(2022: EUR 34,139} of which EUR 8,542 (2022: EUR 8,808) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Administration fees (continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.05% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of ELR 20,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 19,932
(2022: EUR 20,000) of which EUR 4,931 (2022: EUR 5,041) was due as at yeat-end.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.08% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 22,500 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 23,004
(2022: EUR 23,817) of which EUR 5,846 (2022: EUR 6,176) was due as at year-end.

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.055% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 20,000 per anoum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 21,123
(2022: EUR 21,252) of which EUR 4,931 (2022: EUR 5,546) was due as at year-end.

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.080% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 22,500 per annum,

For the yeat ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 22,274
(2022:; EU/R 30,055) of which EUR 15,788 (2022; EUR 3,110) was due as at year-end. As disclosed in
the directors’ report, the sub-fund re-launched on 24 November 2020 and the administration fees incurred

after such date wiil be waived until such time the net asset value of the sub-fund exceeds EUR Imillion
or until further notice.

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.05% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 20,000 per annuim.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 38 246
(2022: EUR 32,509) of which EUR 8,448 (2022; EUR 8,432) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Administration fees (continued)

Cuastlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.08% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 25,000 per annum for the first EUR 50,000,000 assets under management, 0.07% of the net
asset value of the sub-fund for the next EUR 23,000,000 assets under management, 0.06% of the net asset
value of the sub-fund for the next EUR 25,000,000 assets under management, and 0.04% for the rest of
the assets under management in excess of EUR 100,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 26,879
(2022: EUR 30,969 of which EL/R Nil (2022: EUR 8,021) was due as at year-end.

AQA Small-Cap Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.04% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 15,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 20,756
(2022: EUR 76,000) of which EUR 3,167 (2022; EUR 5,033) was due as at year-end.

AQA Flexible Allocation Find

The administrator receives a fee of 0.05% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 22,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 adininistration fees for the sub-fund amounted to £EUR 25,001
(2022: EUR 25,138) of which EUR 1,090 (2022: EUR 2,650) was due as at year-end.

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The administrator recetves a fee of 0.06% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 23,000 per annum,

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 13,603
(2022: EUR 23,996 of which EUR Nil (2022: EUR 2,398) was due as at year-end.

AQA Selective Income Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.065% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of £UR 25,000 per annum for the first EUR 100,000,000 assets under management and 0.040% of
the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to an annual minimum fee of EUR 23,000 for amounts in
excess of EUR 100,000,000 assets under management in respect of each Class of Investor Shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 83,522
(2022: EUR 77,035) of which EUR 20,698 (2022: EUR 19,471) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Administration fees (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The administrator receives a fee of 0.065% of the net asset value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum
fee of EUR 22,000 per annumi.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, administration fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 25,906
(2022: EUR 22,043) of which £UR /1,525 (2022: EUR 5,590) was due as at year-end.

Custodian fees

AQA Interactive Allocation Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0,025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8,195 (2022:
EUR 7,845), of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at year-end.

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of ELUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8,200 (2022:
EUR 7,834}, of which EUR 569 (2022: EUR {,803) was due as at year-end.

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8,195 (2022:
LEUR 7,845), of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at year-end.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per anaum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custedy fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 7,607 (2022;
EUR §,414), of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 2,372) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Custodian fees (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EU/R & 134 (2022:
EUR 7,845) of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at year-end.

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agrecment, The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 9,480 (2022: EUR
7,537y of which EUR 620 (2022: EUR 562) was due as at year-end.

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The custodian receives a fee 0£'0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR § 183
(2022: EUR 7,856) of which EUR 552 (2022: EUR 1,803) was due as at year-end,

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The custodian receives a fee 0f 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,154 per annum,

For year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 6,613
(2022; EUR 7,734) of which EUR 664 (2022: EUR [/,802) was due as at year-end.

A04 Small-Cap Fund

The custodian reeeives a fee 0of 0.025% per annutm of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,154 per annum.

For year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8215
(2022: EUR 7,843} of which EUR 608 (2022: EUR: /,803) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Custodian fees {continued)
AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8,175
(2022: EUR 7,830) of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at year-end,

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agteement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,230 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 3,547
(2022: EUR 7,83(h of which EUR 1,529 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at vear-end.

AQA Selective Income Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.

For the year ended 3| December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 8329
(2022: EUR 7,830) of which EUR 568 (2022: EUR 1,802) was due as at year-end.

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The custodian receives a fee of 0.025% per annum of the sub-fund’s total financial assets as per custodian
agreement. The custody fee is subject to a minimum fee of EUR 7,250 per annum.,

For the year ended 31 December 2023, custodian fees for the sub-fund amounted to EU/R 8176
(2022: EUR 7,831y of which EUR 549 (2022: EUR 1,804) was due as at year-end.

Shareholder service fees
AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.50% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund. The shareholder service fee is subject to a minimum of EUR 30,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 33,155
(2022: EUR 33,287y of which EUR 8,324 (2022: EUR 8,159) was due as at year-end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Shareholder service fees (continued)
Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per anuum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund. The shareholder service fee is subject to a minimum of EUR 40,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 60,728
(2022: EUR 69,134) of which EUR 15,135 (2022: EUR [3,432) was due as at year-end.

AQA Colombo Fxtra Return Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund. The shareholder service fee is subject to a minimum of EUR 60,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 59,835
(2022: EUR 59 835) of which EUR 14,959 (2022: EUR 14,959) was due as at year-end.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The investment manager receives shareholder service fees of up to 0.50% per annum of the net asset’
value of the sub-fund.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 80,816 (2022: EUR 21,559) of which EUR 19,602 (2022: EUR 21,392) was due as at year-end.

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 30,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 42,998 (2022: EUR 46,149} of which EUR 10,781 (2022: EUR 10,733) was due as at year-end.

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The investment manager receives a sharcholder service fee of up to 0.25% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-~-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 35,000 per annum,

For the year ended 31 December 2023, sharcholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 48,433 (2022; EUR Nily of which EUR 9,957 (2022: EUR Nil) was due as at year-end.

57



AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

(d)

Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Shareholder service fees (continued)
Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 40,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 39,797 (2022: EUR 39,104) of which EUR 9,673 (2022: EUR 9,580) was due as at year-end.

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 40,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 33,308 (2022: EUR 39,44%) of which EUR Nil (2022: EUR 9,973} was due as at year-end.,

AQA Small-Cap Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 25,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to
EUR 15,000 (2022: EUR [6,048) of which EUR 4,192 (2022: EUR 4, { /() was due as at year-end.

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund
The investment manager receives no shareholder service fee on the sub-fund.
AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.80% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of EUR 35,000 per anoum

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to

. EUR 16,111 (2022: EUR 34,904) of which EUR Nil (2022; EUR 8,726) was due as at year-end.

AQA Selective Income Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fees of up to 1.00% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, shareholder service fees for the sub-fund amounted to

EUR 650,369 (2022: EUR 510,416) of which EUR [59,110 (2022; £UR 292,086) was due as at year-
end.
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Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Shareholder service fees (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The investment manager receives a shareholder service fee of up to 0.30% per annum of the net asset
value of the sub-fund subject to a minimum fee of £UR 30,000 per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 shareholder service fees for sub-fund amounted to EUR 40,373
(2022: EUR 34,171 of which EUR 11,400 (2022: EUR 7,815) was due as at year-end.

Performance fees

Inter-Active Allocation Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 5% on the appreciation in the net asset value of
the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM"), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class.

For the vear ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no performance fees were incurred by the sub-fund.

Castlestone FAANGH UCITS Fund

The investment manager does not receive a performance fee on the sub-fund.

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 15% on the appreciation in the net asset value of
the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM?"), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class,

For the year ended 31 December 2023, performance fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 25,169
(2022: EUR Nil) of which EUR Nil (2022: EUR Nil) was due as at year-end.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 3% on the appreciation in the net asset value of
the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM™), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of Investor Shares in issue for each class.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, performance fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 25,688
(2022: EUR Nil) of which EUR 25,688 (2022: EUR Nif) was due as at year-end.
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(e)

Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Performance fees (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 20% on the appreciation in the net asset valus of
the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM™), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, performance fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 42,464
(2022: EUR Nily of which EUR 42,364 (2022: EUR Nil) was due as at year-end.

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 10% on the appreciation in the net asset value of
the sub-fund over the'previous High Watermark (“HWM?™), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no performance fees were incurred by the sub-fund.
Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The investment manager does not receive a performance fee on the sub-fund.

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The investment manager does not receive a performance fee on the sub-fund.

AQA Smal-Cap Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee in respect of each Investor Share outstanding on

each Valuation Point equal to 20% of the amount by which the NAV per Share exceeds the Base Net
Asset Value per Share.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no performance fees were incurred by the sub-fund.
AQd Flexible Allocation Fund

The investment manager does not receive a performance fee on the sub-fund.

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 15% on the appreciation in the net asset value of

the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM™), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class,

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no performance fees were incurred by the sub-fund.
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(¢)

(2)

Management fees and other expenses (continued)
Performance fees (continued)
AQA Selective Income Fund

The investment manager does not receive a performance fee oo the sub-fund.

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The investment manager receives a performance fee of 15% on the appreciation in the net asset value of
the sub-fund over the previous High Watermark (“HWM'"), as defined in offering supplement, multiplied
by the number of investor shares in issue for each class of investor share.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, performance fees for the sub-fund amounted to EUR 26,158
(2022: EUR Nil) of which EUR 7,393 (2022: EUR Nily was due as at year-end.

Audit and non-audit fees

Fees in relation to the audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 (inclusive of VAT) amounted to EUR 84,695 (2022: EUR 69,357). These fees are allocated equally

to the sub-funds. No other fees are chargeable by the auditors in relation to the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: EUR Nil).

Contingent deferred sales charge/(income)

The Investment Manager receives Contingent Deferred Sales Charges (“CDSC”) for the Castlestone Sub-
Funds.

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

Upon subseription, the investment manager receives a CDSC of up to 6% of the Net Asset Value
attributable to each subscription in respect of Class B, BB and BBB shares, and up to 4% of the Net Asset

Value attributable to each subscription in respect of Class D and DDD shares, Classes A, AA AAA, C,
CCC, E, EEE and FFF are not subject to a CDSC.

For the period ended 31 December 2023, Contingent Deferred Sales charge for the Sub-Fund amounted
to EUR 10,958 (2022 contingent Deferred Sales Income EUR 64,895),

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

Upon subscription, the investment manager receives a CDSC of up to 6% of the Net Asset Value
attributable to each subscription in respect of Class B, BB and BBB shares, and up to 4% of the Net Asset

Value attributable to each subscription in respect of Class D and DDD shares. Classes A, AAA, C, CCC,
E, EEE and FFF are not subject to a CDSC.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Contingent Deferred Sales Income for the Sub-Fund amounted
to EUR 57,282 (2022: EUUR 352,981).
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5.

(g

(h

Management fees and other expenses (continued)

Contingent deferred sales charge/{income) (continued)

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

Upon subscription, the investment manager receives a CDSC of up to 6% of the Net Asset Value
attributable to each subscription in respect of Class B, BB, BBB, C and CCC shares, and up to 4% of the

Net Asset Value attributable to each subscription in respect of Class D, DDD, E and EEE shares. Classes
A and AAA are not subject to a CDSC.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Contingent Deferred Sales Income for the Sub-Fund amounted
to EUR 237,837 (2022: Contingent Deferred Sales Income EUR 44,195).

Ongoing sales charge
The Castlestone Sub-Funds are subject to an ongoing sales charge,
Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The Sub-Fund shall pay an ongoing sales charge of up to 1% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund in respect of
Class B, BB, BBR, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE Shares, paid monthly in arrears. The ongoing sales
charge shall be payable to the Investment Manager and ultimately paid to sub-distributors or financial
advisors and/or other distributor counterparties (whether or not affiliated with the Sub-Fund) who are
responsible for the sale of these particular share classes and/or malking the share classes easily accessible
to investors. For the year ended 31 December 2023, ongoing sales charge amounted to
EUR 176,443¢(2022: EUR 189,556). This is disclosed within other fees and charges in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The Sub-Fund shall pay an ongoing sales charge of up to 1% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund in respect of
Class B, BB, BBB, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE Shares, paid monthly in arrears. The ongoing sales
charge shall be payable to the Investment Manager and ultimately paid to sub-distributors, financial
advisors, and/or other distributor counterparties (whether or not affiliated with the Sub-Fund) who are
responsible for the sale of these particular share classes and/or making the share classes easily accessible
to investors. TFor the year ended 31 December 2023, ongoing sales charge amounted to
EUR 74,951 (2022: EUR 94,946). This is disclosed within other fees and charges in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The Sub-Fund shall pay an ongoing sales charge of up to 1% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund in respect of
Class B, BB, BBB, C, CCC, D, DDD, E and EEE Shares, paid monthly in arrears. The ongoing sales
charge shall be payable to the Investment Manager and ultimately paid to sub-distributors, financial
advisors, and/or other distributor counterparties (whether or not affiliated with the Sub-Fund) who are
responsible for the sale of these particular share classes and/or making the share classes easily accessible
to investors. For the year ended 31 December 2023, ongoing sales charge amounted to
EUR 22,826 (2022. EUR 42,868). This is disclosed within other fees and charges in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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6 Taxation

The Company

In terms of current Maltese fiscal legislation, collective investment schemes are classified as either
‘prescribed’ or ‘non-prescribed’ funds.

A collective investment scheme which declares that the value of its assets situated in Malta aflocated
thereto for the purpose of its operations does not exceed eighty-five per cent of the value of its total assets
is treated as a non-prescribed fund. Accordingly, the sub-funds within the Company are exempt from
Maltese income tax except in respect of any income from immovable property situated in Malta,

Capital gains, dividends, interest and any other incotme from foreign investments held by the sub-funds
within the Company may nonetheless be subject to tax imposed by the country of origin concerned and
any such taxes are not recoverable by the sub-funds within Company or by the members.

Members not resident in Malta

Capital gains accruing to members not resident in Malta upon a redemption or transfer of shares or upon
a distribution on a winding-up of the Company are not subject to tax in Malta.

However, the redemption or transfer of shares and any distribution on a winding-up of the Company may
result in a tax Hability for the members according to the tax regime applicable in their respective countries

of incorporation, establishment, residence, citizenship, nationality or domicile, or other relevant
jurisdiction.

Wiihlolding fax expense

Certain interest income received by the Company is subject to withholding tax imposed in the country of
origin.
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Year ended 31 December 2023

8

3.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023;

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2023 EUR of portfolio of net assets
%o %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated
marlket
Corporate bonds 3,477,824 63.79 50.94
Equity 229,097 420 3.36
Exchange traded funds 1,628,909 20.88 23.86
Collective investment schemes 116,202 2.13 1.70
5,452,032 100.00 79.86
Derivatives assets
Futures - - -
5,452,032 100.00 79.86
Total Percentage of Percentage
31 December 2023 total liabilities of net assets
EUR o o
0 o

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Derivatives

Futures -

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated
mariet
Corporate bonds 2,936,170 60.88 4521
Equity 345,620 7.17 5.32
Exchange traded funds 1,438,535 29 .83 2215
Collective investment schemes 102,025 212 1.57
4,822.350 100.00 74.25
Derivatives assets _
Futures - - -
4,822 350 100.00 74.25
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8 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Total Percentage of Percentage
31 December 2022 total liabilities of net assets
EUR o y
1] 0
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivatives
Futures 45,500 45.09 0.70
45,500 45.09 0.70

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Percentage of

Total . Percentage of
31 December 2023 EUR portfolol/(: net assets %
EU non-Eurozone - - -
United States 472,825 8.67 6.93
Other - - -
5,452,032 100.00 79.86
Percentage of
Total portfolio Percentage of
31 December 2022 EUR % net assets %
Eurozone 4,476,730 93.71 68.93
EU non-Eurozone - - -
United States 310,845 6.51 479
Other (10,725) (0.22) (0.17)
4,776,850 109.00 73.55
Investment in future and options contracts 2023
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount -
Investment in future contracts 2022
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or {oss EUR
Notional amount 710,150
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments {(continued)

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund (continued)

11.73% (2022: 12.63%) of t'he sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months ot less,

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023;

31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated
market

Equity

Corporate Bonds

Collective investment schemes

Derivatives assets

Forward contracts

31 December 2023

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivatives

Forward contract

Total Percentage Percentage

EUR of portfolio of net assets

% Y

18,632,919 94.55 92,90

640,206 325 3.19

445,260 2.26 222

19,718,385 100.06 98.31

19,718,385 100.06 98.31

Total Percentage of Percentage

. total liabilities of net assets
EUR

GAJ 9 p]

12,449 8.93 0.06

12,449 8.93 0.06
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8  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1  Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund (eontinued)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated

market
Equity

Collective investment schemes

Derivatives assets

Forward contracts

31 December 2022

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss
Derivatives
Forward contract

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets

% %

16,441,563 98.30 98.45
282,377 1.69 1.69
16,723,940 99.99 100,14
1,530 0.01 0.01
16,725,470 100.00 100.15
Percentage of Percentage

r[};%;l total liabilities of net assets

% %

16,739 1.63 0.10
16,739 1.63 0.10

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

31 December 2023

Eurozone
United States
Other

Percentage of

Total ortfolio Percentage of net
EUR p N assets %

%o
361,393 1.83 1.80
15,316,803 77.73 76.37
4,027,738 20.44 20.08
19,705,936 100.00 98.25
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund (continued)

Percentage of

Total ) Percentage of net
202 ] =

31 December 2022 EUR portfel;; assets %
Eurozone 499,300 2.99 2,99
United States 12,440,498 74.46 74.49
Other 3,768,933 22.55 22.57
16,708,731 100.00 100.05

Investment in forwards contracts 2023
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 6,586,771
Investment in forwards contracts 2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 468,744
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 4,980,862

0.06% (2022: 0.09%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 moaths or less.

As described more fully in note 3.2.3, it is not always possible to value investments in collective investment
schemes based on independently audited priced net assets values especially, as at year-end of certain
underlying collective investment schemes is not coterminous with that of the Company or in certain
instances where the year-ends are coterminous, independently audited financial statements are not readily
available as at the reporting date of the Cormpany. Consequently, the sub-fund’s investment carried at fair
value through profit and loss as at 31 December 2023 totalling EUR 445260 (2022
EUR 282,377), is based on the net asset value calculated by the administrator of such underlying collective
investment scheme.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1 Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments {continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated

market

Corporate bonds

Equity

Exchange traded funds
Collective investinent schemes

Derivatives assets

Futures

Options

Warrants

Contracts for Difference (CFDs)

31 December 2023

Financial liahilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivatives

Futures

Contracts for difference

Options

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets

Yo %

4,299,879 59.51 43 54
4,299,564 59.51 43,53
8.599.443 119.02 87.07
8,326 0.12 0.08
2,129 0.13 0.02
25,811 0.26 0.27
4,984 0.07 0.05
8,640,693 119.60 87.49
Percentage of Percentage of net

TEOIE;I total liabilities assets

Yo %

6,080 0.40 0.04
129,218 8.61 1.32
1,275,452 85.15 12.95
1,414,750 94.10 14.31
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Refurn Fund (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated market

Corporate bonds
Equity

Exchange traded funds
Collective investment schemes

Derivatives assets
Futures

Options

Warrants

Contracts for Difference (CFDs)

31 December 2022

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or toss
Derivatives
Futures

Contracts for difference

Options

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

31 December 2023

Eurozone

EU non-Eurozone
United States
Other

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets

% %o

1,889,943 26.29 21.68
4,746,241 66.03 54.44
362,675 5.05 4.16
123,578 192 1.42
7.122,437 99.09 81.70
27,590 0.38 0.32
27,964 0.39 0.32
10,333 0.14 0.12

- 0.00 0.00
7,188,324 100.00 82.46
Total Perce'nta.g_e.of Percentage of
EUR total liabilities net assets

% %

33,801 2.10 0.39

- 0.00 0.00
1,498,395 93.09 17.19
1,532,196 95.19 17.58

Percentage of

Total ortfolio Percentage of net
EUR pot o assets %
Yo

5,960,518 §2.49 60.35
197,363 2.73 2.00
1,536,461 21.26 15.56
{468,399) (6.48) 4.74)
7,225,943 100.00 73.17
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8.1

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Sumnary of the com position of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Percentage of

Total . Percentage of net
C 22
31 December 20 EUR portfol;/n()) assets %
Eurozone 5,048,814 89.26 57.91
EU non-Eurozone 39,285 0.69 0.45
United States 1,319,756 23.34 15.14
Other (751,727) (13.29) (8.62)
5,656,128 100.00 64.88
Investment in futures contracts 2023
Financial assets at fair value through-profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 2,133,402
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount (134,268)
Investment in options
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 20,402
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount (1,728,698)
Investment in contracts for difference
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 242,521
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EUR

Notional amount

(490,756)
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8  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
8.1  Summary of the com position of the portfolio of investments {continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

Investment in futures contracts 2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 3,260,030
Financial Hability at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount (3,240,881)

Investment in options

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount ' 2,765,414
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount (41,221,619)

Investment in contracts for difference
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount

3.97% (2022 5.88%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.

As described more fully in note 3,2.3, it is not always possible to value investinents in collective investment
schemes based on independently audited priced net assets vatues especially, as at year-end of certain
underlying collective investment schemes is not coterminous with that of the Company or in certain
instances where the year-ends are coterminous, independently audited financial statements are not readily
available as at the reporting date of the Company. Consequently, the sub-fund’s investment carried at fair
value through profit and loss as at 31 December 2022 totalling EUR Nil (2022: EUR 123,578), is based on
the net asset value calculated by the administrator of such underlying collective investment scheme.
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8  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1  Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

Total Percentage of Percentage of net
EUR pertfolio assets
31 December 2023 %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated
market
17,354,472 97.18
Derivatives assets
Forward contracts - -
17,354,472 97.18

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage of  Percentage of net
EUR portfolio assets
31 December 2022 %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated
market
Corporate bonds 18,422,489 98.22
Derivatives assels
Forward contracts ' 989 0.01
18,423,478 98.23
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA High Yield Bond Fund {continued)

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Percentage of

Percentage of

31 December 2023 Total portfolio net assets
EUR % %
Eurozone 17,174,170 98.96 96.17
EU non-Eurczone 180,302 1.04 1.01
United States - - -
Other - - -
17,354,472 100.00 97.18
Percentage of Percentage of
31 December 2022 Total portfolio net assets
EUR % %
Eurozone 17,959,902 97.48 95.75
EU non-Eurozone 178,604 0.98 0.95
United States 92,876 0.50 0.50
Other 192,096 1.04 1.03
18,423,478 100.00 98.23
2023
EUR
Investment in Forward contracts

Notional amount -
2022
Investment in Forward contracts EUR

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount 537,350

* Negative notional amounts in financial assets pertain to open short derivative

positions at the reporting date.

1.12% (2022: 0.01%) of the sub-tund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.
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8.1

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded on a regulated market

Corporate bonds

Derivatives assets

Futures

Forward contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss
Derivatives

Futures

31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss traded on a regulated market

Corporate bonds

Derivatives assets

Futures

Forward contracts

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

The tables below set the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
EUR % %o
14,310,127 100.00 96.37
14,310,227 100.00 96.37
14,310,127 100.00 96.37
Total Perce.nta.g_e‘of Percentage of

EUR total liabilities net assets

' % o
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
EUR % %
13,655,856 99,99 97.35
13,655,856 99.99 9733
989 0.04 0.01
13,656,845 100.00 97.36
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund (continued)

Percentage of

Percentage of

T total liabilites net assets
% %
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss
Derivatives
Futures - - -
Issuers of the above financial assets are categorised as follows:
Percentage Percentage
31 December 2023 Total of portfelio of net assets
EUR % Yo
Eurozone 14,310,127 100.00 96,37
Other - - -
14,310,127 100.00 96.37
Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 Total of portfolio of net assets
EUR % %
Eurozone 13,178,091 96.49 93.95
EU non-Eurozone - - -
Other 478,754 3.51 3.41
13,656,845 100.00 97.36
Investment in forward contracts 2023
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount* -
Investment in forward contracts 2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount* 465,246

0% (2022: 3.33%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of [2 months or less.
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2023 EUR of portfolio of net assets
%o Yo

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Collective investment scheme 1,033,036 98.16 92.99
Exchange traded funds 19,744 1.84 1.74
1,072,780 100.00 94.73

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Collective investment scheme 729 826 82.63 79.39
Exchange traded funds 153,388 17.37 16.69
883,214 100.00 96.08
Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2023 EUR Yo %
Burozone 840,350 78.33 72.15
Other 232,430 21.67 19.95
1,072,780 100.00 92.10
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2022 EUR % %
Eurozone 812,573 92.00 88.39
Other 70,641 8.00 7.68
$83,214 100.00 96.07
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund (contined)

The sub-Funds did not invest in any debt instruments for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 and
therefore there are no investments that have a maturity of 12 months or less,

As described more fully innote 3.2.3, it is not always possible to value investments in collective investment
schemes based on independently audited priced net assets values especially, as at year-end of certain
underlying collective investment schemes is not coterminous with that of the Company or in certain
instances where the year-ends are coterminous, independently audited financial statements are not readily
available as at the reporting date of the Company. Consequently, the sub-fund’s investment cartried at fair

value through profit and loss as at 31

December 2023 totalling EUR 1,053,036 (2022:

EUR 729,826), is based on the net asset value calculated by the administrator of such underlying collective

investment scheme.

Cuastlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portfelio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
traded on a regulated market

Corporate Bonds

Equities

Derivatives assets

Forward contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Derivatives

Forwards

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of pertfolio of net assets
Yo Yo
749,790 8.57 8.46
7,996,717 91.49 90.15
8,746,507 100.06 08.61
8,746,507 100.06 98.61
Total Percentage of Percentage of
EUGR total liabilities net assefs
% Yo
5,512 8.41 0.06
5,512 8.41 0.06
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund (continted)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or toss
traded on a regulated market
Equities 9,473,046 99.99 99.69
9,473,046 99.99 99.69
Derivatives agsets
Forward contracts 760 0.01 0.01
9,473,806 100,00 99.70
Total Perce.nta_g.e.of Percentage of net
EUR total liabilities assets
% Yo
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives
Forwards 8,610 5.63 0.09
8,610 5.63 0.09
Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2023 EUR % Yo
Eurozone 97423 1.13 1.10
EUJ non-Eurozone - 0.00 0.00
United States 7,869,812 90.00 88,72
Other 773,760 3.87 8.72
8,740,995 100.00 98.54
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2022 EUR % %o
Eurozone 123,031 1.30 1.29
EU non-Eurozone 43,275 0.46 0.46
United States 9,227,213 97.49 97.10
Other 71,677 0.75 0.75
9,465,196 100.00 99.60
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8  Financial assets at fair value through profit or less (continued)
8.1 Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments {continued)

Custlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund (continued)

Investment in Forward contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Investment in forward contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss
Notional amount .

8.51% (2022: 0.08%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.

2023
EUR

2,960,368

2022

EUR

232,870

(2,561,943)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments {continued)

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investments due to its liquidation.

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

31 December 2022
Financial assets at fair value through profit or toss

traded on a regulated market

Collective investment schemes
Equities

Derivatives assets

Forward contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives

Forwards

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolic of net assets

Y% %%

153,613 515 5.13
2,829,796 94.84 94,42
2,983,409 99.99 99.55
400 0.01 0.01
2,983,809 100.00 99.50
1,578 2.15 0.05
1,378 2.15 0.05
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investments,

Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2022 EUR % %
Eurozone 86,870 2.91 2.90
EU non-Eurozone 124,685 4.18 4.16
United States 2,367,506 79.39 79.00
Other 403,170 13.52 13.45
2,982,231 100.00 99.51
As at 31 Decemnber 2023, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investments
2022
EUR
Investment in Forward contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount* 122,695
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount ‘ {469,368)

0.00% (2022: 0.04%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.

AQA Small-Cap Fund

* Negative notional amounts in financial assets pertain to open short detivative positions at the reporting date,

The tables below show the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2023 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% Yo
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 3,523,380 86.88 85.44
Equity 530,549 6.98 6.86
Collective investment scheme - - -
4,053,929 99.96 98.30
Derivative assets '
Warrants 1,530 0.04 0.04
4,055,459 100.00 98.34
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund (continued)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 398,960 9.34 8.84
Funds 3,871,086 90.66 85.74
4,270,046 100.00 94.58
Derivative assets
Warrants 168 0.00 0.00
4,270,214 106.00 04.58
Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2023 EUR Yo Yo
Eurozone 3,859.644 95.17 93.60
Other 195,815 4.83 4.75
4,055,459 100.00 98.35
Percentage Percentage
Total of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2022 EUR % Yo
Eurozone 4,024,963 94.26 36.15
Other 245251 5.74 543
4,270,214 100.00 94.58
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8
8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund (contipued)

Investment in warrant contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Investment in warrant contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

17.04% (2022: 9.34%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less,

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

2023
EUR

1,530

2022

EUR

168

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023:

Total Pcrcentage  Percentage of
31 December 2023 EUR of portfolio net assets
%o %o
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 23,518,328 100.00 97.05
23,518,328 100.00 97.05
Derivative asscts
Warrants - - -
Forward contracts - - -
23,518,328 100.00 97.03
Total  Percentage of  Percentage of
Financial liabilities at fair value through total liabilities net assets
profit or loss EUR Yo Yo

Futures
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund (continued)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss traded on a regulated market

Corporate bonds

Derivative assets
Warrants

Forward contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss

Futures

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

31 December 2023

Eurozone
Other

31 December 2022

Eurozone
Other

Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
20,983,445 100.00 96.06
20,983,445 100.00 96.06
198 0.00 0.00
692 0.00 0.00
20,984,335 100.00 96.06
Total Percentage of  Percentage of
total liabilities _net assets
EUR %a %
Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets
Yo %
23,518,328 100.00 97.05
23,518,328 100.00 97.05
Total Percentage Percentage
EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
20,411,017 97.27 93.32
573,318 2.73 2.62
20,984,335 100.00 95.94
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8  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1  Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund (continued)

Investment in open forwards

2023
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount .
Investment in open contracts 2022
Financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 176.145
2.38% (2022: 2.31%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.
AQA Selective Opportunities Fund
As at 31 December 2023, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investments.
The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:
Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 49,890 1.44 1.01
Equities 3,333,663 96.17 67.54
3,383,553 97.61 68.55
Derivatives assets
Forward contracts 77,008 2.22 .36
Contracts for Difference 3,872 0.11 0.08
Warrants 2,151 0.06 0.04
3,466,584 100.00 70.23
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8

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss

Derivatives

Contract for Difference

Options

As at 31 December 2023, the Sub-Fund did not hold any investments.

31 December 2022

Eurozone
United States
Other

Percentage Percentage

Total of total of net
EUR liabilities assets
% %

1,155,362 79.10 23.41
267,643 18.32 5.42
1,423,005 97.42 28.83
Total Percentage Percentage

EUR of portfolio of net assets

Yo %

2,101,404 102.83 42.57
737,481 36.09 14.94
(795,306) (38.92) (16.11)
2,043,579 100.00 41.40
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8  TFinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1 Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund (continued)

Investment in open options

31 December 2022

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional armount
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount (4,153,604)
Investment in open forwards contracts
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 3,137,505
Investment in open contracts for difference
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 3,058,167
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount -
None of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 meonths or less.
AQA Selective Income Fund
The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023;
Total Percentage Percentage
of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2023 EUR % %
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 84,862,745 73.66 64.85
Structured Products 16,909,087 14,68 12.92
Equity 3,257,543 2.82 2.49
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Collective Investment Schemes 10,299,090 8.94 7.87
115,328,465 100.10 88.13
Total  Percentage of Percentage of
¥inancial liabilities at fair.value through total liabilities net assets-
profit or loss EUR o o
Forward Contracts (119,742) (23.25) {0.09)
(119,742) (23.25) (0.09)
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8.1

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Selective Income Fund (continued)

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

Total Percentage Percentage
of portfolio of net assets
31 December 2022 EUR % %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 104,075,433 90.09 86.60
Equity 1,614,199 1.40 1.34
Other financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Collective investment schemes 9,832,804 8.51 8.18
115,522,436 100.00 96.12
Investment in Forward contracts 2023
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount (13,209,600)
2022
EUR

Investment in forward contracts
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Selective Income Fund (continued)

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as follows:

31 December 2023

Eurozone

EU non-Eurozone

United States
Other

31 Decetnber 2022

Eurozone

EU non-Eurozone

United States
Other

19.97% (2022: 23.78%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.

Total Percentage Percentage

EUR of portfolio of net assets

Yo %

27,729,161 24.07 21.19
72,585,350 63.00 55.46
14,894,212 12.93 11.38
115,208,723 100,09 38.03
Tota! Percentage Percentage

EUR of portfolio of net assets

% %

13,967,843 12.09 11.63
5,028,015 435 4.18
82,273,617 71.22 68.46
14,252,961 12.34 11.86
115,522 436 100.00 96.13

Fair values for investment securities that do not have quote prices in an active market are derived using a
valuation policy that mandates the use of prices obtained from independent data service provider and

underlying fund administrator.
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Summary of the com position of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Selective Income Fund (continued)

As described more fully in note 3.2.3, it is not always possible to value investments in collective investment
schemes based on independently audited priced net assets values especially, as at year-end of certain
underlying collective investment schemes is not coterminous with that of the Company or in certain
instances where the year-ends are coterminous, independently audited financial statements are not readily
available as at the reporting date of the Company. Consequently, the sub-fund’s investments in collective
investments schemes carried at fair vaiue through profit and loss as at 31 December 2023 totalling £UR
10,299,091 (2022: EUR 9,832,804), are based on net asset values calculated by the administrator of the
underlying collective investment scheme.

At 31 December 2023, two of the investments held by the AQA Selective Income Fund amounting to EUR
1,225,102 (2022: EUR 1,264,507) and representing (.94% (2022: 1.05%) of the net asset value of the sub-
fund is held in a structured product linked to unlisted securities. At the reporting date no third-party sources
prices were available at 31 December 2023. Given the illiquid nature of the product and the proximity to
the year end when the asset was purchased, the directors are of the opinion that using the cost value would
represent the best available fair value of the sub-fund’s investment at 31 December 2023.

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

The table below sets the composition of the portiolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2023;

Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2023 EUR of portfolio  of net assets
Y Ya
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 7,278,185 48.82 45,93
Exchange traded funds 999,722 6.71 6.31
Equities 6,603,858 4430 41.67
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Collective investment schemes 29,882 0.20 0.19
14,911,647 100.03 94.10
Derivative assets
Opticns - - -
Futures 7,604 0.05 0.05
14,919,251 100.08 94.15
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8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund (continued)

Percentage Percentage
Total of total
2 g
31 December 2023 EUR liabilities of net qssiﬁs
% °
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivatives
Options " : )
Futures 12,152 1.87 0.08
12,152 1.87 0.08

The table below sets the composition of the portfolio of the sub-fund as at 31 December 2022:

_ Total Percentage Percentage
31 December 2022 EUR of portfolio of net assets
% %
Financial assets at fair vatue through
profit or loss traded on a regulated market
Corporate bonds 4,236,944 44.58 40.20
Exchange traded funds 874,760 9.20 8.30
Equities 4,156,470 43.74 39.44
Other financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Collective investment schemes 147,150 1.56 1.40
9,415,324 99.08 89.34
Derivative assets
Options 68,059 0.71 0.65
Futures 20,375 0.21 0.1%
9,303,758 100.060 %0.18
Percentage
of total Percentage
31 December 2022 Total liabilities of net assets
EUR % %
Financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivatives
Options 29,716 12.30 0.02
Futures 1,710 0.74 0.00
31,426 13.01 0.02
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8 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

8.1 Summary of the composition of the portfolio of investments (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund (continued)

Issuers of the above financial instruments are categorised as fotlows:

Percentage Percentage

Total of portfelic of net assets

31 December 2023 EUR % %
Eurozone 8,397,871 56.33 53.00
EU Non-Eurozone 323,135 2.17 2.04
United States 4,156,708 27.88 2623
Other 2,029,385 13.62 12.81
14,907,099 100,00 94.08

Percentage Percentage

Total of portfolio of net assets

31 December 2022 EUR %o %
Eurozone 1,460,014 15.41 13.85
EU Non-Eurozone 4,682,310 49.43 44.43
United States 2,513,013 26.53 2385
Other 816,995 8.63 7.75
5,472,332 100.00 89.88

Investment open options

31 December 2023
Financizal assets at fair value through profit or loss

EUR
Notional amount
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount -
Investment in open futures contracts
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss EUR
Notional amount 2,133215
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount (496,552)
Investment in open options 31 December 2022
EUR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount
3,252,525
Financia! tiabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notional amount
(149,603}
Investment in open futures contracts '
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
EUR
Notional ameunt
1,408,312

99



AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.lLc.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

8.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Summary of the composition of the pertfolio of investments (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Sirategies Fund (continued)

4.70% (2022: -0.04%) of the sub-fund’s investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.

As described more fully innote 3.2.3, it is not always possible to value investments in collective investment
schemes based on independently audited priced net assets values especially, as at year-end of certain
underlying collective investment schemes is not coterminous with that of the Company or in certain
instances where the year-ends are coterminous, independently audited financial statements are not readily
available as at the reporting date of the Company. Consequently, the sub-fund’s investments in collective
investments schemes carried at fair value through profit and loss as at 31 December 2023 totalling EUR
29,882 (2022: EUR 147,150), are based on net asset values calculated by the administrator of the
underlying collective investment scheme.

As at 31 December 2023, one of the investments held by the AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund
amounting to EUR 29,8820 (2022: EUR 147,150} and representing 0.19% (2022: 1.40%) of the net asset
value of the sub-fund is held in a side pocket of an underlying fund. Such side pocket was created at the
level of the underlying fund during October 2020 to segregate any illiquid and hard to value investments.

Al sub-funds

As disclosed in note 10.2 to these financial statements, on 12 February 2020, each sub-fund (except for
AQA Unconstrained Fund and Small Cap Fund} has entered into a collateral loan facility whereby it
provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return for services
including borrowed securities and derivatives trading. Such assets could not be pledged to any other party.
The collateral loan facility has a maximum value of CHF 2,000,000, with the limit varying according to
the modifications made by the custodian as stipulated in such facility.

Transactions with related parties

(a) Directors

During the reporting year, directors’ remuneration (short-term) amounted to EUR 45,420 (2022: EUR
45,740) as disclosed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Directors are entitled

to a maximum of EUR 60,000 (2022: EUR 60,000 per annum) per annum. There were no other payments
to key management personnel as defined in TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

(b) Management fees

Total management fees for the reportting vear ending 31 December 2023, amounted to EUR 2,400,747
(2022: EUR 2,596,011) as disclosed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

fc} Administration fees

Total administration fees for the reporting year ending 31 December 2023, amounted to EUR 381,458
{2022: EUR 379,452) as disclosed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(d) Performance fees

Total performance fees for the reporting year-ending 31 December 2023; amounted to £UR 119,409 (2022;
EUR Nif) as disclosed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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10

10.1

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(e) Shareholder service fees

Total shareholder service fees for the reporting year ending 31 December 2023, amounted to

EUR 1,120,923 (2022: EUR 974,056) as disclosed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

() Founder shares

999 Founder Shares are held by AQA Capital Holding Limited, and 1 Founder share is held by AQA
Capital Limited as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Amounts payable to related parties are unsecured and interest free.
Financial instruments and associated risks

The Company is established as an investment company with variable share capital (“SICAV™) which
implies that financiat instruments are extensively used in the course of its routine business. The sub-funds
may invest in securities, deposits with credit institutions, investments in units of other Collective
Investment Schemes, financial derivative instruments or OTC financial derivative instruments for the
purposes of efficient portfolio management only and ancillary liquid assats.

Tactical allocation of sub-funds™ assets is determined by the investment manager, setting the risk

management limits in line with the investment strategy of each sub-fund at the prevailing market
circumstances.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the reporting date and the risk
management policies employed by the sub-fitnds are discussed below,

Market risk

Market risk encapsulates the potential for gains and losses in the valuation of the underlying securities,
including gains and losses arising from currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

The strategy of each sub-fund relating to the management of investment risk is derived from the sub-fund’s
investment objective, which is clearly outlined in the prospectus of the SICAV. The investment manager
monitors the sub-funds' market exposures within the pre-determined investment restrictions on a daily basis
whilst the overall market exposures are also monitored on a quarterly basis by the board of directors.

Details of the nature of the sub-funds’ investment portfolio as at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 8.

10.1.1 Currency risk

The sub-funds may hold foreign cash balances, as well as invest in financial instruments and enter into
transactions denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currency. Consequently, the
sub-~funds are exposed to risks that the exchange rate of the functional currencies refative io other foreign
currencies may change in a manner that have adverse effect on the value of that portion of the sub-funds’
assets denominated in currencies other than the functional currency,

The sub-funds’ currency risk is managed on a daily basis by investment manager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place.

As at the reporting date the sub-funds had the following currency exposures:
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks

10.1 Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

31 December 2023

Currency
US Dollars
Swiss Francs

31 December 2022

Currency

US Dollars
Swiss Francs

Castlestorie FAANG+ UCITS Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023

Currency
Euro

British Pounds
Swiss Francs

31 December 2022

Currency

Euro

British Pounds
CHF

Percentage of

total assets
EUR Y

756,085 10.99

Percentage of
total assets

EUR %
1,113,897 16.89
(6,418) (0.10)

Percentage of
total assets

EUR Ya
368,433 1.82
1,107,832 5.49
55 0.00

Percentage of
total assets

EUR %
1,242,343 7.01
14,258 0.08
52 0.00
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10-  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (continued)

10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

Percentage of
total assets

31 Decermber 2023 EUR %o
Currency

US Dollars 2,567,752 22.57
British Pounds 407,849 3.58
[srael Shekel 58,862 0.52
Hong Kong Dollars 40 0.00
Canadian Dollars 3177 0.03
Swiss Francs 25,963 0.23
Australian Dollars . 61,707 0.54
Turkish Lira 38,924 0.34

- Percentage of '
total assets

31 December 2022 EUR %%
Currency ‘

US Dollars 2,953,295 28.59
British Pounds 305,396 2.96
Israel Shekel 101,595 0.98
Hong Kong Dollars 93,504 0N
Canadian Dollars 21,524 0.21
Swiss Francs (3,816) (0.04)

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2023 EUR Y%
Currency

US Dollacs 542,805 2,97
Swiss Francs 1,375 0.01

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2022 EUR Y
Cutrency

US Dollars 974,173 5.16
Swisg Francs 1,290 0.01
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10
10.t

10.1.1

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Marlet risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

31 December 2023
Currency
US Dollars

Swiss Franes

31 December 2022
Curtrency
US Dollars

Swiss Francs

AQA Unconstrained Fund
{functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023
Currency

Euro

British Pounds

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency
Euro

Swiss Francs

EUR

376
(6,837)

EUR

1,097,752
(6.418)

EUR

410,504
14,414

(2,256)

EUR

182,013
(2,004)

Percentage of
total assets
%

0.00

(0.04)
Percentage of
total assets
%

7.77

(0.05)

Pereentage of
total assets
%

35.60
1.25

(0.20)

Percentage of
total assets
%

1935
(0.21)
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks {continued)

10.1  Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023

Currency
Buro

Great British Pound

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Cuwrrency

Euro
Great British Pound

Swiss Francs

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund
{functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023

Currency
Euro

Great British Pound

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022

Currency
Euro

Great British Pound

Swiss Francs

EUR

687
751,470

35

EUR
(7,108)

(6,826)
52

EUR

737
6,538

EUR

(2,528)
156,680
52

Percentage of
total assets
%

0.01
8.41

0.00

Percentage of
total assets
%

(0.07)
(0.07)
0.00

Perceritage of
total assets
%

3.05
27.06

Percentage of
total assets
%

(0.08)
5.10

0.00
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.1  Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2023 EUR Yo
Currency

US Dollars (349) (0.01)
Swiss Francs (83) (0.00)

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2022 EUR %
Currency

US Dollars (4,552) (0.10)
Swiss Francs (1,754) (0.04)

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2023 EUR 04
Currency

US Dollars 407,678 1.64
Swiss Francs 1,375 0.01

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2022 EUR %
US Doltars 398,717 1.82
Swiss Francs 1,290 0.01
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.1 Market risk (continued)

10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)
AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Currency

US Dollars
British Pound
Canadian Dollars -
Swiss Francs -
Australian Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar

31 December 2022 EUR
Currency

US Dollars (1,405,170)
British Pounds 931,356
Canadian Dollars (21,267)
Swiss Francs (105,126)
Australian Dollar 09,254
Hong Kong Dollar 65,737

AQA Selective Income Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023 EUR
Currency

Euro 14,866,871
British Pounds 9,493
Swiss Francs 50
31 December 2022 EUR
Currency

Euro 2,427,425
British Pounds 47
Swiss Francs : : 21

Percentage of
total assets
%o

Percentage of
total assets
%

2197
14.56
(0.33)
(1.64)
1.55
1.03

Percentage of
total assets
%

11.32
0.01
0.00

Percentage of
total assets
%

2.01
0.00
0.00
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1  Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2023 EUR 0/
Currency

US Dollars 4,906,929 29.76
Swiss Francs 662,163 4.2
British Pounds 301,727 1.83
Russian Rubles 108,487 0.66
Hong Kong Daollar 216 0.00
Danish Krone 168,738 1.02

Percentage of
total assets

31 December 2022 EUR %
Currency

US Dollars 2,478,462 22.99
Swiss Francs 1,190,138 11.04
British Pounds 594,857 5.52
Russian Rubles 71,295 0.66

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, had the functional cutrency of the Fund strengthened/weakened by 5%
in relation to the other currencies with all other variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of
investor shares would have moved by the amounts shown in the following tables.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
16.1  Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund
31 December 2023

Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund
(functional.currency of the sub-find is USD)

31 December 2023
Currency

Euro

British Pound

CHF

31 December 2022
Currency

Euro

British Pound
CHY

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

31 December 2023
Currency

US Dollars
Canadian Dollar
Swiss Francs
British Pound
Israel Shekel

Hong Kong Dollar
Australian Doilar
Turkish Lira

EUR

+/-37,804

EUR

+/-55,695
+/-321

EUR

+/-18,422
+/-55,392
+-3

EUR

+H-62,117
/=712
+/-3

EUR

+/-128,388
+/-159
+/-1,298
+{-20,392
+/-2,943
+1-2
+/-3,085
+/-1,946
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.1 Market risk {(continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

31 December 2022
Currency

US Dollars
Canadian Dollar
Swiss Francs
British Pound
Israel Shekel
Hong Kong Dollar

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

31 December 2023
Currency

US Dollars
Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

US Deollars

Swiss Francs

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

31 December 2023
Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs

EUR
+/-147 665
+/-15,270
+-5,080
+-4,675
+-1,076
+/-190

EUR

+/-27,140
+/-69

EUR

+/-48,709
+/-65

EUR

+/-19
+/-342

EUR

+/-54,888
+-321
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023
Currency

Euro

Swiss Francs
British Pound

31 December 2022
Currency

Euro

Swiss Franes

Castlestone Low Volatility Incaome UCITS Funid
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023
Currency

Euro

British Pound

Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

Euro

British Pound

Swiss Francs

Casftlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

3 December 2023
Currency
Euro

British Pound

31 December 2022
Currency

Euro

British Pound

Swiss Francs

EUR

+/-20,525
+-113
+/-721

EUR

+£-9,101
+/-100

EUR

+1-34
+/-37,574
+/-3

EUR
+/-355

+/-341
+/-3

EUR

+-37
+-327

EUR
+-126
+/-7,834

+/-3
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.1  Market risk {continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk {continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund
31 December 2023

Currency
US Dollars
Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

US Dollars
Swiss Francs

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

31 December 2023

Currency
US Dollars
. Swiss Francs

31 December 2022
Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

31 December 2023

Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs
Canadian Dollars
Hong Kong Dollar

EUR

+-17
+i-4

EUR

+/-228
+/-88

EUR

+/-20,384
+/-69

EUR

+/-19,936
+/-65

EUR
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (continued)
10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Selective Oppartunir'ies Fund {continued)

31 December 2022
Currency

US Doilars

Swiss Francs
British Pounds
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollars
Hong Kong Dollar

AQA Selective Income Fund
(functional currency of the sub-fund is USD)

31 December 2023

Currency
Euro

Swiss Francs
British Pounds

31 December 2022
Currency

Euro

Swiss Francs
British Pounds

AQA Global Dynamiic Strategies Fund

31 December 2023
Currency

US Dollars

Swiss Francs
British Pounds
Russian Rubles
Hong Kong Dollars
Danish Krona

EUR

+/-T0,259
+/-5,256
+/-46,568
+/-4,963
+/-1,063
+-3,267

EUR

+/-743,344
+/-3
+/-475

EUR

+-121,371
+/-2
+-1

EUR

+/-245,346
+/-33,108
+/-15,086
+/-5,424
+/-11
+/-8,437
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.}  Market risk (continued)
I10.1.1 Currency risk (continued)

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund (continued)

31 December 2022 EUR
Cwrrency

US Dollars +/-123,923
Swiss Francs +/-59,507
British Pounds +/-29,743
Russian Rubles +/-3,565

10.1.2 Interest rate risk

A substantial amount of certain sub-funds’ financial assets are interest-bearing securities and are hence
exposed to fair value interest rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest

rates.
Sensitivity analysis
The interest rate risk is managed on a daily basis by the investment manager in line with the pre-determined

policies and procedures in place. The overall interest rate risk is monitored on a quarterly basis by the
Board of Directors.

The table below sets out the impact on the relative net assets of each sub-fund as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 in the event that worldwide yield curves experience a parallel 25bps/50bps
shift upwards or downwards.

Yield Curve Shift

AQA Inter-Active Alloeation Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
+25bps +8,695
-25bps -8,695
+50bps +17,389
-50bps -17,389
31 December 2022 EUR
+25bps +7,340
~25bps ‘ ' ' 7,340 -
+50bps +14,681
-50bps -14,681
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (continued)
10.1.2 Interest rate visk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund
31 December 2023

31 December 2023 EUR
+25bps +1,601
~2Sbps -1,601
+50bps +3,201
-50bps -3,201

31 December 2022

The sub-fund did not hold any significant interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2022,

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
+25bps +10,750
-25bps ~10,750
+50bps +21,499
-50bps -21,499
31 December 2022 EUR
+25bps +4,725
-25bps 4,725
+50bps +9,450

-50bps -9,450
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1  Market risk (continued)
10.1.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)
AQA High Yield Bond Fund
31 December 2023

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps
31 December 2022

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

EUR

+43,386
-43,386

+86,772
-86,772
EUR

+46,056
-46,056

492,112
-92.112
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10 TFinancial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk {(continued)
10.1.2 Interest rate risk {continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond ¥und

31 December 2023 EUR
+25bps +35,775
-25bps 35,775
+50bps +71,551
-50bps -71,551
31 December 2022 EUR
+25bps +34,140
-25bps -34,140
+50bps +68,279
_SObpS -68.279

AQA Unconstrained Fuad

The sub-fund did not hold any significant interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022,

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

31 December 2022

EUR
+25bps +1,874
-25bps -1,874
+50bps +3,749
-30bps -3,749

The sub-fund did not hold any significant interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2022.

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The sub-fund did not hold any significant interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022. ‘ ' ’
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1  Market risk {continued)
10.1.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund

31 December 2023

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

31 December 2022

+25bps
-25bps

+30bps
-50bps

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

31 December 2023

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

31 December 2022

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

EUR

+8,808
-8.,808

+17,617
-17,617

EUR

+957
-997

+1,9935
-1,995

EUR

+58,796
-58,796

+117,592
-117,592

EUR

+52,459
-52,459

+104,917
-104,917
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (contitued)
10.1.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The sub-fund did not hold any significant interest-bearing assets as at 31 December 2023.

31 December 2022

+23bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

AQA Selective Income Fund

31 December 2023

+25bps
-25bps

+30bps -
-50bps

31 December 2022

+25bps
-25bps

+50bps
-50bps

EUR

+125
-125

+249
-249

EUR

+245,445
245,445

+490,889
-490,889

EUR

+260,189
260,189

+520,377
-520,377
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.1 Market risk (continued)
10.1,2 Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
+25bps +18,195
-25bps -18,195
+50bps +36,391
-50bps -36,391
31 Decerber 2022 EUR
+25bps +10,592
-25bps -10,592
+50bps +21,185
-50bps ' -21,185

10.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the underlying assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). These can arise from factors specific

to an individual investment or its issuer, better known as idiosyncratic risk, or from factors affecting total
market sentiment, better known as systemic risk.

Idiosyncratic price risk is managed through the construction of a well-diversified portfolio of investments
traded on various markets. Systemic risk cannot be eliminated completely by diversification and hence

investors in the respective sub-funds forming part of this SICAV are subject to the sub-fund’s relative
systemic market risk.

To the extent that its porifolio is concentrated in investments or other assets in or from a particular country,
market, industry, group of industries, sector or asset class, a sub-fund may be adversely affected by the
performance of those assets, may be subject to increased price volatility and may be more susceptible to

adverse economic, market, political or regulatory occurrences affecting that market, industry, group of
industries, sector or asset class.

As the majority of the sub-funds’ financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair value changes
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions wil! directly affect
the sub-funds’ financial statements,
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10

10.1

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk (continued)

10.1.3 Price risk (continued)

10.2

Sensitivity analysis

For financial instruments held or issued, the sub-funds has used sensitivity analysis techniques that measure
the change in the fair value of the sub-funds’ financial instruments at the reporting date for hypothetical

changes in the relevant market risk variables.

The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in the relevant risk variables are set out below. The amounts
generated from the sensitivity analysis are forward-looking estimates of market risk assuming certain
marlket conditions. Actual results in the future may differ materially from those projected results due to
the inherent uncertainty of giobal financial markets. The sensitivity analysis is for illustrative purposes
only, as in practice market rates rarely change in isolation and are likely to be interdependent.

The estimated change in fair values for changes in financial instruments prices, is based on an instantaneous
increase or decrease of 10% at the reporting date, with all other variables remaining constant.

AQA lnter-Active Allocation Fund
Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund
AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund
AQA High Yield Bond Fund

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

AQA Unconstrained Fund

Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund
AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund
AQA Selective Income Fund

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund
Castlestone Next Generation Fund
AQA Small-Cap Fund

Credit and settlement risk

- 2023
EUR

+/-545,203
+-1,971,839
+/-864,070
+-1,735,447
+/-1,431,013
+-107,278
+/-874,651
+1-2,351,833
+/-11,532,847
+/-1,491,925

+/-405,546

2022
EUR

+-477 685
+/-1,670,873
+/-565,613
+/-1,842,348
+/-1,365,684
+/-88,321
+/-946,519
+/-2,098,433
+/-204,358
+/-11,552,244
+-947,233
+/-298,233
+-427,021

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to honour an obligation or

commitment that it has entered into with the respective Fund.

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to failure of counterparty to honour its obligations to deliver cash,
securities and/or other assets as contractually agreed. Risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered
to be minimat due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers used.
Furthermore, the investment manager monitors the financial positions of the brokers used to further

mitigate this risk.
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10
10.1
10.2

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Marlcet risk (continued)

Credit and settlement risk (continued)

The sub-funds’ cash and cash equivalents are held mainly with Swissquote Financial Services (Malta) Ltd
for which no external credit rating is available. All sub-funds (with the exception of AQA Selective Income
Fund, Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund, Castlestone Next Generation Fund, Small Cap Fund and
Castlestong FAANG+ UCITS Fund) hold cash and cash equivalent balances with Banco Santander which
is rated BBB+ by a reputable credit rating agency. AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund also hold cash
balances with StoneX which is rates BB- by a reputable credit rating agency. Bankruptcy or insolvency of

the custodian may cause the sub-funds’ rights with respect to securities held by the custodian to be delayed
or limited.

The following tables detail, by credit risk rating grades, the gross carrying amount of cash held with the
custodian and brokers as at the reporting date.

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
BBB+ 129 359,217
Unrated 1,381,682 1,178,586
Gross/net carrying amount 1,381,811 1,737,803
AQA Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
1Zm ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
Unrated 293,302 283,119
Gross/net carrying amount 293,302 283,119
AQA Colombe Exira Return Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
1Zm ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
BBB+ 2,296,670 2,843,105
BB- 229,075 18,626
Unrated 95,931 198,892
Gross/net carrying amount 2,621,676 3,060,623
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 20202

10 Financial instruments and associated risls (continued)
10,2  Credit and settlement risk

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
BBB+ 17,251 6,492
Unrated ‘ 544,512 99,554
Gross/net carrying amount 561,763 106,046
AQA Hybrid Bond Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating gradas :
BBB-+ 17,254 377
Unrated 349,345 258,492
Gross/net carrying amount . 366,599 258,869 .
AQA Unconstrained Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
Unrated 86,966 3,011
Gross/net earrying amount 86,966 3,011
Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
Unrated 146,412 137,423
Gross/uet carrying amount 146,412 137,423
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 12m ECL
External rating grades
Unrated 24,156 47,383
Gross/net carrying amount 24,156 47,583
AQA Small-Cap Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
12Zm ECL 12m ECL
ﬂ External rating grades
BEB+ 806 13
Unrated 7.7007 227,282
Gross/net carrying amount 8,583 227,295
AQA Flexible Allocation Fund
2023 2022
EUR EUR
12m ECL 1Zm ECL
External rating grades
BBE+ 58,183 41,322
Unrated 752,372 489,325
Gross/net carrying amount 810,555 330,647
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

2023 2022

EUR EUR

12m ECL 12m ECL

External rating grades
BBB+ - 1,066,215
BB- - 1,603,496
Unrated 2 246,096
Gross/net carrying amount 2 2,913,807
AQA Selective Income Fund

2023 2022

EUR EUR

12m ECL 12m ECL

External rating grades :
Unrated 981,216 3,302,825
Gross/net carrying amount 981,216 3,302,825

AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

2023 2022

EUR EUR

12m ECL 12m ECL

External rating grades

BBB+ 232,292 100,898
Unrated 608,393 1,088,345
Gross/net carrying amount 840,685 1,189,443

The sub-funds measure credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at
default and loss given default. Management considers both historical analysis and forward-looking
information in determining any expected credit loss. In the opinion of management, the probability of
default is considered to be close to zero as all counterparties (even for unrated balances) have a strong
capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant

to the respective sub-fund.
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10
10.2

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 1,304,133
Cash at bank-Foreign 77,678
' 1,381,811

31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR £,172,091
Cash at bank-Foreign 565,712
1,737,803

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return
for setvices including borrowed securities and derivatives trading. The sub-fund’s cash balances did not

include margin held with other brokers at the end of the reporting year transferred as collateral against
trade derivatives (2022: EUR 19,837},

Castlestore FAANG+ UCITS Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 235,290
Cash at bank-Foreign 58,012

293,302
31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 274,561
Cash at bank-Foreign 8,358

283,119

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading.

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 681,321
Cash at bank-Foreign 1,940,355

2,621,676
31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR : . . 426,796
Cash at banl-Foreign 2,633,827

3,060,623
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2 Credit and seitlement risk (continued)

AQA Colombe Extra Return Fund (continued)

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading. The sub-fund’s cash balances include
an amount of EUR 2,117,733 (2022: EUR 2,013,843) comprising margin held with other brokers at the end
of the reporting year transferred as collateral against traded derivatives.

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 558,871
Cash at bank-Foreign 2,829

561,763
31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR , 106,436
Cash at bank-Foreign (390)

106,046

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in retum
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading. As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s
cash balances did not include a margin held with other brokers at the end of the reporting year transferred
as collateral against traded derivatives {2022: EURS50,000).

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR. 373,060
Cash at bank-Foreign (6,461)

366,599
31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 241,042
Cash at bank-Foreign 17,827

258,869

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility whereby
it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return for services
including borrowed securities and derivatives trading.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Uncenstrained Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (curretcy of the sub-fund) 84,713
Cash at bank-Foreign 2,253
86,966

31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 352
Cash at bank-Foreign 2,659
3,011

The Sub-Fund did not hold any cash collateral with the custodian at the end of the reporting year (2022:
EUR Nil}.

Castlesione Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 143,990
Cash at bank-Foreign 2,422

146,412
31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at banl-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 143,454
Cash at bank-Foreign (6,031)

137,423

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2 Credit and settlement risk {continued)

Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank- USD (currency of sub-fund) 16,882
Cash at bank- Foreign 7,274

24,156
3§ December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank- USD (currency of sub-fund) 46,922
Cash at bank- Foreign 661

47,583

The Sub-Fund did not hold any cash collateral with the custodian at the end of the reporting period (2022:

EUR Nil)

AQA Small-Cap Fund .
31 December 2023 EUR
Casgh at banl-EUR 9,015
Cash at bank-Foreign (432)

8,583

31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at banl-EUR 233,601
Cash at bank-Foreign (6,306)
227,295

The Sub-Fund did not hold any cash collateral with the custodian at the end of the reporting peried (2022:
EUR Nily.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2  Credit and settlerment risk (continued)
AQA Flexible Allocation Fund
31 December 2023
Cash at bank-EUR
Cash at bank-Foreign
" 31 December 2022

Cash at bank-EUR
Cash at bank-Foreign

EUR

762,488
48,067

810,555

EUR

490,251
40,396

530,647

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return

for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading.

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund
31 December 2023

Cash at bank-EUR
Cash at bank-Foreign

31 December 2022

Cash at bank-EUR
Cash at bank-Foreign

EUR

EUR

1,139,791
1,776,016

2,915,807
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16
10.2

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund (continued)

The Sub-Fund did not hold any cash collateral with the custodian at the end of the reporting period (2022
EUR Nil)

AQA Selective Income Bond Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 899,833
Cash at bank - Foreign 81,383
981,216

31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-USD (currency of the sub-fund) 3,309,754
Cash at bank - Foreign (6,929)
3,302,825

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custody in return
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading,

AOA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

31 December 2023 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 632,941
Cash at bank-Foreign 207,744
840,685

31 December 2022 EUR
Cash at bank-EUR 812,625
Cash at bank-Foreign 376,818
1,189,443
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10
10.2

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit and settlement risk (continued)
AQA Global Dynamiic Strategies Fund (continued)

As disclosed in previous pages, from the current year, the sub-fund entered into a collateral loan facility
whereby it provided its custodian with a general lien over all claims and securities held in custedy in return
for services including borrowed securities and derivatives trading. The sub-fund’s cash balances include
an amount of EUR 42,740 (2022: EUR 68,976) comprising margin held with other brokers at the end of
the reporting year transferred as collateral against traded derivatives.

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

Asat 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 50.92% (2022: 45.21%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of Percentage Fxposure of
total net assets total net assets

% %

AA+ 0.62 -
A- 5.36 5.64
BBB 2.87 8.03
BBB- 591 3.84
BB+ 8.88 5.86
BB- 9.98 8.71
BB 3.55 1.54
B+ 2.91 -
B - 2.85
NR 10,84 8.75

Cuastlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 3.19% (2022: NIL) of its total
net assets. The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of Percentage Exposure of
total net assets total net assets

% %o

NR 319 -
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 43.54% (2022: 19.28%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage exposure Percentage exposure
of total net assets of total net assets

% %

AAA 0.39 -
A- 1.00 3.13
BBBE- 3.07 -
BB+ 4.36 -
BB- 4.94 2.16
BB 5.75 6.62
B+ 1.78 2.27
B 2.68 1.06
CC+ - 0.95
CC- 0.20 -
NR © 1937 3.09
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 97.18% (2022: 98.22%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments are summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of Percentage Exposure
total net assets of total net assets

% %

A+t - 1.04
A- 1.10 1.02
A - 1.36
BBB 1.64 4.68
BBB- 7.31 12.22
BB+ 5.07 3.61
BB- 19.16 24.17
BB 23.20 14.47
B 9.17 4.93
B+ 4,45 0.90
CCC+ - 8.44
NR 26.08 21.38

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

Asat 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 96.38% (2022: 97.37%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments are summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of Percentage Exposure
total net assets of total net assets

%a %

A - .82
BBB+ - 341
BBB 3.48 7.66
BBB- 7.97 8.35
BB+ 5.00 1.42
BB- 18.58 27.92
BB 23.20 11.88
B+ 8.70 -
B 9.63 329
CCC+ - 7.09
NR : : 19.82 - 24,51
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the sub-fund had no exposure to debt securities.

Castlestone Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 8.45% (2022: NIL) of its total

net assets. The credit quality of these investments are summarised below:

31 December 2023

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of
total net assets

%

NR 8.45

Cuastlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

31 December 2022
Percentage Exposure
of total net assets

%

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the sub-fund had no exposure to debt securities.

AQA Small-Cap Fund

As at 31 December 2023 the sub-fund fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 85.44% (2022; §.84%)

of its total net assets, The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:

31 December 2023

Credit Rating Percentage Exposure of
total net assets

%

A- 4.71
BBB- 9.45
BB- 31.95
BB -
B+ 9.63
B 4.84
NR 24.86

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

31 December

2022

Percentage Exposure of
total net assets

%

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 97.03% (2022: 96.06%) of its

total net assets. The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:
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Year ended 31 December 2023

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund (continued)

Credit Rating

A+
BBB+
BBB-
BBEB
BB+
BB-
BB
B+

B
CCC+
NR

31 December 2023
Percentage exposure
of total net assets

14.74
5.04
2.56

21.38

26.45
6.56
9.32

11.00

31 December 2022
Percentage exposure
of total net assets

0.90
2.62
12.97
4.99
0.46
24.93
17.32
131
6.77
725
16.54
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10  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2 Credit and settlement risk (continued)

404 Selective Opportunities Fund
As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund did not have an exposure to debt securities (2022: 1.01%).

. 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage exposure Percentage exposute
of total net assets of total net assets

CC+ - 1.01

AQA Selective Income Fund

As at 31 December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood 77.77% (2022: 86.61%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments is summarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating exposure of total net exposure of total net
assets assets

At 1.38 -
A 1.11 0.76
A- 0.34 0.39
BBB+ 4.62 5.40
BBB- 11.73 15.19
BBB 10.50 6.25
BB+ 8.09 £.94
BB- 7.92 10.83
BB 5.43 4.92
B+ 2.30 9.09
B- 1.01 7.47
B 4,31 5.46
CCC+ 1.88 .16
CCC 0.55 -
NR 16.60 10.75
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
10.2  Credit and settlement risk (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

As at 3] December 2023, the sub-fund’s exposure to debt securities stood at 45.92% (2022: 40.19%) of its
total net assets. The credit quality of these investments are sumtarised below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Credit Rating Percentage Percentage exposure
exposure of total of total net assets

net assets

AA+ 0.50 -
BBB+ - 1.05
BBB+ 1.26 1.41
BBB- 3.79 2.99
BBB 0.57 0.95
BB+ 2.21 2.94
BB- 7.40 10.26
BB 7.7 1.49
B+ 3.18 1.80
B 2.53 0.95
CC+ 0.23 -
CcC - ) 0.43
NR 16.50 15.92

10.3 Liquidity risk

The sub-funds’ constitution provides for the monthly/bi-weekly/weekly/daily creation and cancellation of units in
fine with each sub-fund’s offering supplement and these are therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting
unit-holders’ redemptions at any time. The major part of these sub-funds’ underlying securities is considered to
be readily realisable since they are all listed on major European and US Stock Exchanges.

In accordance with the sub-fund’s offering supplements, the Directors may in their exclusive discretion limit the
total amount of redemptions effected on any Redemption Day to 10 of the outstanding Investor Shares in the sub-
fund on that day (in each case before processing request for the issue of the Investor Shares or requests for
redemptions of such Investor Shares for such Redemption Day). In such circumstances, the Company or its
authorised agent may scale down pro rata the number of investor shares to be redeemed in response to each request
for redemption to the extent necessary to ensure that the foregoing limit is not exceeded, and shall carry forward
the balance for redemption as at the next Redemption Day and so on to each succeeding Redemption Day until
each request has been complied with in fuil. Requests for redemption carried forward from an earlier Redemption
Day shall have priority over later requests. No such restriction is in place for Castlestone FAANG + UCITS Fund,
Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund and Castlestone Next Generation Fund.
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Year ended 31 December 2023

10

10.3

10.4

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The sub-fund’s investments in collective investment schemes may not be readily realisable and their
marketability may be restricted, in particular because the underlying funds may have restrictions that allow
redemptions enly at specific infrequent dates with considerable notice periods, and apply lock-ups and
redemption fees. The respective sub-funds’ ability to withdraw monies from or invest monies in underlying
funds with such restrictions will be Hmited and such restrictions will limit the Company’s flexibility to
reallocate such assets among underlying funds. Some of the underlying funds may be or may become
illiquid, and the realisation of investments from them may take a considerable time and/or be costly. Asa
result, the Company may not be able to quickly liquidate its investrnent in these instruments at an amount
close to fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements.

The liabilities of the sub-funds are comprised of accrued expenses and advances received against pending
subscriptions and these are due within 3 months of the date of statement of financiat position.

The sub-funds’ liquidity risk is managed on and on-going basis by the investment manager in accordance
with policies and procedures in place. The sub-funds’ overall liquidity risks are monitored and reviewed
on a quarietly basis by the board of directors. '

Custody risk

The Company and its sub-funds are also exposed to operational risks sueh as custody risk. Custody risk is
the risk of a loss being incurred on securities in custody as a result of a custodian’s insolvency, negligence,
misuse of assets, fraud, poor administration or inadequate record-keeping. Although an appropriate legal
framework is in place that reduces the risk of loss of value of the securities held by the custodian in the
event of its failure, the ability of the company to transfer the securities might be temporarily impaired,
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.Lc.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

10.6  Capital risk management

The capital of the Company is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of investor shares, The amount
of net assets attributable to holders of investor shares can change significantly on a daily basis, as the sub-funds
are subject to monthly/bi-weekly/weekly/daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of shareholders
depending on each sub-fund’s offering supplement. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders,

provide benefits for other stalieholders and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
investment activities of the Company.

The Board of Directors and investment manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable
to redeemable shareholders.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

At 31 December 2023 and 2021, the fair value of listed investments is based on quoted prices in an active market
at the end of the reporting period. In line with IFRS 13 “Fair value measurerent”, the quoted spread that is most
representative of the fair value in the circumstances is to be used to measure fair value. The fair values of
derivative contracts are valued by reference to the price at which a new contract of the same size and maturity
could be undertaken at valuation date. For non-quoted derivatives, forward rates as available from external
pricing sources are used. At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of other financial
assets and financial labilities classified with assets and liabilities respectively, including receivables, payables
and cash, approximated their fair values due to short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. Fair value is

the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The company classifies fair value measuremenis using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measutement in its entirety. If a
fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs,
that measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated reliable

and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
market,

(35



AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Investments in equity shares and exchange-traded funds for which quoted market prices in active markets (non-
Maltese regulated markets) are available are valued at the price within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of the fair value in the circumstances to be used to measure fair value. These investments are
categorised in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

AQA Inter-Active Allpcation Fund

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2
31 December 2023 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments 3,477,824 3,477,824 .
Equity 229,097 229,097 .
Exchange traded ftinds 1,628,909 1,628,909 -
Collective investment schemes 116,202 116,202 -
Derivative financial instruments
Futures - - .
Total 5,452,032 5,452,032 -
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instrunients
Futures - -
Total - - -
Total Level t Level 2
31 December 2022 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured al FYTPL,
Debt instruments 2,936,170 2,936,170 -
Equity 345,620 345,620 .
Exchange traded funds 1,438,535 1,438,535 -
Coliective investment schemes 102,025 102,025 -
Derivative financial instruments
Futures - - -
Total 4,822,350 4,822,350 -
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Futures {45,500 (45,5000 -
Total {45,500) {45,500) -




AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.lL.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value higrarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial assets measured a¢ FVIPL
Equity

Collestive investment scheme

Debt Instruments

Derivative financial instruments
Forwards

Total

Financial labilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments

Futures

Total

31 December 2022

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Equity

Collective investment scheme
Derivative financial instruments
Forwards

Total

Financial liabilities measured at FVIPL
Derivative financial instruments
Futures

Total

Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
18,632,920 18,632,920 .
445,260 - 445,260
640,205 - 640,205
19,718,385 18,632,920 1,085,465
€12,449) - (12,449}
(12,449) - {(12,449)
Total Level L Level 2

EUR EUR EUR
16,441,563 16,441,563 .
282,377 - 282,377
1,530 - 1,530
16,725,470 16,441,563 283,907
16,739 - 16,739
16,739 - 16,739
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.lc.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Equities

Exchange Traded Funds

Collective Investment Schemes

Derivative financial instruments
Warrants

Futures

Options

Contract for Difference
Total

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Options

Futures

Contraet for Differcnes

Total

31 December 2022

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Equities

Exchange Traded Funds
Collective Investment Schemes
Derivative financial instruments
Warrants

Futures

Ogtions

Total

Finaneial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Options

Futures

Total

Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
4,299,879 4,102,513 197,366
4,299,564 4,104,236 195,328
25,811 - 25,811
8,326 8,326 -
2,129 2,129 -
4,984 . 4,984
8,640,693 8,217,204 423,489
(1,279,452) (1,279,452)
(6,080) (6,080) _
(129,218) - {129,218)
(1,414,750} (1,285,532) (129,218)
Total Level L Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
1,889,943 1,693,159 194,784
4,740,241 4,746,241 -
362,675 362,675 -
123,578 - 123,578
10,333 10,333
27,590 27,590 -
27,960 27,960 -
7,188,320 6,859,625 328,605
(1,498,395} (1,498,395)
(33.801) (33.80D) -
(1,532,196) (1,532,196) .
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.l.c.

Notes to the annua! firancial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial assefs measured at FVIPL
Debt instruments

Derivative financial instruments
Forwards

Total

Financlal Habilifles measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instraments

Futures

Taotal

31 December 2022

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Derivative financial instruments
Forwards

Futures

Total

Financial liakilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Futures

Total

Total Level £ Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
17,354,472 17,300,994 53,478
17,354,472 17,300,994 53,478
Total Level | Level 2

EUR EUR EUR
18,422,489 18,369,011 53,478
989 - 989

18,423 478 18,369,011 54,467
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.lLc.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Hybrid Bond Fund

The following table anaiyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets and liabititics measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Derivative financial instruments
Forward contracts

Total

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments

Futures

Total

31 December 2022

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Derivative financial instruments
Forward contracts

Total

Financial liabiltties measwred at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Futures

Total

Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
14,310,127 14,310,127 -
14,310,127 14,310,127 -
Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
13,655,856 13,655,856
989 989
13,656,845 13,655,856 989
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.le.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Unconstrained Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets measured at fair value;

31 December 2023

Financial assets measured af FVTPL
Collective investment scheme
Exchange traded funds

Total

31 December 2022
Financial assets measured ai FVIPL
Collective investment scheme

Exchange traded funds
Total

Castlesione Low Volatility Income UCITS Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments

Equities

Derivative financial instrioments
Forwards

Total

Financial labilities meastired af FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Forward

Total

31 December 2022

Financial assets measured af FVTPL
Equities

Derivative financtal instruments
Forwards

Total

Financial Habilities measured et FVTPL
Derivative financial instritments
Forward

Total

Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
1,053,036 - 1,053,036
19,744 19,744 “
1,072,780 19,744 1,053,036
Total Level 1 Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
729,826 729,826
153,388 153,388 -
883214 153,388 729,826
Taotal Level 1 Level 2
EUR FUR EUR
749,790 - 749,790
7,996,717 7,996,717 .
8,746,507 7,996,717 749,790
(5,512) - (3,512)
(5,512) - (3.512)
Total Level { Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
9,473,046 9,473,046
760 - 760
9,473,806 9473 046 760
(8,610) (8,610}
(8.610) {8,610)
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.lLc.

Notes to the annual financizl statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Castlestone Next Generation UCITS Fund

The sub-fund did not hold any investments as at 31 December 2023,

Total Level 1 Level 2
31 December 2022 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Equities 2,829,796 2,829,796
CIS 153,613 - 153,613
Derivative financial instruments
Forwards 400 - 400
Total 2,983,809 2,825,796 154,013
Financial lHabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Forward {1,578 - (1,578)
Total {1,578) - (1,578)

AQA Small-Cap Fund

The Ioliowing table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets measured at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2
31 December 2023 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Equities 530,549 283,049 247,500
Debt instruments 3,523,380 3,523,380 -
Derivative financiaf instruments
Options 1,530 1,530 -
Total 4,055,459 3,807,959 247,500
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Small-Cap Fund (continued)

Total Level 1 Level 2
31 December 2022 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Equities 3,871,086 3,331,357 539,729
Debt instruments 398,960 398,960 -
Derivative financial instriments
Warrants 168 168 -
Total 4,270,214 3,730,485 539,729

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level2
EUR EUR EUR

31 December 2023 o
Financlal assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments 23,518,328 23,518,328 -
Derivative financial instruments
Forwards - - -
Warrants - - -
Total 23,518,328 23,518,328 -

Financiol iabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Futures

Total

163



AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.lLc.

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

11

Fair values of financizal assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Flexible Allocation Fund (continued)

Total Level | Level 2
EUR EUR EUR
31 December 2022
Financial assels meastred at FVTPL
Debt instruments 20,983,445 20,983,445
Derivative financial instruments
Forwards 692 - 692
Warrants 198 198 -
Total 20,984 335 20,983,643 692

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments
Fufures

Totai -

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

The sub-fund did not hold any investments as at 31 December 2023.
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11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund (continued)

Total Level | Level 2
31 December 2022 . EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVYTPL
Debt instruments 49,890 49,890 .
Equity 3,333,663 3,157,404 176,259
Derivative financial instruments
Forwards 77,008 . 77,008
Warrants 2,151 2,151 -
Contracts for Difference 3,872 - 3,872
Total 3,466,584 3,209,445 257,139
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative finoncial instruments
Options (267,643) (267,643) -
Contracts for Difference {1,155,362) - (1,155,362}

Total (1,423,005} - (267,643) (1,155,362)

AQA Selective Income Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets measured at

fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2
31 December 2023 EUR EUR LUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments 84,862,745 84,862,745 -
Structured Products 16,509,087 - 16,209,087
Collective investment schemes 10,299,090 - 10,299,098
Equities 3,257,543 3,257,543 -
Total 115,328,465 88,120,288 27,208,177
Financial labilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial instriments
Forwards (11%,742) - (119,742)
Total (119,742) - {119,742)
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11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

AQA Selective Income Fund

The following table anatyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets measured at fair value:

Total Level t Level 2
31 December 2022 EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments 104,075,433 102,611,108 1,464,325
Collective investment schemes 9,832,804 - 9,832,804
Equities 1,614,199 1,614,199 .
Total 115,522,436 104,225,307 11,297,129

AQA Global Dynamic Fund

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets measured at

Taotal Level L Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2023 EUR EUR EUR LEUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instriuments 7,278,185 7,278,185 . -
Equities 6,603,858 6,603,858 - -
Exchange Traded Funds 999,722 999,722 . -
Collective Investment Schemes 29,882 - . 29,882
Derivative financial instruments
Futures 7,604 7,604 -
Options - . " -
Total ‘ 14,919,251 14,889,369 - 29,882
Financial liabilities measured at FYTPL
Derivative financial instrunments
Futures (12,152) (12,152) - -
Options - - - -
Total ’ (12,132) {12,152) - -
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11 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
AQA Global Dynamic Fund (continned)

As at 31 December 2023 one of the investments held by the AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund amounting to £UR 29,882 (2022:
EUR 147,150} 1s classified as lavel 3 in the fair value hierarchy in view of its illiquid nature. Such investment is held in a side pocket
of an underlying fund, which side pocket was created at the level of the underlying fund during October 2020 to segregate any tliquid
and hard to value investments. Subsequently the sub-fund was given pro-rata shares in such side pocket to its holdings. '

The following table enalyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-fund’s financial assets measured at fair valus at 31 December

2022
Total Level L Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2022 EUR EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Debt instruments 4,236,944 4,236,944 - -
Eguities 4,156,470 4,156,470 - -
Exchange Traded Funds 874,760 874,760 - -
Collective Investment Schemes 147,150 - - 147,150
Derivative financial instruments )
Futures 68,059 68,059 N -
Options -20,375 20375 - -
Total 9,503,758 9.356,608 - 147,150
Financial llabilities measured at FV'TPL
Derivative financial instriments
Futures : (1,710) (1,710} - -
Options (29,716) (29,716) - .
Total (31,426) (31,426) - -

The following table presents the movement in level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022;

31 December 2023 Level 3

EUR
Opening balance 147,156
Purchase/(sale) of investment -
Transfer in/(out) -
Net unsealised movement (117,268)
Closing balance 29,882
31 December 2022 Level 3

EUR
Opening batance 218,000
Purchase/(sale) of investment -
Transfer in/(out) -
Net unrealised movement (L17,268)
Closing balance 147,150
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12

13

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The puttable value of redeemable shares is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and
all other liabilities of the sub-funds in accordance with their offering document. These shares are not traded
in an active market. A demand feature is attached to these shares, as they are redeemable at the holders’
option and can be put back to the sub-fund at any dealing date subject to the restrictions in note 10.3 for
cash equal to a proportionate share of the sub-fund’s net asset value attributable to the share class. The fair
value is based on the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be
required to be paid. The impact of discounting in this instance is not material. On the basis of these

considerations, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorisation for net assets attributable to
holders of investor shares,

There have been no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 fair value classification categories during the year.
Significant events during the reporting period
Changes to Offering Documents

Between 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the company issued new Oftering Supplements for the
following sub-funds to communicate various changes as detailed below:

Castlestone Faang + UCITS Fund and Castlestone Low Volatility Income Fund updated Offering

Supplements issued on 16 November 2023. Changes were made to communicate changes to Sub-Fund’s
investment strategy.

AQA Unconstrained Fund updated Offering Supplements issued on 13 January 2023. Changes were made
to communicate changes in Sub-Funds Investment Management fee, shareholder servicing fee,
subscription fee and conditional deferred sales charge and investor shares, change in directors of the
company and change in auditor’s office.

AQA Global Dynamic Fund updated Offering Supplements issued on 18§ May 2023. Changes were made
to communicate changes to Sub-Fund’s investment strategy.

AQA Selective Income Fund and AQA Flexible Allocation Fund updated Offering Supplements issued on

5 September 2023. Changes were made to communicate changes in custodian address and investment
strategy.

Castlestone Next Generation Fund updated Offering Supplements issued on 23 February 2023. Changes
were made to communicate changes in investment strategy.

On 5 May 2023, there was a new MLRO appointment, Brandon Galea,

Events after the reporting period

Furthermore, subsequent to 31 December 2023, the NAV of the AQA Unconstrained Fund decreased by
18% to USD 1,109,235 (from USD 1,347,456 at 31 December 2023). The NAV of the Castlestone
FAANG+ UCITS Fund decreased by 9% to USD 8,916,099 (from USD 9,876,778 at 31 December 2023).

168



- Deloitte Audit Limited
: ; Deloitte Place
e o’ | e B Mriehel Bypass
] s Mrlehel BKR 3000
Malta

Tel: +356 2343 2600, 2134 5000
Fax: +356 2133 2606
info@deloitte.com.mt
www.deloltte.com/mt

Company Ref No: 51312
VAT Reg Mo: MT2013 6121
Examption number; EXQ2155

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of
AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.l.c.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOpinion

We have audited the financial statements of AQA UCITS FUNDS SICAV p.l.c. (the “Company”) and its sub-funds,
set out on pages 12 to 168, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets
attributable to the holders of investor shares and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its sub-funds as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial perfoermance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as tssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386}

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {I1SAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements sectlon of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ international Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including
International independence Standards {|ESBA Code), as applicable to audits of financial statements of public
interest entities, together with the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive
(Maltese Code) that is relevant to cur audit of the financial statements of public interest entities in Malta. We
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Maltese Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. In conducting our audit, we have remained independent of the Company and its sub-funds and have
hot provided any of the non-audit services prohibited by article 18A(1) of the Accountancy Profession Act {Cap.
281).

Deloitte Audit Limited is a lirnited lability company reglstered in Malta with registered office at Deloitte Place, Trig L-Intornjatur, Central Business District, CBD
3050, Malta, Deloltte Audit Limited forms part of Deloitte Malta. Deloitte Malta consists of {i) Deloitte, a civil partnership regulated in terms of the laws of
Malta, constituted between limited liability companies, operating at Deloitte Place, Triq L-Intornjatur, Zone 3, Central Business District, Birkirkara C80 3050,
Malta and (i} the affiliated operating entities: Deloitte Advisory and Technology Limited {C23487), Deloitte Audit Limited (C51312), Deloitte Corporate Services
Limited (C103276) and Deloitte Tax Services Limited {C51320}, all limited liahility companies registered in Malta with registered offices at Deloitte Place, Trig L~
Intornjatur, Zone 3, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 3050, Malta, Deloitte Corporate Services Limited is authorised to act as a Company Service Provider
by the Malta Financial Services Authority. Deloitte Audit Limited is authorised to provide audit services in Malta in terms of the Accountancy Prefession Act,
Deloitte Malta is.an affiliate of Deloitte Central Meditarranean $.r.l., 2 company limited by guarantee.registered In ltaly with registered number Q9599600863
and its registered office at Via Tortona no. 25, 20144, Milan, ttaly. For further details, please visit www.deloitte.com/mt/about.

Deloitte Central Mediterranean S.r.l. is the affiliate for the territories of ltaly, Greece and Malta of Deloitte NSE LLP, a Ui limtted liability partnership and
member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL?). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate
and independent entities. DTTL, Deloitte NSE LLP and Delcitte Central Medlterranean Sl do not provide services to clients. Please see
www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.

For information, contact Deloitte Malta.
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Emphasis of matter

a} AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund, AGA Uncenstrained Fund, AQA Selective Income Fund, Castiestone
FAANG+ UCITS Fund and AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

Without qualifying our opinion we draw your attention to note 8 to these financial statements which indicates
that the financial year-end of certain underlying collective investment schemes is not co-terminous with that
of the Company and in certain instances where the year-ends are co-terminous, independently audited
financial statements are not readily avallable as at the reporting date of the Company. As a result, investments
with a fair value of EUR116,202, EUR1,053,036, EUR10,299,091, EUR445,260 and EUR29,882 held by the AQA
Inter-Active Allocation Fund, AQA Unconstrained Fund, AQA Selective Income Fund, Castlestone FAANG+
UCITS Funds and AQA Globkal Dynamic Strategies Fund respectively, cannot be corroborated against
independently audited net asset values as at 31 December 2023 and have heen based on unaudited net asset
values as calculated by the administrators of the underlying funds.

Because of the inherent uncertainty in the above valuations, reported figures might differ from the values that
would have been obtained had independently audited net asset values as at 31 December 2023 been
available.

a) AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to notes 2 and 8 to these financial statemants which
states that one of the investments held by the AQA Global Dynamic Strategies Fund amounting to
EUR29,882(2022: EUR147,150} and representing 0.19% (2022: 1.39%) of the net asset value of the sub-fund is
held in a side pocket of an underlying fund. The fair value of this investment at the reporting date is based
primarily on the net asset value made available from third party sources and the directors are of the opinion
that such value is representative of the fair value of the sub-fund’s investment at 31 December 2023.

b) AQA Selective Income Fund

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to notes 2 and 8 to these financial statements which
states that one of the investments held by the AQA Selective Income Fund amounting to EUR1,225,102 (2022:
EUR1,264,507) and representing 0.94% (2022: 1.05%) of the net asset value of the sub-fund is held in a
structured product linked to an unlisted security. At the reporting date no third party sources prices were
available at 31 December 2023. Given the illiquid nature of the product and the proximity to the year end
when the asset was purchased the directors are of the opinion that using the cost value would represent the
best available fair value of the sub-fund’s investment at 31 December 2023.

Key Audit Matters
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Infermation Other than the Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Company
information on page 1 to 2, the investment manager’s report on page 3 to 4, the statement of Directors’
responsibilities on page 9, the comparative table on pages 10 to 11, the information included in the Directors’
Report on pages 5 to 8, the portfolio of net assets on pages 174 to 198 and the Custodian report on pages 199
to 200, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Except for our opinion on the Directors’ Report in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act {Cap. 386), our

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance canclusion thereon.
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Information Other than the Flnzncial Statements and the Auditor’s Report Thereon {continued)

ih connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the cther information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
oh the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the Directors’ Report includes the
disclosure requirements of Article 177 of the Companies Act {Cap. 386).

In accordance with the requirements of sub-article 179(3) of the Maltese Companies Act {Cap. 386) in relation
to the Directors’ Report on pages 5-8, in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

»  The information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ Report,

Responsikilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Director’s responsibilities on page 9, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.386), and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s and its sub-
funds’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors’ either intend to liquidate the Company or any
one or more of its sub-funds or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors have delegated the responsibility for overseeing the Company’s and the sub-funds financial
reporting process to the Audit Committee.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
This report, including the opinions set out herein, has been prepared for the Company s members as a body in
accordance with articles 179, 1794 and 1798 of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions in accordance with articles 179,179A and 1798 of the Companies Act (Cap. 386}. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemeants {continuad)

In terms of article 179A(4} of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386), the scope of our audit does not include
assurance on the future viability of the Company or on the efficiency or effectiveness with which the directors
have conducted or will conduct the affairs of the Company. The financial position of the Company may
improve, deteriorate, or otherwise be subject to change as a consequence of decisions taken, or to he taken,
by the management thereof, or may be impacted by events occurring after the date of this opinion, including,
but not limited to, events of force majeure.

As such, our audit report on the Company’s historical financial statements is not intended to facilitate or
enable, noris it suitable for, reliance by any person, in the creation of any projections or predictions, with
respect to the future financial health and viahility of the Company, and cannot therefore be utilised or relied
upan for the purpose of decisions regarding investment in, or otherwise dealing with {including but not limited
to the extension of credit), the Company. Any decision-making in this respect should be formulated on the
basis of a separate analysis, specifically intended to evaluate the prospects of the Company and to identify any
facts or circumstances that may be materlally relevant thereto.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatians, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence ohtained, whether a material uncertainty sxists relatad to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
in terms of generally accepted auditing standards, the absence of any reference to a material uncertainty
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in our auditor’s report should not be viewed as
a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

For the avoidance of doubt, any conclusions concerning the adequacy of the capital structure of the Company,
including the formulation of a view as to the manner in which financial risk is distributed between
shareholders and/or creditors cannot be reached on the hasis of these financial statements alone and must
necessarily be based on a broader analysis supported by additional information.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {continued)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal ond Regulatory Requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Companies Act
Under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386), we have responsibilities to report to you if in our opinion:

e  Proper accounting records have not been kept;
e  Proper returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us;
e The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e We have been unable to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

Auditor tenure

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund’s equity listing was on 25 March 2019, and we were first appointed to act as
statutory auditor of the Company by the members of the Company on 24 April 2019 for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the period of total uninterrupted engagement as statutory auditor
including previous reappointments of the firm is four financial years.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Board of Directors

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of Article 11 of EU Regulation No. 537/2014.

The audit report was drawn up on 18 April 2024 and signed by:

S ) Crof. /

Julia Gingell as Director

in the name and on behalf of

Deloitte Audit Limited

.Registered auditor .

Central Business District, Birkirkara, Malta
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Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Inter-Active Allocation Fund

Denaminated in: Fair Value Percentage of
EUR total net assets
¥
Debt Instruments
1120 AXA 54 2871 EUR 538
D EGON MY 28/1D ic EUR 457
T.F% INTESA SANPAOLO 5P& 2871272048 50 301
5 & UMICREDIT SPA PERP EUR 2.88
EN £ UCGIM PERP EUR 251
2 5 5EA5PA 15/02/2022 EUR 14
5.8 VEBUILD SPA 15 EUR 0.67
- BANCA IFIS SPA 1771072027 ELIR 2.97
: BPER BAMCA 3041 t ELR 3.88
[ £ BANCO BPM EPA 2 ELIR g 251
% UNICREDIT D8/04/2035 EUR 141
UNICREDIT 25/09/2025 Eug 538 2885
£ B‘ANC;‘\ BOPOLARE DI SONDRIC 03/D4/24 ELIR 485 6
EUR 526 1
EUR 510 3.10
EUR 363 i.50
EUR 19€.388 288
5. 3755 EM) SPA EUR 91883 138
w BTP 1/08/2 ELR 103,525 J5x
WOPESN UNION 10/04/2050 EUR 42,485 D62
% United States of America 31/01/2024 ush 243728 3.57
Total debi Instruments 3,477,823 50.95
Equities
TRAME TGV GROUE UsDh 228,088 3.36
Toial Equities 279,098 3.36
Exchange Traded Funds
LY MSC1 DISRUP ETF EUR 0.35
Y EUR 0.36
HERES EUR CORP 1-SYREURDIS EUR 7.00
SH&\‘- MSC! WORLD EUR HEDGED ET EuR 474
15H MECH WLD SMALL CAF ULITS E EUR 467
1S EUR HYLD C.B UCITSEMR DIS EUR 2.7
MR FTSE ITALI PMI IR 2020 DR EUR 1.53
SAH WANECK SEMICONDUCTOR EUR 0.28
ISHARES CORE S&P 500 EUR D68
YWISDOMTREE CLOUD COMPUTING EUR 0.48
ISHARES NASDAC 100 ER 3,071 0.04
Total Exchange Traded Funds 1,628,910 23.85
Collective investment Schemes
S EDGE MSCI EURVAFACUCIT & EUR 116,201 1.7¢C
Total Collective Investment Schemes 116,201 1.70
Total portfolio of investments 5452032 79.86
Bank ba'ances 1,381,811 2028
Other Delhiitizs net of asseis 15, 548) (0.10)
Mei Assets . . . 6,827,295 . 100.00
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AQA Casilestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund

Equitles
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i L 13E
SIT A0 &57
14537 hE 725
B, o0 548
JHE, BRE 1.82
HAR Gty 2.0
1.46

720

747

1.42

pR:h

P EE 185
I5BIEG 373
3BT 2RSS 5453
1,472,062 7.54
4315 285 pii:]
AFEENE 188
1434 BEE A5
QALLBAS 155
575,005 1.ge
587482 185
18,632,923 92,80
540,208 3.i9
B, 200 .59
445, 560 23232
435, 2o 127
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Portfelio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Castlestone FAANG+ UCITS Fund (confinued)

Dizrlund fues

Forrwars Bschange Coniracts

Castlestone FAANG LISEYGEP FRE - Class A8 127581 ¥8/05/2034
Castlestone FAANG USD/GEF FRD - Class BBE 117581 28,/03/203d
Casthestons FASNG USDAGERP FRD - Class COC 127881 29/02 /1024
mefhesione FAAMG UADEER FRED: - Class DOD 127581 2R/02/2024
Castlesione FAANG USTWGER FRE - Class BEE 1275381 28/02,/2024

Castlestone FASNG USCYGER FRD - Class FFF 127581 29/02/2024

Castlastons FEASNG USTHEUR FRO - Class AR 1111878 20/02/2024
Cmstlestone FAANE USIYEUR FRG - Class BB 1041478 28/02/2024

Totah Torvard Exchenge Contracts

Todah portfollo of nvestremts
Bank balances
Dther tinliiities net of assets

Met fssets

{107) 2.00
(2,285) (0.0L]
[1,232) [}
{1,655} (XY
{2885 0.0
{27704 {0, EL]

{?aE) [t
13, 534) (o1

{12,450 |0uE]

i9 705 837 0825
286,357 1,43
&4, 162 0.32

28,056,357 L0000
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund

Delot fnstruments
B Ga¥h CASING SUICHARD PER 29/01 /2048
5,250 BAUSCH WESLTH COMPARIES ¥5/0270081

DE% ASIAN INFRASTRUCTUAE INVESTIVENT BAMK 30/09/2025

TASH TALY BYE 01702 2070

YU NYOS L3S E22005

0.5% SRGEMTING D8 07FZDED

D5 FRANCE BDE 250G e

Lo BSY ALISTRIATE 3062320

A% DEVTECHE BANK A5 24/06/2032

2250% B8 GROUF D3 0472035

FLOMT GOLED 1440572037

B.E25% OEUTICHE DANE A5 29505 200

B AT WASAEY SROUP PLC QRO 2008

4. TES LLIMITY BANYK 58 OF fA0F 2001

T.75% TELECO fTALIA FINANCE 240172005

A A25% SAIPER FINANCE INTERMATIONAL BV 31/03/3028
5% BLA0 BANY D307 2080

E.25% BANCA SELLS 2207 2025

A.5% BANCS IF1S SPA U710/ 2007

72T AN FRANCE-E LAV SIRLINES 3170520326
BETEH ICCRES BANLCS 78 20000 F3D0E

FLOWET A%5 88 PERP

LETS Y SANCE MONTE DEL PAKCHI TH SHEMS, S/ 2028
10008 BUNDEERERUE DEUTCHLAND 25 /08,3005
1.45% GUCNT POLIEMMALT DEL TES 1501172004
5 ITALY BTF VD5 2024

28750 BANCD BEM 54 38/06,/2081

Totah debt fnstraments

Warrants

VLIZSE BICHVIED SR04 WARRAMNT 10/25

WARRANT ISR SUTSMET SYSTER 5 F.8, WARRANT 21/25
WARRAMTS SICILY 8 LaR O
ARG CORMPANY U ARRANT 2022

WARRENTS SICILY BV CAR &

WARBANTS SICILY BY D4R &
SURAN Y RESCUIRCES WARRANTS 26/21

WESE2S i EQISTY

Total warramis

Denomivated o

EWR
ULy
TAL
EUR
ELR
UL
ELIR
ELIR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
ELR
EUR
ELR
EUR
EUR
ELIR
ELIK
EUR
EUR
EUR
ELIR
EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
ELIR
ELIR
Cal
EUR

Fair Wallue

Faycentage of
{otal met sisets

EWR %
2580 0,02
18, 557 DuEG
58,574 0.5e
45,952 47
53,523 055
72,835 ora
43,524 085
Ha, 724 .96
a5 BT8 008
99,128 1.00

D0 AED 1.0%
100 875 200
105,552 1.07
162,822 156
175,575 178
TER, Ga 197
157 556 .00
185 164 2.0
202,188 2.05
213,794 215
216,408 218
279,792 337
PH5, 428 2.80
3 7RI 2.97
295,245 100
300,330 .64
978,144 2 g5
9,209,877 43,59
AT -
B0 0.0
1,251 Y]
1,230 C.01
1,436 o0
1,426 0.0
3377 .08
054 0.0%
18557 047
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.Le.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

Ecuities

MAERIVE THERARELTICS
WHRECARD

FEHREFETOH LiWTED)

NEWY ORIENTAL EDUCHTIEN & TECHNOLOGY SROURP
SURORA CANMNARIE N

NSO B4

IMCRFID BHARMACELTIOS
WHRLIONE D

ADRHCENNE

ESKEM LT

DESKTOR METAL INC

[LDTATRAE T

ROMCKET COS IND

WG] SRS

ZIMWEALT LTHIUR PLED

SURINIS PHARMACELTICELS IME,
MEDTHECORTETH

ELSOREMAN METALS HOLDHMES LTD
HMOE LS

AT ENTERTAINKENT HOLDIMGS iMC
DA QRO

TELSDONT HESLUTH $C

SARAICH
YRARTA A

STALEVS MINING PLC

ARAN SUTCHCT IVE INC
ACTICOR BHIOTECH

CAFITAL FOR PROGHELS
PARARMOUNT GLOESL

SEEING MSCHIMES LTD

DL AMTUR SCARE DR

CIERSAIR GAMENG

WAEDHAN TECHMOLOIEIES
TELEFOHNICH S

CHRMANS US

LR T
THYSSENKIURE 85

BELTON IMIERLCTIVE INC
CRSERD: SR8
ACALEFY, SR& EVR
MEMRIENS ENERGY 3G

CRONOS SROLE INC

CRVETANAY SYSTEME LB
SAMADALE CAPTAL PLE
UMNIEURC SR8
CAN SO GOUOSE HOLDING S T,
2EE HOLDHMNGS FLE
FORECHE AUTTRIOEIL HOLDING SE

TOANIC SR

FFIZER INC

WE PLE

HOMEL T

EY MEEHEAL LTD
ALPHSYAVE 1P BROUR

ELIR
EUR
50
Bicte]
UED
ELIR
S
LISTH
ELIH
GEBE
USE
UsD
Ak in]
ELI®
GEEP
USD
ELIR
GEP
LISC
i3]
ELIR
A5
ELIF
EUR
efaty
HaE
EUR.
EL
uso
GEP
[Aksns
&0
EUR.
ELIR
LIED
EU&R
ELIF
UsD
ELIR
ELIR
ELR
UsD
EUR
GEP
EUR
usg
GEP
EUR
ELR
[83:tn]
GBF
uso
ILs
GE&F

L
i W o@m
R b2 B: ke D R
L= =] iz}

= o k2
Fa 3}
=

ot
W2 R = LN e s
[N TV I <)
@ i

12,137
14,325
15,548
16,288
16,550
16,827
17,818
1758
18512
15,572
IETT
20,750
20821
T35
2L4ET
73 ERE
IR
14,515
9,188
X5 545
26,10
6,285
78,774
TS0
21,560
39,3681
78,500
5 AT
36,000
57,868
36, D00
398,303
41,520
42,538
49,088

45520

G ¥
D236
55 250
55119
56,862

59,428

oo
0.a1
DG
.0z
.02
0,03
DLoE
.08
o.07
.08
033
£l
016
0,16
o7
[N
g
018
[R5-23
020
21
My
021
22
022
023
RS
025
D.ES
026
.16
D27
029
25
052
034
034
035
D35
G.38
038
0,42
0.4z
0.43
0.45
D47
05%
053
94
0357
.60
&80
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.lLec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

Erpuithes fCowm? iviued)

KERMERE RESOLIRCES PLC

#VE REINERALS

FECEENCHON NG CL & ORE

ZEH0 WDETE COMMUMICATICNS IMC
THIGTTAL TURRINE INC

BLIERAES SROUR HIDLDMNG ADR RER
AR FRANCE

TEAMWIEWTR &G

ASERSUS SI5GE HCAL NG

ATIONS

BBC CORARSRY SR

SERMIZE T LIS SPh

SECILY By CAR BRa,

T 25

SADEERMG C

TELECTHGY ITALLS 5P

WIRTRAS NG

WEHINER. SRS,

MNOTORILS PICTURES 584

Tt ak Fayait ies

Do bvgdives
Contrect For Gifference
TEALA M, CRLy
TOLL BROTHERS INC, CFEr
ERISTOL-RYEHS SOWUIBS COL CFR
FORICHE AUTOMOSIL HOLMMG CFD
PR, HOMTOM NG, CFE
METFLER 0, CF D
EL{ LSELY SNDY 1003, QFDy
WHLROSOFT CORR, CFD
WETA PLATFORMSE CFD
FOOR LOCKEN CFD
BFIZER IMC, OF D
WOLKSYWEGEN 4G CFD
Totel Contract For Difterence

S o,

THLE LG D3 SA7A3S CATO Equity
PEE UG B3 /17/25 PAD Equity
NQHAD 35500 vdes

DAY GR DES2L/24 P43 Eguity |
REETH IS T F 2828 CRL20 Equity
LR L D8 I0428 PIOOD Equity
TALE IS 12750705 BAOG Equity
FIOH LS UL FE7025 P Equity
&Y GR IME0Y24 P44 Equity
YR IS DS54 812 5 Equity
FYPL LIS D3F17/25 PET Equiey
RS T F37/25 C15 Equity
ML 3FS00 Index

TALL S D1F27425 PASD Equity

GRF
AT
WGEr
LIBE
S
LSE:
ELIR
EUIR
LT
ELIF,
ELIA
ELR
EUE,
EUR
Use
ELIR
UED
LISE
ELIR

LiGE
(Sl
L&D
ELIR
A
W&k
UST
Akt
UG
us
UED
ELIR

LISEY
LI5E
ELiR
Sy
[
L0
LISTH
usg

jsegalo] o681
53,707 nE2
Ge, 126 0.65
55,142 L7
57,115 oS
FOEES 354
1,688 0L
Ba, IE0 LB
B ELY 435
105, 750 107
143 D00 a2
117600 118
YEOLEAE 1.5%
158 02 1.55
1E0,17S 188
328520 .28
330,620 .55
A0, 108 4.0%
457,728 235
§ 295 SES ARSF
{51,504} [srE
{19, 7E7] Rt
(13,153] oA
(12,474 $05. 13}
(23.861) §22)
[5,2%5) (605}
14, 443) vy
(4094 {008
(2,515 syl
(2538 (0,03
{145 -
4,987 .05
(A28, F21]) 11,28}
fEE7, 204) 1138
(133,598 {3,357
|53, 580} (.50
{44 970 (.46}
{42,475} {D.43]
1%9,381) (Dag)
{37,202) Rakerl]
{ag,083) {>.35)
154,500 {0.35)
[EEgIot {052
123 561 {0, 2§
(15,2204 (0293
{28 356] {easd
[E812}

{17.352]
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombo Extra Return Fund {continned)
Crptions [Conthne

WaDr LIS DA77 /35 C1R. 0 ECHHTY
BAY GR 12720424 P32 Buity
TEEA S 12739725 C240 Equity
PRE WS DISYTF25 P2T.5 Eguity
WIRNA S 0153828 CRD Eguity
TELe I8 OAETIRE S0 Eguity
BT PR OS/21 F24 T8 Bnuity
PFE LS D8/E7 /25 PRTS Equity
BORS GR 1220024 Prask EQLNTY
IO US DRFL9824 A0 Eupity
Myibn U5 D3 17f35 P25 Eouity
TELA UGS 0312025 BRE0 Bguity
WIRG US O3 /17/25 CLD Equity
THT i DE/3 134 £.38 Exuity
BT UG 13/ FES PAD Brpuity
AFLFP 09 20524 Clg Eyuity
PORS GR O&/2124 PAE Equity
OF U8 S f37725 PTO Eqoity
08 S 0117125 PS Eguity
WWED US D16 26 C17.5 Enuity
WWEBD S DIFIES36 O35 Erpiity
AN LIS D1 19724 FS Equity
T B D833 724 C.82 Bquity
BAY SR OB/22 /24 P36 Equity
KRI FF OB/21/24 PASD Equity
YRS LS 0409424 CL0 EDWITY
Fali US D17 /25 B R0 Bauity
BSME SR 1230724 036 Equity
ENR GR O6/2024 T10 EQLHTY
TELE UG DLf19/24 PRGN EOUIEY
TR L5 D2/ T05 O 20 Equity
TILA UG DIF29724 P2I0 Bopity
BFE LS D1FEF/25 C27.5 Eouity
YWBD LS D18 34 PIRE Eguity
TSR 2 2/30F24 CF.2 Equity
TR GR D252 O6 Eqguity
SERNA S O6/21,/28 PERD Equity
VWOUF LG DEJE5/34 RYS Equity
B GR 05 20425 PIE Rauity
TELS WS DI 19724 B2E6.67 Eeuity
BARNLE LIS Q1 F 16736 C140 EOUITY
PEE UG DY 15426 PROEquity
EMR SR D302 4 BI0VS Eruity
RARMAS VS DYF17/25 (140 Equity
TAL GR 03f15,/24 P20 Equity
AFES UGS DESERIES C7.5 Equity
{FYE BR DE/24/24 CBE Equity
©OTELA LS DIfE7E2S PITGEquity
APEE UG (A5 38 PAEguaty
WAD US DLFIE{I6 P75 Exuity
TN GR GA/21124 07,2 Equity
APETUS ST F25 P75 Equity
TELA US DIf17/25 PESD Equity

LISty
EUR
USE
LIEE
LS
UsLy
EUR
sk
ELIR
S
UsD
UZEr
WED
ELER
USE
ELR
EUR
LIGD
(LI
ush
LUsh
Lz
EUR
EUR
EUR
USB{
LISEY
EUR
EUR
150
UsD
UISE
Usn
S0
EUR
EUE
S0
LISD
ELIR
iking
USDr
USD
ELIR
LISD
ELIR
LD
EUR
usp
uso
LIS
ELUIR
UED
ush

{35 505)
{15 850}
{14,535}
{13,516}
(1 rig
(12,5821
{12,375
(12242}
(11,9980
(2B
(1%, 208)
{13,118]
{10,807
{770
{18 600}
{18,500
(10,250
{18,182}
{1002 ES
tS0E1]
(3837
{3.545)
15,260
{8, EE0)
18,754
{8,652
{B.651}
{3, 6408
iRt ]
{7,657}
{7.E17}
(& Q5]
16,7271
(&, 5591
{6,508
{6, 4500
{6,445}
{82411
{5,050}
(5 5a4)
{5,711l
(5.6841
[5,550)
{5,402}
{5,250
{50}
{5,040
{5,000
(4,867}
{2,459}
{4,150
{4,081}
{2,008}

REY
{2114
poLaa)
i)
T
{40
[ A0
(o a0k
T
fu m}

o 0E]
{007}
(D07
[f23erp)
(DT
10,071
{0.07]
{DLDE]
(DL0E]
{00 05
{01.06)
{006
0D}
0058
005
0.05]

%)
DLDET
{0051
{00
004}
JARREY
{0.04]

¢
{
oo
{
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.lec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombs Extra Retwrn Fund (continued)
Options {Comtinued]

TIT Hv! B /L5724 £.8) Eguity
PYPL LIS D f 17425 FS0 Exuity
CHINE US T804 080 Equity
THIT 0 243725424 000 Eouity
FL LS /2735 B2D Enuity
AMEF S BDF1S72% BT0 Eouity
VWETY WS DEF25524 CA2.5 Egity
HEE SR BE/21F28 PAD Equity
TUIGR O6/21/24 08 Bguity
EMR SR 062124 P11 Equity
AMCUS DIF24 BT Erjuiiy
PFRE LS DIFA7/25 P25 Equity
BAY LS GEF17/25 P40 Equity
USE PR G624 P20 Equity
ETY PP O27/16724 C8 Eouity
PR SR 0672 /28 BA0 Bhuity
CRON US QIA07/25 {3 Bryuiiy
WBLO LIS D17 0T B.S Rauily
CF US BL£AT/05 BES Equity
WSS B ET/25 PIT S Enuity
BAES LIS DO/20/24 095 EQUITY
MMOK US DAFIFP2S PS Enuity
A UE DA I2E T8 Equity
Thl GR DG 1724 OF Equity
THELA US D1 /1725 B0 Eou bty
SEME LA 062124 PO Eyuity
PR, US DB/23 /2% ©35 Eranty
GLY FE 2720424 PIR Equity
MBR GFOBFA0L2S PG Eyquity
RS, LIS DR 23 /248 PEY ECLHTY
TKEGR 0562124 P5.6 Equity
TR GR I3 20034 PO Enuity
CPFREUS 0 37,/25 P30 Equity
R GR L2200 B2 Equity
005 US DA/19/24 FLE Eruity
VTR D623 424 C12 EOWTY
PORT GRO/1E2Y F4E Eeuity
ASEN LIS DESTLF24 812 S Eylishy
CWNS US 3E/19/24 CED Equity
WTRA DYSEG/34 BAD EQUTY
SPEE UL G725 C1s S0y
M LIS D172 PSS Eguity
WELS LS 01 £19034 PIS Equity
TOOD U5 XEF1F/2S PiE Equity
TN G DE/Z24 CIE Bruity
DOCU LS D5F3 3724 P40 Eguity
CRAWEY LIS 0337725 PLAD Enuity
TOOC LIS D62 1/28 PR Eguity
WWED US DLJLTS3S Ci7.5 EQUTY
LY US B2AAGS 2% FE5E Exuity
KRE FF 3373034 PEDD Equity
INTC US BE/17/25 PRD Equity
AFI PP DR/29/74 P10 EQUTY

ELA
uso
use
EUR
use
uso
usty
EUR
EUR
EUR
usk
LS
usd
ELIR
EUR
EUR
use
UsD
usD
USD
Uso
USE
UsD
EUR
LsEr
uap
LSE
FUR
ELE:
uso
ELE
ELIR
uso
EUR
UsD
LS
EUR
S0
e
ST
S0
Uso
uso
usn
ER
usD
uso
usn
usn
150
LR
UsD
EUR

13,775}
{3 hER}
(3,695}
12,555}
{5510
{3, 4%8]
(5 5EE5)
{3, 180
{5,120
(2,000
(2.8921
{2,285
=t 7]
{3R05]
t2, BO0
£2,580
£ 8511
fEASE)
\%, 272
12,259
(2,252}
(2235
(2,474}
{2, o0
{2 DES)
{3, Ermar]
{2,008
{1,835}
{4,300
{3, BE
{1,800
{1,8004
(1,762}
13,750
11,721}
I E08]
{1 B}
{1, E834]
[3,603]
{1,558
(3,590
(3,5531
{3,565
{1,559}
01,820
{1,524
{1,488
{1,485)
{2,418

(o)
{oD}
{Eh04)
(D)
(00
(203
1508
eXeEy]
(m.03]
{00
pelry
ivReicy|
{r.ea
sgazlt
{oxDay
I D]
Lo 53)
{enovzy
{oD)
{7 O]
(mpa)
£ib 0x2)
(0.2
(6.0E]
[ D)

(0]
{D.02)
{02}
(eRs iyl
im0
(2]
{cr o2y
D2y
{002}
(0.02]
{0.0F)
{02
rtved]
{0.02]
nB2)
{02l
£33 731
(O]
(.00 )
{0uDi)
{D.0%)
D.01]
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolic of NMet Assets
31 December 2623

AQPA Colombo Extra Return Fund (continued)

Cptions (Continued)

RORS GR 0B/214349 PADEQUITY
ML LIS D117 25 PSO EGUITY
CRI UG 02717725 POD Equity
R UG D62 1724 030 EQUITY
TUI GR 12420624 P4 Equity
VIRS DEFE1/34 PR EQUTY
BaBA US D9/20/24 PED Eyuity
DM L6 D1AS/24 P29 EOLNTY
RUS DEAFEES PA2.S Equity
EUEH S 0448724 £11 Bouity
SPRS US DLFLRS25 C15 Equity
BNPL US B1/19/24 PBO Equity
PERA UGS (LFATF25 020 Uity
TOOO US 01 1735 035 Equlity
GOOS LS 08018724 G118 Bouity
FTCH US DL/18/24 BT Equity
ROIKL US 06721429 PSS Equity
TMY GR Ga/15/24 C1T Bruity
TUI GROB/21/24 P48 Fylity
LLY LS 115424 PSTO Equity
WOLF US DE£19/28 P35 Equity
G5 US 01/1?525 U 5 Equity
NFLY LS 06831 FaGh Equity
FIT i GJ;'.!::,""‘A P.E.J ECLITTY
TELA US 01748724 PIODEQUITY
AONTUS 01/18/24 C.F Equity
2 U5 DEFEY I G100 Eguity
AERCUS DEAIS24 P.S Equity
ENE (M 06/21/24 Pa.d Equity
WED US DL28/24 PO EQIUTY
FTOH S DLf17/25 PT Equity
AMED LS 011725 PO Equity
WETA US B2 /16/ 74 PALD EQUITY
MEY US 082124 P40 Equity
PHE N& 0521724 PLY Equity
NOH4F 13000 indes

ALEH U5 DE/10/24 013 Equity
GOOG UST1/27 /25 PTDEguity
AW UGS B3/15/24 043 Equity
AMCUS DB/2E724 CAS Eguity
AMCUS D3/15/34 QLD Equity
TRILO US (/18724 #35 Bquity
WASFFUS D523 024 pash ECHIETY
NMOY US B4£18/24 £31.5 Equity
FTCH LS BL/L6/26 £F Equity
RIVI US OL/18724 CI0 Equity
VRN US B1/15/28 C1 Equity
WD US 03/88/24 P25 Equity
TSLA US DL/19/24 P140 Equity
INTC US 01/19)/24 PRS0 Equity
ASXC LS D1719728 €1 EQIUITY
QS U5 01/15/24 C10 Equity
TOOCUS BLAL8/2 FR5 Buity

{1,260
{1,241}
1,238)
(1,184]
{1,130}
(1,135
11008
{1,100
(3,103}
{1,05H)
(1,087
{1,043
(4,690
9141
{QDE}
foa}
{BEE)
(870}
[teieins
1688
{&E
{a57)
{5551
LS
{S2E)
{5E3)
{571}
{570}
1540)
{5aa}
{45%]
{41g}
{413)
{447)
{40

i
o R

W e
=

{0t
{iova)
[(eRek
OTEEY
(sX3 511
[LERE¥ Y
(CeCd )
{0.04]
o)
[elvedl
(001}
(B0
[EcRE Y]
(G}
0.0
(0]
(onCra]
LELD
{3191
{00k}
{0t}
(DXL
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.Lec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Colombo Exira Return Fund (continued)

Cipttons [Contioued]

APFS UG DESIG3E 0125 Byuity
08 UE SR/ RE f2a D5 Equrizy
ATBLIE DIF1900 (15 Eyuiby
MBI LG D3 f18424 C18 Enuity
MET US DA /19724 PAT Eeuity
CLE LS O SRS 1T Eguity
CRER US DIL18/24 0235 Equity
SWEIDY LS D1 f 15824 PTS Equity
FEUS 03718734 PRI S Erpuity
APPG LS O 15034 TLF Equity
BLOELG UG DR/ E0024 £330 Eauity
AN S DR L0024 O 5 Erpity
GUICE US O3 39,28 PR Equ ity
APPE LIS DI 18724 CLF S Equity
55145 UL 2 Ol EGUITY
ATKCUS DEFA0S0S CF EQUTY
FTON W5 03719424 C20 Bguity
CRR UG DA/19/24 §92 5 Equity
HEME UG G118/ 24 B8O Eguity
WTRE DXF38704 C37 EOLHTY
WTRE Os F B4 TR0 EQLTY
SMAGFT U5 D3RG PO Eguity
RAETH UE G2 719424 PED Eouity
Cit LIS DA/ 90424 G Expuity
ARGEN IS DX F IS0 PED ECILTY
MNFLR WS 819424 PROD Equity
CREA LS DR F25/28 Pa20 Equity
WTRS DA 1824 TS Eguity

U LB D2 18,/248 PEF.S Equity
TGO LS SIS 204048 O B ity
D US DE/E8)24 ©F Eguity
CRWD LIS 08 £29/28 FY5 Equity
Bt UR 02 FA0/ 24 Fal Equity
FRCH UGS G F1S/38 O3 Bruity
PFEUZ DEfR 124 CIF.5 Equity
ESM I IT00 Indew

ESHaP 4750 triglen

TFotal Dptions

Fritures

FNGEC 13850 Coimvdiy
RMHAD 185 SOMOTY
AMHAC 186.5 Conlty
FAHAL 338 Coralty
RAMAL LAD TONIDTY FT
EChi4 CLRMCY

SFH4 Curncy

ECH3 CURNCY

Jotat Futures

Fotal portfolic of investments
Bark p=imnces
Dther Fabitities et of assets

MNet Assets

LiRE
UsD
ush
WS
[83:4)
UL
Hsn
1380
a0
ush
[y
13530
[iots]
UKD
Ung
LED
LIS
HED
ysh
USL
UsL
UED
LISDE
LRIy
LISE
LD
ST
LIEE
LISEr
Usg
sy
LISy
LISL
SD
LA
USE
LS

EUR
EUR
ELIR
EUR
ELIR
LsD
SBP
L&

s
{8}
{38}
{21}
{20
4a7}
{16)
{43}

v

s

2125
&, 454
5,459

[2R2 3
KRV ES
(Rl

f1,270,a70

{2,510
11,840
{1,656
B
40
g
1%
¥

i}

& e
(2+

82,93}

{oL0E)
{onin)
vy

o
Q.07

2,247
7,215,943
F62% 6TE

a5,

B

a8

0.8

7346

9,376,410

00

183



AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA High Yield Bond Fund

Bt Instrumeenits

5. 1552 AP SRE SANK A8 FERD

5575 CREDHT SGRICOLE 54 237082024

G 07 R% LUMIBQLEAL BSSICLIRSET 27 /04,2000
BAFER LINICREDIT SFa PERF

A OM LG PERP

B7%4 TELEFONICE ELROPE BV 230871008
A755 TELEFOMICE EURGEE B4 14/03/2025
AT SAPER FINANCE SNTERNATIONAL BY 15/07 /2026
SO BNCCE SANTANDER 54 Y05 2025
255 NOWCS BENCO I0JDRII02Y

AT RS BANGS RAONTE DE BASCH & YR/DL/R030
AD.5% BOMNCH MONTE DE1 PASCH 23/07 /2023
3P 5 INTESH SANSa0L0 WP 2350572025
SLEPS UWERLIILEY SRR 151 2200

3 B2EYE SALING IMPREGILS S04 2R/0E fH0027

4 5 BANCA PSSR 17 S 1053007

5 375 ELECTRICITE OF FRANCE 23/DE /2042
B350 BANCE 2 25T PERF 2771442025
R DM P ALEURANCES 2706 2028

5% BN CE SOMORSL IS0

& 25, BONCA SOMNDRIC AT {2029

3G35% BPER BANCS F0JLEFIIRT

T BV AS GROUS A8 14405 /2025

512556 BANCD: BPR SPE 23013005

58755 ICCRES DANCS 558 20,02 {2020

B.OPS 00 BANCO BILBACE WIZCAYS ARGENTARLA 21 /06,2045
2BITHEN) 3P 153052005

2HENI SRS 1340277027

B.IFEY ENEL SP BEADEJT0M0

3,52 5% TOTAL ENERGHES 26/02 /20085

086 BTR TF 15,1 202004

Tatal delet insteuments

(L3

5.

fed

=3
4.
g,
2.
5

7
3
%

Total portfolic of nvestorerrs
Bak lbalances
Orther sssels net of Halitities

Net Assets

Brenosainates im:

ELR
ELlE
EUR
EUR
ELR
ELR
ELI®
ELI®
ELIR
ELIR
EUR
ELIR
CLIR
EUR
ELIF
ELR
EUF
EL
ELIR
ELIF:
ELR
ELR
ELIR
ELR
ELIRL
EL®
EUR
ELLR
EUR

Fair Welue Peyreimtage of
iotel ped assets

ERIR W

IR0, I02 1.0%
JE0.IHE .0
F23 035 404
SB2,710 5.49
FFIIPT 4.32
104222 1.0
208017 223
TELIIH a.97
T2 786 .18
58,478 a0

I AT 924 5,71
G002 245
1,655 273 8.27
anEgE D51
3RS0 852 &40
BOEITE 453
iYL, S0 159
BRI Dkt 215
252 980 1.54
ABE SEL R
Bilad 952 4.49
TEEH08 .41
52, HEd 198
Tt 456 4,495
485,518 33
BE9 112 487
G7E B2 276
G150 D51
ABE FEE 2458
JODFE 129
195,862 108
17,354,402 757
17354472 5747
563753 348
155, 56 {£.33)
17,857F 805 A00:0H)
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Hybrid Boad Fund

Debt nstruments

6. 3755 UMIPOLIAL ASSICURAR| 27 0442030
4 45% UNICREDIT SP4 PERP

38758 UCGIM PERE

3. 87E5% TELEFOMNICA EUROPE B 22/0042026
4. 375% TELEFONICA EUROPE BW 34/05/ 2025

B.A37HH SAIPEN FINANCE TNTERNATICNAL BY 1507 2006

4,752 BANCO SANTANDER S5 A9/D3 /2025
B% BANCA MONTE DET PASLRT 32 /03 /2650

S, 979% BANCA MONTE DE} PASCHI § 18/0172028

10.5% BANCA MONTE DE! PASCHT 23/07 /2002
3757 INTESA SANPACILD 3P4 27700 /3005
58759 WEBLHLD SR8 4551252025

435 15 DEUTSCHE IMDUSTRIEBE 2104/2005
4.5% BANCA IFIS SPA 171042007

9.25% BANCS DI AST) PERE 2771372005
5.23% BANGA SONDRIO 30/07 /2025

3,525% BPER BAMCS J0/31/2000

5% BAUWAG GROUP A 14/05/2025

6.5% BANCO BFM

B, 125% BANCC BRIV 5B 2100 /20025

5. 25% CREDITSG SFORTIVE 2171072005
5.055% BANCA MEDICLANUM S8 22702 f200F
B.875% WORED BANCS 598 20/ 0L /3078
5.589% CASEA CENTRALE SANCA L6/02/2027

2.375% BANCO BILBAC VIZCAYS SRGENTARLS 210451

2.625% EMI SPA 1571072025
296 EME SPA 217032027
1.975% ENEL 5PA DR /O& 2027
Tatal debt instruments

Total portiolc of investiments
Bark halznoas

Otiver assets net of fishilities

Met Assets

¥

2

04

5

Denominatad in:

EUR
EUH
EUH
EUR
EUR
ELIR,
ELIR
EUR
EUR,
EUR
EUR
ELIR
EUR,
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
ELR
ELR
ELIRL
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

Falr ¥alus

Fercartoge of

total et asseds

EUIR %
722,025 485
713,440 2,80
86,004 452
194,222 154
189,008 1.34
585,487 450
742,756 5.00
209,415 1,35
888,443 5.03
380,004 233

1,466,085 .58
a05,388 2.06
162,064 .04
606,564 408
181,370 1.2
512,954 4006
688,457 454
529,926 555
158,792 134

1,082,377 7.6
205, 154 198
16,185 7,43
T16,408 1.45
314,310 2.0
651,894 439
S76,156 .85

931,501 2,52
525,684 3,54

14,380,127 86,37

14,380,127 26,57
269,550 247
172,120 116

14,848,846 100,00
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.Lec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQ4 Unconstrained Fund

Excharige Traced Fuwds

SPOR MSTT WORLE ENERISY

NANILA CARITAL 1C8 CIVETTA

TULIR Trend Fund UCITS Class A EUR

Guirness Eurcpean Eguity Income Class ©UST
GSuiriness European Equity income Fumd G EUR
Guinness Glohal Innovators Fund © USD

Total Euchiange Trader Fungls

Colfective Investmen Schemes
NANHE CAPITAL 108

FP ARGOMAUT AESOLUTE RETURN FUMD
Sterrs Bond Fund

A08 SELECTIVE INCOIME FUND EELIA
AOA SELECTIVE INCOME FLIND | G8F
Totel Collective lnwestment Schemes

Totat povtfolio of investmerds
gank hatarces
Other assets nezt of Habilities

Net Assets

Brenominated in:

Ush
UEL
ELIN
LIGE:
EMR
usgy

Fair Welue Pereentage of
1otal net assets

ELWR. i
18745 176
150214 13,86
87,216 B.B%
100,513 S0
19, TRO 1706
LA, T =W
08,335 A7
4 L. 0o
T, A5 DILED.
20131 G853
o579 0.8
11,404 1.0
26, EHS 32,38
1,072, 7RG 95,45
B S8 .74
135, R4 i3 48]
1,429,562 1600
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.lc.

Portfolio of Net Assets

31 December 2023

AQA Castlestone Low Volusiltity Income Fund

Eqjusitiees

EXNOH OB CORF.

WUALMART INC.

WELLS FMREO & G
WERIZODE CORMAMICATIONS (NC
WIS NG CL A ORD

LINITEEY FARCEL SERVIC
URECN PRCIFIG CF
UNITEDHEALTH SROUP NG
TESLA MOITORS INC ORD
THERRUDY FISHER SCIENT
HTRT i

STRYKER CORE

SOLTHERN COYTHE
CHARLES SCHWAE CORR
STARBULCKS CORBORATION
P THECIN

CHLBLODIRAN T

PHILIP BAOEFIS INTERN
PROLOES D

PROCTER & GAMELE CONPNY
PFIZER INC

BERSIND INC

ORACLE COfP

HWITHA CORE DRD

BURE T

NETFLIX ORD

WERTERA ENERGY INC
MICROSOFT CORP ORD
RAERTK & T IO,
MEDTRONIC FLC
BATMOELED INTERNATIGNGL TL & OF
KBTI ALLYS, CORE
WMASTERCARD: €L & ORD
LOWE'S COm NG
LOCKHEES MARTIN CORP
EL: LHLY AND COMBANY
LINDE PLC

COCE-COLE OO
IPMORGAN THASE & OO
LOHMNSON & IOHNSON
UYTEHTRE SIRGICAL

(WTEL CORP ORD
HOMEYWELL INTERMATIONAL
HOME DEPAT INC

GO BN SECHS

Denomirated iy

[aa)
S
Lt
LIS

Fair WValue

B

12FAED
&7,001
5,905
46,245
128,773
88,472
46,055
145,450
178,308
51,546
74,301
30,133
22,312

Ho T
271,000
#1113
B4, 504
7,081
241953
§1,975
34,940
25,723
56,075
104,329
99,51%
32,435
141,519
62,133

S8 508

142,687

111,518
33,827
51178
41,752

105,598
SE,85%

Ferepriage of
todal net assets

.

1.43
D36
DBl
052
)
a3
D52
154
2002
DEY
.35
Qs
026
036
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AQA UCTTS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Porifolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Casslestone Law Volatility Income Fund (continued)

Eguities [Candlinugd]

SLPHAEET #C-CL &,
ELPHAEET INCEL ORI
GILEAD SCIEMCES iME
GENERSL ELECTRIC O
ESEERCCH PG CL A OREY
BUKE ENERGY LORE
WESLT CHENEY DD THE
CMEHER CORPUOIRAT IO
DEERE & £
CHEWROIN TORF
CARCE SYSTERGS. INC ORE
SILESFORCE CLOHE 10
COETOCE b,
CONOCT PHILE RS
EOMOEST-CL &
EATERFILLAR LS
CATIGROLIE WL
BERFSHIFE HETHEWSY INC-(L. 8
SRIETOL-MYEAS SO0 T
BLACK KMUSHT 0
BANK OF SIAERICS CORP
BOEIRNG CL
SMERICEN ERERELS COMPINT
BEOSDCOIG N DRE
AR PROCUCTS & SHERE
ANTHEN TN
EMEZTM OO B DR
SMERICAR TOWER HETT
BFAGER
ADRFAMCED: pMICRO DEWVEIES INC,
ECOBE S¥STERMS
ACCEMTURE PLE-CL &
LEROTT LESORITORES
ABEN LIS
APRLE NC ORO
" BADREEN BTENLEY
WS HEALTH DORP
CHURS LINITELD:
ECIGE RESCHIREES T,
ECILIN Y NG
FREEFOGT-MOCBITIRAN (N,
AARSH K WLENNN CONIPARIES 1,
ALTRIS GRLUP NG,
S8 GLOBAL ING.
PROGRESSIVE CORR
SUTOMETH DETE PROTESSIIE WL,
EXTONN CORP PLE
Total Equities

Deht Instrumernts
THE LONDON TUNNELS PLC
Total Debd nstruments

GIR

#5186 285
214,884 742
29783 0,38
42,547 D.48
ELEE LY 169
22,504 023
48075 .55
45057 551
53,968 087
85,234 Y-t
G, 240 2T
&6 506 275
87,301 089
24,687 50
88,558 0.63
#5555 051
28,450 .3y
200,300 2.5
24,024 0,38
EEReCE 37
59,175 078
44,156 050
32,923 57
1968452 1.46
ABADD 93]
34,601 .38
SEE, 460 &45
18,139 ©.23
25,138 05
§7, 5007 0.7
7,06 m89
55 454 074
56,595 064
30,058 223
847,453 8.55
55,310 040
50,529 0.35
29,481 0.3
77,461 .25
24,506 018
11,568 0.5
37,634 W
71,952 013
43 20% D.50
28,958 .35
28945 035
14,4527 0,33
7,996,718 90,14
748,784 8.45
748,789 E.45
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.Lc.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Castlestone Low Volatitity Income Fund (continued)

Derivatives

Forwsrd Exchange Comtracts

Caztiesione Low Mottty UELYERP FAD - Cinss 400127581 2970242024
Castlzstonmy Low Velability USO/CER FRD - Class BBB 1.275871 29/03/2024
Castlestone Low olatiiity USDYEER FRD - Class COC 327580 29/03/2024
Castlestons Low Wolatiling USOYEER FRE: - Class DOD 1.27587 29402/ 3024
Cestlestone Low Wolatility USTYGER FRD - Class EEE 4,27581 Ju/01 2024
Castizstone Low Volatility USDYGEP FRE - Class FFF 127581 18/02/20%2
Castiestone Low Volatidite USOWELIR FAD - Class B8 1132479 29/02/2024
Total Farward Exchange Contsacts

Tatal portfolio of inwesiments
Bank baiances
Otfrer lialilities met of asseis

Mt Assets

Ui
s
U
UED
UsDr
Ak
st

(5] (o)
(nasm {54
{528} {004
{558 {0
{3,251 1012
{ase 800
{805 16.03)
5,542 (m.07)
8,700,585 9852
144 586 163
[15.567) (018
BEISLA 100,00
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.lLc.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Casilestone Nexi Generation UCITS Fund

Bark baiances
Other halidities net of assats

Met Assets

Derominatecd in:

Faln Wehie

EUR
LETH 275

(1,0F3817)

Pereenisge of
otal net sssels
k)

(V&7 126,75

I5T.IVETY

[eadi

R
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.lLec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023
AQA Small Cap Fund
Denominated in: Fair Value Percentage of
iotal net assets
EUR 3
‘Warranis
WEBLIHLD WARRANT DB/ID EUR 4 C.o0
SEC COMPANY WARRANT 2022 EUR 1,530 0.0d
Total warrants 1,530 0.04
Debt Instruments
38752 UCGIM PERE EUR 171,506 418
EUR 198,654 4,84
EUR 200,514 <87
EUR 404,376 Q.81
EUR 357,228 9.65
EUR 197,730 4380
taly 15 EUR 149,823 3.63
ZGI3UMENI SPA DfI03S5 EUR 192,052 266
1 EUR 875,160
0.5 % LLOYDS BANKING GROUP 13711735 EUR 194,286
9% BIUBILL 18/D6/24 EUR 541,051
Total Debl nstruments 3,523,380 25.45
Eqpuities EUR
A80 COMPANY SPA EUR 283,050 6.86
YWELFARE CONDHYIED 247499 5.00
Total equities 530,549 12.86
Toial portfolio of investments 4,055,459 08.35
Bank bhalances 8,583 D21
Other lakilities net of assets 59,542 1.44
Met Assets 4,123,584 100.00
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2022

AQA Flexible Aliocation Fund

Bkt Instruments
5.87 5% CREDIT AGRICOLE 84 25708/2024
6.375% URIFOLE&T RSSICURATI 27,/04,/ 2080
4,459 UNICREDIT SP& PEAP
8.875% UCGIiM PERFP
SETEH TELEFONICH ELRORE B 22/08/3008
G075 TELEFOMICA EiSROPE 8y 344032035
B5.575% SAIPEM FINAMCE INTERNATICINAL By 15072028
475 %% BANCC SAMTAMOER 38 1903 /2025
2.625% 5G4 SR LE/02/2004
BU% BAMCA MONTE DE! BASCH 22701 /2080
5.575% BANCA WMIONTE DEi PASCHI 5 LE/0E/2028
T05% BANCA MONTE DEI POSCHE 25/07 2028
3.75% INTESS SANPACILD BR0 270272025
SLBTE% WEBLILD SP# 15712 3005
3,58 BANCA IFIS 554 1T ADFEDRT
SY ELECTRICITE DE FRAMNG 2301 /2026
9.25% BANCA DY ASTS PERP 2771172005
4,2 5% RCUT CATTOLICA ASRAC 147032047
F.2 5% BANCA SONDRIC 3DFOT 2089
5.625% BRPER SANCH 50112030
% BAWAG GROUE AC 14/08/2025
B.125% SANCD BRM SP4 212025
4.585% GENERALL FIRAMNCE BY PERP
4% ELECTRICITE CF FRANCE Dg/10/2049
4.375% AMCO 270220086
S.575% COP BETIS5PA 25/10/20D27
5.25% CREDITO SPORTMG 217 0/2025
5.035% BANCA MEDTQLAMUN SPa J2/01 /2007
587 5% HCCREA BANCE SES 20001 /2028
5.885% CASEA CENTRALE BANCS 16/02/3I0F7
3.575% Volkswagen Internationai Finance by,
B.875% BANCC BELESD WVIZCAY L ARGEMTARIA 21,/ 06 2048
2.625% ENISPA A3/10/2025
2% ENESPALL/OIF 02T
7.0% WEBLWILD 5PA 27/D8/2028
LAFE% EMEL SPA DBF05/2027
Tetal debt instruments

Total purifolio of investments
Bank balances
Other asssts net of Habilitles

) Net dssels

Denominated in:

Fair Yalue Percentage of
tolal et assels

ELIR %
TEt B 148
MO 8RS 437
524 2660 .58
1,543 554 6.37
154,223 D50
368,01 15%
1,074,051 4.45
371,368 155
198,554 VYY)
041G e
1,397,57% 537
GE0,8E TR
2,222,785 o.17
237,970 .98
1,415,216 5%
0S80 590
151,970 875
297,766 1.54
a04,48% 2,75
LTS £.06
176,447 0,73

4 SER G 555
o4 BEE L)
99,451 Ert
405, 346 LET
314,382 £.88
523,928 2,55
GG 46HE 23
370,510 145
622,620 2.57
S, 54 .45
+,DEE, 350 443
672,182 237
182,007 £ 76
§24,740 } 2.37
350,456 144
23,548,328 3705
23,518,328 57,05
310,555 a8
{95,685] (.38
74,233,198 O
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Selective Opportunities Fund

8ank aiances
Ciher mssets net of igbilties

Met Asseis

Denominated ir:

Fait Walue

ELR:

Percmriage of
imia) net assets
T

.00

oo

ki
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.Le.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Selective Income Fund

Drelt wstrummenis

15 S YELTOR SROUP LTD 01 /1172008

§.75% UNITED NATURAL FOODS 15/10/2025

4 0o TEMPUR SEALY INTL 1N 25/04,3000

4 625% TEGNS INC 1S/05F2028

B.575% RENT & CENTER NG 15,02/2009

7.75% PETSMART INC/PETSMAR 15/03/2008
4,63%0 MITCH SROUP HLD U 01 /082028
FAZET MARKS £ SPENCER BLC D713 3057

5. B75% MACY'S RETAIL HLDGE 00 00 /1025

L6 LEAN CARITAL 28/08/2041

750 L BRANDS ING 15052028

S8 FOOT LOTKER, 08 /102039

4, 6B25W DTS NG 01 J0EL2050

3,055 CROCS G 15/08/2020

3.5 BB PARIEAS 10T /2024

B PRE0 ARERCRONEIE & FITEH 15407 #2005
FLOTY TERTRON FINL FR 1540242042
TUCTRISSOVISOR A5 00 /2025
BHEG HUGHES SATELLIVE DT,/ 2026

015, MANITOWOE 00 11/04/2026

5 255 LIVE MATION 15400/2016

405 WORE 09 112024

& BI5Y SMICR TECHNOLOGY MG, 15008,/2027

& PHEL CHEMDAES 151 172008

S THE GOLDMSR SACHS GROUP INC,

. 2504 JCAHN EMTERPRISES FINANCE CORE, 15/08/2004
4,755 WCAHN ENTERPRISES 15/D07303a

S8, TEREY 35/05,/2000

&, 350 TWL HOLDING S FTE LTD 09/06,/ 2006
2S00 TIMTIN CORE 15/40/2005

SMAPERISL BRAKDS FINANCE PLC

21255 IPERLSL BRAMDS 2640772024

& 750 WESTERN DHEITSEL CORR. 15,02 /2006
2625 NETFLIY 15/06/2005

4,055 BIOGEN ING 15/0%/2025

4, 250 MICRDCHIP TECHHOLDGY 1/00/2055
14255 WISSAN MOTOR SCCEFTANCE 16/08/200 4
A WFEYR BOEING GO D 40542025

2359, ARRCAW ELECTRONICS B/00/2024

IAPERLAL BRANDS FINANCE AL

3,255 HEBC HOLDING FLC 14/D3/2024

3.5% BHECOVERY COMMUMICATHON LLC 15711 /2012 4
IEHER HORTOM INC 15802004
48 FORTLUNE BRANDS INNGVATIONG MG, 25/DG 025
$ .65 ROSE STORES INC §5/04/2625

2. 7E3% BAT CAMTAL CORF 06/092024
B ATEN BANK OF ARMERICE CORPORATION 157082025
5. 5% SAVEH LIS FINSNCE 11 LD 15708/ 2035

T AZEH G COMSUMER HEALTH DORE 24/08/1025
& 255 IMEER AL ERANDS FiNANCE PLD 2140772025

Denandnated i

Feir Value
EIR

1,364,578
1,101,308
#2%,%04
1,694 645
435,769
1,908,517
870,568
257,438
1,809 806
1,735,402
845,104
1,889,551
1,182,395
2,085 787
151,008
2,307 518
3,579,515
1,818,206
TI5,056
2,282 475
838,650
2,673,005
1,373,385
1,727,416
1,675,240
866,155
900,815
430,783
D4 Do
2,253 513
1,358,858
595,545
1,533,450
1,335 175
891,521
1,784,365
1,750,122
1,858 348
658,783
667,751
451,185
246,855
442 355
446,422
449,651
1,531,814
1803171
450,050
447,585
445,194

Fercerdage of
toiah net ascets
Y

104
DR
R
1.2%
o828
1.0y
DE7
£.as5
1.00
6.55
G72
145
ot
158
g
176
a3.04
139
.55
iya
DES
204
105
igz
1.28
[ER-1
[
33
oED
175
102
Lal
102
1oz
B3
1.26
1.54
1.03
053
.51
3%}
.34
0.4
034
Rt
102
138
034
B
.34

194



AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net, Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Selective Tncome Fund (continued)
Dkt lnstruments

7.7 38 WARNERMEDA HOLDINGS 15805/2025
5.45% EBAY NG DB/01/2024
5.25% EXFEDILS GROUP INC 1/D5/3025
454 DELTA SR LINES 2041042025
4.525% FYH COAR 1040772025
&858 ENEL 14/10/2025
5085 GENERAL MOTORS FHNANCIAL 10302005
I3 MIZSAN MOTOR ACCERTANCE O/08,2006
.63 WARNERMEDIA HOLDINGS 15/03/3025
4.375% CRECHT AGRICOLE 37/09,/3008
5.742% BANCO SANTANDER SOF06/2024
4% BLTRA SROUS (N 34/D 2004
1.95% BOEING OO, 0170272024
5.525% BROMDCON CORP. 16/01/2034
4.15% KINDER MOREAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP. QI/02/2024
5259, INTESS SANPAOLG SPa 13000 2024
379 TOTALENERGIES CAPITAL INTERNATIOMAL &4 35002024
437956 SANCO SANTANDER 12042028
4. B36% BARCLAYS PLC O5/05,/2028
26003 LEAR INC 15/01/2057
892 WMVWARE INC 21 /DE/2007
2 B2 T-W0OBILE USA INC 15/08/2024
4.55% THE WILLIAAMS COMPANIES 10 24/06/2054
A% AMERUSCHURCEBERGEN CORP 15/05/2004
3.8 EXPEDRA GROLIP IO 15/02,/2028
2.5% UNITED STATES OF AMERINA 80/D4/2024
9.5% AUTONATION INC. D2/10/2005
5.GI5% HCA ING D1/U9/2028
5.5% HYUNDAI CAPITAL AMERICA 30,08/ 2028
LEQMTED 3EC 2371072024
LEOWTED SEC 15/10/2024
O% USA BILLS 300170028
0% ALDBURSG 5.8, 9/06,/2051
Total dekt tstruments

Equities
SURINIA PHARMACEUTICALE INC.
Tokal Eguities

Collective investment Schemes

ZEST-GLOBAL SPECIAL FUND SIT-1USD

LEMYA S{CAY-RAF - US SPAC FUNE LIS

FEST LSSET MAMAGEMENT SICASCLIAMTAMENTAL EQILNTY
Total Collertive Investment Schemes

Forwards

AUL Selective income FORWARD 27.06.2024 11008
Total Forwards

Tatal portfolio of investments

Bank balances

Other assets net of liabiities

Met Sssets

UED
LISE
UsDr
UsD
uan
uan
s
USD
Uso
Ush
usn
UsD
Ush
Usn
USE
usn
UsD
S0
Uso
URL
uso
Ush
S
S0
gD
usr
Ush
LiE0
USLr
UsC
[Hj:103
LED
EUR

Ust

Uso
LSk
EUR

LD

1.065,152 frioN
1,788,258 153
1085 588 D8
448, 282 e
5L F56 et
[SIE I ) o53
1,835,482 1,40
445 840 mer
G55 .27 05
BES,I01 L5
1,450,871 191
54 267 Fayar]
54,185 oo
54,916 Do
155 G683 3 E3)
AR ES kL)
54,338 3253
FEOEIS ET
B4, 482 DLER
1,268 458 087
280 361 LE7
1,293,636 .95
450697 034
BOE A5G 056
L 2al 100
1,746,47% 22
1832 835 E42
GXE Y4 871
$I0,925 BEFD
L AL 5T 108
1 TRE SOR 135
2844 205 4.7%
12,080 600 .24
104,774,822 776
3,257,531 2,45
3,257,541 2,45
5873 Dag 443
1,716 050 -5
2,705 085 TP
10, F53, 051 7.87
{119,742} $0.08]
(1A 742% £,
1S 208 T2 58,0

130,865,362
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAV p.l.c.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Global Dynamic Fund

Debit bastrorments

UNICREGITRSE PERF

SANTAN 4 8/4 PERP

Resiy Flogt 7422 172202026

ILLHAITY BANK 5P 3755 07 /302021
EOOCYEAR ELIROFE BVAS 082028

BTF 00D 0L 05 20 100 A0 2038
Thiyssenkrupg A3 28758

BTP 31477 2158 EURDY /002072
FRANCE-DAT 2Y/3%.5-2 25/052072
IPGIA & T8 OF2HA26 O 2826 BvaL MID
REPSOL PERPETLLY CALL 22DRFZITD
PERGEN, 2 304 (431537

SHMCHRONT FINAMC 2BTSY LOFRE8 2031
TEVA PHERMACEUT IND 3.75 0905 /20327
CMIE 4 GI25/26

FUABNK 4.25 032474

LG S BPRUD2 2028

CABHSN 5.25% PERP Covp
SUSTRISAEURIAZ0 DLBS

15PN 7755

D &8.5%
EmA Flomt Ferp Corp 7032570

American Arbines ng .29 02715738
LOTTOMETICS SPEMROMSE 7,125

TIMTIN 4.5 D f15726 CORE

RABOEK 6.5 FERF CORR

FETBRA 4.75 {1/14/35 CORP

HTPS & 30/B03) Corp

FINBAN 4.525 D2/23/23 CORP

CCTS Float A0y I5/28 CORE

PIOWAN1E 5 00 % 2 7-5ep- 2026

{LIA0 HOLDINGS 345 5 825 I/15/28
RHEINMETALL AG 2.25 03/07 /30

£ 75% UTOSTRADE PER LITALIA 2408 /2051
4,875 PETADLEDS MENICANCS 21 /0272078
LAND MORDRHEIN-WESTFALEN

UKRAINE GOWERNMENT 6.75 Z0/06/200E
BANCO BPR 558 5 5%,

UMTTED RINGDCHM LT 2.75% 07.00.2022
CLTS Float 04/1%/2%

Total debt trslruments

Denarminated s

LS0
EUR
ELIR
EUR
EUR
EUR
ELIR
EUR
EUR
ELIR
EUR
EMR
UER
ELR
ELIR
ELR
EUR
ELIR
EUR
EUR
EUR
Ush
UsE
EUR
ELIR
EUR
ELIR
ELIR
EUR
ELR
EUR
ELR
ELtE
EUR
ELIR
ELR
EUg
EUR
GEF
EUR

Fair Value

Percentage of
total net asseds

EUR %
180676 1.14
185 654 147
166,318 124
304,778 1.2¢
185,324 1.18
281,793 178
155 326 1.26
15%,175 0.457

&2, B58 2.40
308,524 245
5,550 058
1BR 625 1.06
145 ¥54 09z
195,455 193
1S0F77? 095
SO0, 084 115
155,940 128
18E 408 1.18
71418 .45
20T, KOG 1.30
AR5,624 21
o0.454 Q.57
334,757 1,84
211,532 .33
150,665 DLe5
153,108 .95
20,152 1.27
208,592 1.32
204,518 128
458 427 285
154,507 D87
100651 054
228,440 5.44
306,582 1.30
131,058 0.23
TELTEH 0.50
36,783 0.3
Ti7.152 157
100,205 D68
149112 p.o4
7,278,435 45,54
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAYV p.Lc.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2023

AQA Global Dynsunic Fund (continned)

Equities

ExON AIDBIL LR P,
WALMART INC

WOLREWY SEEM 85 PREF
WISA N CL A ORD
LINFTECHHERLTH RCHIR L
TESLS MIDTORS N ORD
ATET INC

REHOHE HDLDING AG
PFIZER INC

QHRACLE CORP

L'OREAL 58

NWIDHE CORP ORI
MOWARTIS G

METFLIS OED
BUCROSOFT OORE ORD
BGTIERMA (NE
BASSTERCARD CL & ORD

ELN LILLY SME CORSPANY
FERAORGEN CHASE & Co
TEL CORE Tl

FHOMNIE DREFROTT B
ALPHABET INC-CL &
FACERBCIOY ING CL & ORD
EMEL 5P,

CHEMEROIN CORE

CARCTE SYSTEMS WM CHEDY
SALESFORCE COM T
OO0 WWHAL
COMACHAST-OL &

BERKSHIRE HATHAMEY INC-CL B
BLAN OF AMERICS CORP
SLBEEA GROLIP HOLTHNG A0R BREP
BRCESEPCIEN TRIC ORI
SERL HOLENG

AMBFOM COM NC ORD
SDYANCED WEICRG DEVICER INC,
ETHOFBE SYSTEMS
ACCENTIURE PLT-CL &

AEEN US

AFPLE INC ORD

EDE-EMERG AR DE PORTUGEAL
SEERBANK OF SLISRE
SHELL BLC

SAR SE

BT GROUE PLC

MOV NORDIEK

LINDE 8L

CAFGERIMI

Todal Equities

st
LS
ELIF.
L5
UEE
LESE
U
CHE
gy
50
ELIR,
LISy
CHF
[R5
LISy
s
LISy

SR
ELR

95 0G5 D60
103 150 n.8a
324,778 2.05

94, 598 160
143,075 0.20

75 BIE .45
334,414 251
4T3, HE2 280
117,381 opd

89,799 055
157 728 1.00
11% 152 871
144,191 .52
140,264 DD
103,164 054
134,584 oLES
106,251 DEF

w7120 .55
154 500 047

025 s

78,425 050
107 561 068
123, 44% o078
403,800 2.55

04 585 D60
138 SEG 07e
107,268 D68

59,595 057
104 558 68
108,530 057

A5 BT o5
128,476 082
111,281 070
156,731 0.9
110,111 068
106 32 067

5% 174 0.56

96,630 .61

61433 5%
104,645 0,58
250,525 1.5%
108,487 068

93,875 .63

79,239 050
185,798 117
158,738 106
147,440 099
113,350 071

5,603,558 21,55
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AQA UCITS Funds SICAY p.Lec.

Portfolio of Net Assets
31 December 2623

AQA Global Dynamic Fund (continned)

Exchange Tradad Funds

WT PHYSICAL GIoLD B4R
WANECK SEMHCONOUCTOR WCITE ETF, LiG{H
ISHARES DIVERSIFIED COMBMOQDITY SW AR UCITS ETF LED
WYESLL SOLER ENERGY MCITS ETF ELIR
ARUNDS RUSSELL 2000 LCITS ETF ELLR
ISHARES DOW JONES INGUETRIAL AVERAGE ULITS E7F ERIR

Total Exchange Traded Funds

Collective lnvestment Schenies
H20 ALLEGRO 1C 40 ELIR
Total Collective investent Schenes

Derlvatives

Futures

ECHSE CLHRNCY LR
HFHE Curncy ] CHF

Total Futures

Total parifolio of investments

Bank balances
Other fislilities et of gssets

Met Assels

154,200 437
176,761 1Az
168,475 157
V78652 1.33
164,456 1004
156,147 099

que,7 23 .32
25, 852 DG
29,883 DA
7604 108
{12,152} 46,08
14,548) [E o)

14, BT (59 54,007
BAD, 685 551

98,824 62
5,805,208 0063, L0
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Swissquote Financial Services (Malta) Ltd

Pendergardens

St Andrew’s Street
St Julian’s STJ 1901
Malta

T. +356 222 65100

8" February 2024

Report of the Custodian to the Shareholders

We have enquired into the conduct of the Manager and AQA UCITS FUNDS SICAV plc (the “Company”),
for the period 1** January 2023 up until 31* December 2023 (the “Period”) in our capacity as Custodian to
the Company.

This report including the opinion, has been prepared for and solely for the shareholders in the Company as
a body, in accordance with the Malta Financial Services Authority (the “MFSA™) Investment Services Act
(Chapter 370 of the Laws of Malta), and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown.

Responsibilities of the Custodian

Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Part BIV to the MFSA Investment Services Rules. Cne of these
duties is to enquire into the conduct of the Company in each annual accounting period and report thereon
to the shareholders.

Our report shall state whether in our opinion the Company has been managed, in that period; (i) in
accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the
Constitutional Documents and by the MFSA; and (ii) in accordance with its Constitutional Documents and
its Licence Conditions. It is the overall responsibility of the Company to comply with these provisions. If the
Company has not so complied, the Custodians should outline the steps taken to rectify the situation.

Basis of Custodian Opinion

The Custodian conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable opinion, considers necessary in order to comply
with its duties outlined in Part BIV of the MFSA's Investment Services Rules and to ensure that in all material
respects, the Company has been managed (i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on its investment
and borrowing powers by the provisions of its constitutional documentation and the appropriate regulations
and (ii) otherwise in accordance with the Company’s constitutional documentation and the appropriate
regulations.



@ Swissquote

In our opinion, the Company has been managed during the Period, in all material aspects:

i. In accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the
Company by the Constitutional Documents and by the MFSA,;

ii. In accerdance with the provisions of the Company’s Constitutional Documents and the
Regulations.

For and behalf of Swissquote Financial Services (Malta) Ltd:

=78

Franciska flehr Dr Stefania Grech
Head of Business Operations GE



